CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE
Date: Wednesday 19 December 2018
Time: 7.00 pm
Venue:

Room THB-06, Town Hall, Lambeth Town Hall, Brixton Hill, London SW2 1RW

Copies of agendas, reports, minutes and other attachments for the Council’s meetings are available on
the Lambeth website. www.lambeth.gov.uk/moderngov
Members of the Committee
Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Malcolm Clark, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor Dr.
Mahamed Hashi, Councillor Philip Normal and Councillor Emma Nye
Co-optees
Lynette Murphy-O’Dwyer (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Penny Smith-Orr (Statutory Education Co-optee)
Lambeth Youth Council (One Representative Co-optee)
Further Information
If you require any further information or have any queries please contact:
Jacqueline Pennycook, Telephone: 020 7926 2167; Email: jpennycook@lambeth.gov.uk
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting. If you have any specific needs please contact
Facilities Management (020 7926 1010) in advance.
Queries on reports:
Please contact report authors prior to the meeting if you have questions on the reports or wish to inspect
the background documents used. The contact details of the report author is shown on the front page of
each report.

@LBLdemocracy on Twitter http://twitter.com/LBLdemocracy or use #Lambeth
Lambeth Council – Democracy Live on Facebook http://www.facebook.com/

Digital engagement
We encourage people to use Social Media and we normally tweet from most Council meetings. To get
involved you can tweet us @LBLDemocracy.
Audio/Visual Recording of meetings
Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees using whatever, nondisruptive, methods you think are suitable. If you have any questions about this please contact Democratic
Services (members of the press please contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chair of the
meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of reasons including disruption caused by
the filming or the nature of the business being conducted.
Persons making recordings are requested not to put undue restrictions on the material produced so that it
can be reused and edited by all local people and organisations on a non-commercial basis.

Representation:
Ward Councillors may be contacted directly to represent your views to the Council: (details via the website
www.lambeth.gov.uk)

Speaking rights at Cabinet meetings
 Cabinet normally has a large amount of business to consider at each meeting.
 Accordingly, the order of the agenda and time allowed for each item is decided by the Leader of
the Council beforehand.
 Cabinet expects there to have been prior consultation with the public and other interested parties
on proposals and a summary of the results to be included in the report. Therefore, oral
contributions from members of the public at the meeting should not normally be necessary.
 The time available may allow contribution(s) to be heard on reports on the agenda but this is
entirely at the discretion of the Leader of the Council. Anyone wishing to speak must advise the
Secretary to Cabinet before the day of the meeting, advising what aspect not covered in the report
they wish to cover.
 Any such contributions are required to be brief; a maximum of three minutes is likely to be
available.
 Speakers should ideally be on behalf of a number of people or a specific group.
 Speakers will be advised at the meeting whether and when they will be heard.
 Councillors may speak at the discretion of the Chair on agenda items, and are entitled to speak on
matters that specifically concern their ward.
Public Involvement at Council, Committee etc meetings - public notice questions, petitions,
deputations and speaking rights (Standing Order 10):
Please contact Democratic Services for further information – 020 7926 2170 or the number on the front
page.

LOCATION MAP TO BRIXTON TOWN HALL

TRAVEL INFORMATION
Buses
196, 2, and 3 from Herne Hill/Peckham and Crystal Palace direction stop outside the civic centre.
118, 333, 45, 133, 59, 159 from Streatham direction and stop outside the Town Hall.
37 and 35 stops outside the Assembly Hall on Acre Lane.
Tube Station
Brixton Underground and Overground Stations are a 7 minute walk way.

AGENDA

Page
Nos.

1.

Declarations of Pecuniary Interest
Under Standing Order 4.4, where any councillor has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest (as defined in the Members’ Code of Conduct (para. 4))
in any matter to be considered at a meeting of the Council, a committee,
sub-committee or joint committee, they must withdraw from the meeting
room during the whole of the consideration of that matter and must not
participate in any vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been
obtained from the Monitoring Officer.

2.

Minutes (23.10.18)

1 - 12

To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 23 October 2018
as a correct record of the proceedings.

3.

December Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report
2018-2023

13 - 86

(All Wards)
Contact for Information: Hamant Bharadia, Assistant Director Strategic
Finance; Tel: 0207 926 9153, hbharadia@lambeth.gov.uk

4.

Special Educational Needs and Disability

87 - 118

(All Wards)
Contact for enquiries: Claire Kirwan, Transformation Officer, SEN Service,
Education Learning and Skills 0207 926 6678, CKirwan@lambeth.gov.uk

5.

2018-19 Children's Services Scrutiny Sub Committee Work
Programme
(All Wards)
Contact for Information: Elaine Carter, Lead Scrutiny Officer, Corporate
Resources; 020 7926 0027; ecarter@lambeth.gov.uk

119 - 130

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE
Tuesday 23 October 2018 at 7.00 pm
MINUTES
PRESENT:

Councillor Liz Atkins (Chair), Councillor Mary Atkins, Councillor Malcolm
Clark, Councillor Nicole Griffiths, Councillor Dr. Mahamed Hashi, Lynette
Murphy-O'Dwyer and Councillor Philip Normal

APOLOGIES:

Councillor Emma Nye and Mrs Penny Smith-Orr

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Councillor Ben Kind and Councillor
Mohammed Seedat, Cabinet Member for the Voluntary Sector,
Partnerships and Community Safety (job share)

1.

INTRODUCTIONS AND DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY INTEREST
Councillor Liz Atkins, Chair of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee, welcomed
everyone to the meeting with all attendees introducing themselves.
Councillor Dr Mahamed Hashi informed the Committee that he worked with Young Lambeth
Cooperative.

2.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (04.07.18)
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 4 July 2018 be approved and signed by the
Chair as a correct record of the proceedings.

3.

LAMBETH CHILDREN SAFEGUARDING BOARD: UPDATE ON RESPONSES TO
YOUNG PEOPLE AT RISK
The Chair explained that the meeting would focus on young people at risk. She expressed
concern that Lambeth had been identified as one of the top five boroughs in London for serious
youth violence and this had increased by 13% in the last 12 months. Also, Lambeth had the
highest number of first time entrants (FTE) within the criminal justice system, with the largest
proportion of young people being from the Black, Asian and Minority and Ethnic (BaME)
communities with a quarter of young people having been diagnosed with a learning disability.
Although the Council recognised that a new approach to address issues was needed, no
evidence of progress had been documented in the report. However, she hoped that an update on
the achievements made would be discussed at the meeting and the work required to protect
children and young people in Lambeth.
The Chair, Councillor Liz Atkins, then invited parents and representatives to address the meeting.
A parent advised the Sub-Committee that:
 Her 16 year old son had previously attended a school in Lambeth for 4 years up to Year
10, before he was permanently excluded in October 2017.
 Her son currently received no education and she paid for private tuition costing £40 per
week which she could no longer afford.

Page 2










Prior to her son being excluded, she had asked for a managed move to another school as
her son was unhappy but her request was refused.
She had been advised at the Independent Review Panel (IRP) hearing by the Principal
stated that her son could not be managed by another school and was recommended that
he should attend a Secondary Alternative Educational School) instead. However, on
speaking to the Head, she decided that it was not suitable for her son’s needs. As a result
of issues, he could not travel to the areas which prevented him from attending the school.
The family GP had referred her son to the Well Centre to assist with his mental health
problems.
Her son had been threatened by drug dealers to have him sell drugs for them.
She had received letters from the Council threatening court action as a result of her son
not attending school.
She had been advised that her son could attend College to study for his GCSEs in order
to become a Stock Broker. However, the college advised that she required a referral letter
from the Council so that her son could commence the programme but this was refused, as
the Council wanted him to attend the Secondary Alternative Educational School instead.
She had received no support from the Council.

A parent, explained to the meeting that:
 She was the parent of a 14 year old son who currently attended a school in another
borough.
 At age 8, her son’s behaviour escalated as a result of her being diagnosed with a serious
illness which emotionally affected him in school and consequently, he received numerous
internal and external exclusions.
 In Year 7, at secondary school, his behaviour again escalated as a result of her medical
illness. He received numerous internal and external exclusions and spent time at a
neighbouring school.
 Although some school support had been put in place, her son was permanently excluded
but a managed move to another school was arranged. However, after two weeks, he was
permanently excluded (as at that time, his diagnosis for ADHD was not known by the
school). She appealed the decision but was unsuccessful.
 She contacted Lambeth for assistance but was advised that her son would need to attend
the Secondary Alternative Educational School despite her views. As a result of not
receiving proper support from Lambeth, she had no choice but to send her son there
where his ADHD was eventually diagnosed.
 At age 12 her son began selling drugs as a result of being mentored by gang members.
 A mentor from an organisation previously provided support to her son but this service no
longer existed.
Mel Christodoulou, Director of the Yellow Qube, said that:
 Yellow Qube operated an open door policy that provided support for parents.
 She expressed concern about the information she heard from parents regarding the
exclusion process, especially for children who received in-school exclusions at different
schools.
 It was important to provide advice to parents who raised concerns in exclusion meetings
on the language barriers faced in understanding the exclusions process and on their
children’s mental health and well-being.
 The Qube provided assistance with food provisions and toiletries to families.

Page 3
Councillor Mary Atkins then highlighted the following points:
 She made reference to a parent whose son, with special needs, had issues at a particular
school and was eventually permanently excluded. As a result of being moved to another
school, he was now thriving without any issues.
 Although parents had concerns regarding their children being affiliated with gangs, they
feared approaching schools.
 Schools failed to understand the violent issues associated with estates, such as Tulse Hill
with significant overcrowding issues and adequate services unavailable that provided
support to families. Nevertheless, she recognised that good practice existed within
Lambeth and emphasised the need to share this to ensure parents were supported.
The Chair then invited Annie Hudson, Strategic Director of Children’s Services to introduce the
report and she highlighted the following points: She thanked parents for attending the meeting to share their experiences.
 The report outlined the work undertaken by Children’s Services, schools, community
safety and the police in supporting and assisting children at risk.
 The report also provided an update on the work undertaken during the past 18 months.
For example, the Lambeth Safeguarding Children’s Board agreed that joint work with
statutory agencies and the private sector to provide better support for children and
young people were required. This included supporting young people involved in sexual
exploitation; missing young people and young people being at risk of being radicalised,
by developing a Young People at Risk (YPaR) Strategy to ensure that over time, the
Council would be better equipped to protect affected children and families.
 It was recognised that huge challenges existed, including how services operated
together to support families and children, especially concerning youth violence.
 Changes had been made in children’s social care to work jointly with the police,
education, health and organisations, such as Young Lambeth Cooperative, to share
information concerning young people. The changes made were already evidenced by
Ofsted, which showed that the Council were addressing problems.
 She recognised that extra work needed to be done and the Council had developed a
long term strategy to address some of the cases and manifestation of serious youth
violence, in particular BaME males.
 She felt that focus should be made on:
1. Joint community engagement with parents, council and police;
2. Further data information to be provided pertaining to estates and communities;
3. Joint integrated working with both the voluntary and statutory sector services;
and
4. Earlier engagement of services to support families and children in order to
solve problems was needed.
The Chair then invited Jim Henderson, Headteacher of Arbichbishop Tenison’s School, to
address the Committee and he highlighted that:
 He had worked in three different schools in Lambeth and Southwark and was familiar with
the issues raised.
 Headteachers only imposed permanent exclusions as a last resort.
 Schools were aware of the challenges and problems that existed for some children. Staff
also appreciated that children made mistakes and tried to provide appropriate support in
order to prevent exclusions. However, schools must be a safe environment for every
child, including difficult children and therefore, exclusions could not be avoided.
 Schools imposed internal exclusions to ensure that staff worked with children to provide

Page 4











support.
Headteachers previously had capacity to bring in additional aides to support children but
resources were now limited. Therefore, joint working between schools, the police and
social services were required.
Earlier identification of children’s problems by outside agencies should be made known to
headteachers, as schools were only notified of issues when problems had already
manifested.
Joint working was needed with outside agencies to ensure coherent approaches with
parents in order to avoid parents relying on a single service and children being
permanently excluded.
He had worked with the Inclusion team at Lambeth to secure managed moves for children
to another school which had proven to be successful for those children.
He had visited Park Campus and understood the issues associated with the campus and
the fear of parents not wanting their children to be associated with other young people at
the campus. However, the campus supported children back into successful pathways
through education.
It was recognised that children could not be supported in school without a joined up
process with other agencies to provide assistance.

Exclusions
The Chair began this part of the debate by explaining that although data on exclusions was not
currently available, she required an update on exclusions imposed on out-of-borough children
with the support provided for them and exclusions within Lambeth. Also, she wanted the
outcomes for excluded pupils, in particular, those children referred to the Pupil Referral Units
(PRUs).
The Strategic Director for Children’s Services, the Head of Inclusion and Delivery Lead Education
Strategy responded that:
 Strategic work was being undertaken by the Council entitled: ‘Raising the Game:
Achievement of Black Caribbean Pupils in Lambeth’ that provided support for
children, in particular BaME males at risk of being permanently excluded.
 Data statistics for 2016/17 showed that 00.09% exclusions occurred within Lambeth’s
schools, which was in line with the Council’s statistical neighbours and inner London. This
was lower than the United Kingdom’s rate of 0.10%. Although data was not expected by
the Department for Education (DfE) until August 2019, figures showed that exclusions
within Lambeth remained steady.
 Joint work with the Council and headteachers was underway to consider other
alternatives, such as managed moves to other schools that prevented exclusions and
provided a fresh start for children; outreach services provided by alternative provisions
such as the PRU; supporting headteachers and finding alternatives for young people to
avoid exclusions occurring.
 The Young People at Risk project involved the attendance of the Youth Offending Service
(YOS) at meetings to provide early help in various areas. This involved looking at
statistics and data to identify schools with high levels of exclusions; children absent from
schools; children that received repeated fixed-term exclusions and at risk of heading
towards being permanently excluded. Earlier intervention of those cases were required to
ensue appropriate support was provided.
 Outreach support was available to all schools and was promoted in order to support
schools in terms of alternatives.
 Although concern existed regarding data pertaining to the over-representation of black

Page 5







males, the Council aimed to minimise the amount of exclusions that occurred in schools.
66% of support went to Black Caribbean males in terms of cohorts with 70% to females.
Data statistics were not currently available regarding education outcomes for excluded
children, as examination results were awaited. However, in terms of the PRU, for the past
2-3 years a 100% avoidance rate existed for not sending children not in education,
employment or training (NEET) to the campus at secondary level.
Primary level reintegration occurred at the point of secondary transfer with appropriate
support provided to get children back into mainstream education.
Data for the last academic year showed that 20 managed move transfers within Lambeth
and out-of borough schools had been undertaken to avoid exclusions.
24 successful re-integrations to place children back into mainstream schools were
supported by the Council, out of a cohort of 81.

The Chair, then opened up the debate on exclusions to other members of the Sub-Committee
and in response to questions, the Head of Inclusion, the Head of Inclusion and Delivery Lead for
the Education Strategy and the Strategic Director for Children’s Services, responded that:
 Records for children that received internal exclusions were only kept by the school as they
remained on the school roll.
 A headteacher could not remove a child from their school roll until alternative provision
had been made for that child. If this occurred, the school would be challenged by the
Council and a request made for that child to be re-instated by the school with immediate
effect. Therefore, in terms of data, only fixed and permanent exclusions were recorded.
 All children were entitled to full-time education and if the Council became aware that a
child’s timetable had been reduced, this would be challenged.
 When a child was excluded the Council made a referral to the PRU and secured parental
engagement for a risk assessment to take place. Before any referrals to the PRU were
made, information pertaining to the child was received from the school. The Council also
accessed internal systems, such as social care records and Youth Offending teams to
obtain as much information as possible. Following a risk assessment, if any issues were
found, the Council would be notified to provide alternative provision. That alternative
provision would also be risk assessed against the cohort of that alternative provision in
order to ensure that the child was appropriately educated.
 The Vulnerable Pupil Monitoring Group met on monthly basis and considered various
case studies pertaining to children, including travel issues to school. If it was noted that a
child involved in gang activity could not travel to a particular school, then alternative
provision would be sought.
 The Strategic Director for Children’s Services would welcome the opportunity after the
meeting to speak to both parents who had addressed the Sub-Committee to obtain further
details pertaining to their children, as it was appreciated that those issues needed to be
addressed.
 Parents had the option to home educate their children if they refused a place at another
school or PRU which some parents preferred to do. However, if parents refused to
engage in the risk assessment process, this could result in a School Attendance Order
being issued to the parent to put their child on the school roll automatically.
 ‘Raising the Game’ consisted of a Lambeth Schools Partnership (LSP) that involved 34
schools which brought into the service.
The working group comprised of four
headteachers (three secondary and one primary) and two behaviour consultants that
discussed and considered alternative provisions to exclusions. Also behaviour policies
and appropriate training were discussed.
 Schools had a duty to notify the Council of any fixed-term exclusions imposed on a term

Page 6
basis. On the sixth day of the fixed-term exclusion, schools must provide alternative
provision for those children. The Council encouraged schools to provide information on
fixed-term exclusion as soon as possible, so that this could be recorded and monitored to
determine if any risk assessments existed. However, the Council must be informed of any
permanent exclusions on the same day, as there was a need to obtain all relevant
information for the PRU and meet with the family to ensure that suitable education could
be commenced within six days.
Jim Henderson, Headteacher, Archbishop Tenison’s School, added that:
 Internal exclusions were the responsibility for schools but some schools preferred to
communicate with local authorities when an internal exclusion occurred.
 Headteachers must ensure that educational boundaries existed to prevent problem
children causing disruption at school. Hence the reason for permanent exclusions being
imposed.
 Internal exclusions were made to ensure conversations with families were held in order to
raise the boundaries and prevent permanent exclusions.
 Schools behaviour policies should be examined as it demonstrated the sanctions imposed
by schools, including internal exclusions which was considered as the first warning signs
of issues with children.
 Real difficulty for schools existed in identifying problems that existed for children.
 He had experienced difficulty in referring children to the Child and Adolescent Mental
Health Service (CAMHS) and as mental health issues in children appeared to be
increasing, he believed that (CAMHS) were overloaded with cases.
 Although issues might be identified by the parent or school, if relevant expertise was not
available due to funding, this left the school in a difficult position regarding their next step.
In response to a question, Jim Henderson, Headteacher, Archbishop Tenison’s confirmed that
schools worked with the Inclusion Team at Lambeth regarding providing support for children with
mental health issues. However, due to limited funding and the waiting list for CAMHS, it could
result in children being permanently excluded.
The Chair invited Maria Taylor, Young Lambeth Cooperative, to address the meeting and in
response to her questions, the Delivery Lead Education Strategy, the Head of Inclusion and the
Director of Commissioning and Improvement, confirmed that:
 Community organisations were not involved in the Vulnerable Pupil Monitoring Group but
the Council contacted relevant teams, such as social workers, that had access to
community groups.
 Every location had a duty to report pupils that no longer received support from the NEET
so that investigations could be made to ascertain if those children were engaged in further
education or just changed their mind.
 The NEET team within the Council would need to be approached to obtain data statistics
that documented the assistance provided for children NEET. However, the NEET team
were notified of any cases in advance of the summer holidays so that appropriate
education could be put in place for those children by September.
 The Council needed to identify cohorts of NEET children and work with those families to
secure pupil engagement in order to find a resolution.
 In relation to CAMHS, for children waiting for appointments under Tier 3 (specialist
services) a long waiting list existed. For Tier 2 (early help and targeted services), limited
funding was available and it was recognised that more resources were needed for schools
and joint working with health providers was required to ensure proper support for children.

Page 7
Councillor Jennifer Brathwaite, Deputy Leader of the Council (Children and Young People),
highlighted the following points:
 She appreciated that the data on exclusion was lower than the national average.
However, children being excluded in Lambeth were at risk of being either sexually
exploited or becoming involved in gangs. Therefore, she would like to see that no
exclusions occurred in Lambeth to ensure that no children were at risk.
 As a Cabinet Member, she had been approached by at least four parents whose children
had been out of education for months, despite officers stating that school alternative
education was found for children within six days.
Councillor Mary Atkins added that joint work with parents and the community was required. She
also made reference to a recent press article regarding Dunraven School, which had set up an
alternative on-site provision to support problem children instead of sending them to the PRU
which had resulted in permanent exclusions being reduced from five to zero a year. She
recommended that the Council might wish to consider that model for other schools.
Criminal Justice System and Serious Youth Violence
A member began by referring officers to paragraph 1.15 (agenda pack, page 13) and emphasised
that no information had been provided regarding how successful the engagement process with
schools had been. In particular no projects had been mentioned and how this would be fed into
Phase 2 of the YPaR Strategy. In response the Strategic Director for Children Services and the
Assistant Director of Quality Assurance for Children’s Services, confirmed that:
 The YPaR Strategy involved the Council having better engagement with schools. Every
school in Lambeth now had a team manager within Children’s Social Care aimed at
producing better partnership working with schools.
Team managers met with
Headteachers to discuss any problems with children, with particular emphasis made on
sexually exploited children.
 A Child Exploitation Co-ordinator for the Council had visited various schools and carried
out mapping exercises to examine the relationships between young people and find
children at risk of being sexually exploited. The work undertaken had also assisted the
Council in changing the language being used to shift the focus away from victim blaming
and provide general support to young people instead. Joint work with parents and
partners existed to deliver a good young people safety plan and to support young people
through the process to help achieve change. The Council would like to see more children
subject to a young people safety plan to in order provide support.
In response to further questions from members, the Assistant Director of Quality Assurance for
Children’s Services, the Strategic Director for Children’s Social Care, the Director of
Commissioning and Improvement, the Head of Inclusion and the Delivery Lead Education
Strategy, confirmed that:
 Further work was required to ensure that missing children were offered an independent
return interview to identify and understand any risks they faced whilst missing. In the
Council, the missing co-ordinator had responsibility for tracking cases and ascertain
whether an independent return interview had taken place and what had been offered to
that young person.
 Further work needed to be done regarding FTE that come into the system as agencies
tended to work differently. The Youth Justice Board (YJB) had visited the Council and
provided advice with actions to be monitored by the YJB. More joint working with
agencies, including the Black Thrive, YOS, police, schools and neighbouring boroughs

Page 8




were required to address youth offending rates in order for the council to learn from YJB.
If a child is absent for 10 days and no contact can be made with the family, the matter is
referred to the Education Welfare Team for investigations to be carried out. If the family
could not be located, the child would be removed from the school roll after 20 days.
The School Governing Body and Headteacher monitored children missing from education
and contacted the Council’s social care team for further investigations to be carried out.

Members reiterated the point made above and felt that further clarity, data and outcomes for
young people at risk were required in the report.
The Strategic Director for Children’s Services apologised for the lack of information provided but
emphasised that the subject area was quite complex and data for some information had been
difficult to obtain.
Guillotine
Following discussion of this item the guillotine fell at 9.00 pm.
RESOLVED: That the meeting continue for a further period of up to 30 minutes.
In response to further questions, the Head of Inclusion, the Strategic Director for Children
Services and Director of Commissioning and Improvement, confirmed that:
 The PRU was not presently full as some children would have left to be reintegrated into
secondary school from September but a core number of places existed at the PRU for
children that might need to attend. However, it was expected that as the academic year
progressed, the PRU would be filled. Alternatives, such as out-of-borough placements
would also be considered but this could pose increase risk, as children would be required
to travel.
 The Director of Housing Services was a representative on the Serious Youth Violence
Task and Finish Group.
 Every borough within London was required to submit a Knife Crime and Serious Violence
Plan which had been completed by the Lead Commissioner for Crime and Disorder. The
Youth Violence Strategy aimed to bring together all the work of the statutory agencies and
the community in one place to change and improve how the Council could help prevent
violence against young people. This involved working with the Young Lambeth
Cooperative, estates and engaging with schools.
 The issue of a facility that had been available in the Town Hall where young people,
subject to violence, could attend to feel safe would be raised.
In response to a question from Maria Taylor, Young Lambeth Cooperative, the Strategic Director
for Children’s Services and the Director of Commissioning and Improvement, confirmed that:
 The opportunity existed for the Council to submit bids for further funding from central
government for youth violence work. At present, the funds received from the Mayor’s
Officer for Policing and Crime (MOPAC) were currently being used but an update on
further bids were awaited.
 No changes to youth funding had been made by the Council.

A parent emphasised that parents were not aware of the alternative provisions available for their
children, as the Council only intended to inform parents of the PRU.

Page 9
The Strategic Director for Children’s Services appreciated that further work was required to
ensure that parents were informed of the alternative services available and further work in this
area would be undertaken by officers.
The Chair expressed her thanks to everyone who had attended and contributed at the meeting.
The Chair summed up the issues highlighted by the discussion and the headline issues for
recommendations.
RESOLVED: That:
1. Focus on better, early identification of children at risk of exclusion and a joined up approach.
School exclusion and absence from education has huge long-term effect on the life chances
of children and young people. Many children who are excluded from school often already face
a host of challenges including experiences happening outside the school environment.
Schools and agencies need to liaise and engage much earlier, including with parents/carers,
to understand what is happening in a young person’s life and their community and through a
joint, coherent approach better reduce the risk of exclusion.
2. Ensure better tracking of excluded children and more support to prevent children who have
been permanently excluded from falling through the cracks. Whilst there is a statutory process
which requires that pupils are found a new school place or suitable alternative provision within
six days of a permanent exclusion, it was clear from the evidence presented by parents to the
committee that there are incidences where the processes in place have not worked and
excluded children/young people have become absent from education. Data on internal
exclusions and managed moves also needs to be collected to look at trends and regularity.
Internal audit could be used for this. Research on this, to include the voice of the child and
parent, to be commissioned.
3. Noting the challenges faced by schools in accessing external interventions and in particular
for those pupils identified with higher level (Tier 3) mental health needs, a review should be
undertaken of the level of support available for children and young people and the availability
and waiting time for CAMHS interventions.
4. Secure more data on exclusions particularly on the educational and other outcomes of all
excluded pupils including those attending PRUs. The committee was not able to be provided
with recent data and trends on exclusion and considers it particularly important that the
outcomes for pupils who are excluded are tracked to contribute to an understanding of what is
working and what might improve the life chances of vulnerable children and needs.
5. Review the learning, success and opportunities of a zero exclusions policy and alternative
provision within mainstream schools for disruptive pupils such as the Dunraven School model.
The committee notes the alternative on-site provision in place at Dunraven which includes
bespoke interventions and re-integration back into the main school when a pupil is considered
ready. (It has been reported elsewhere that the educational outcomes for the cohort of
students compares significantly more favourably than those who attend a pupil referral unit).
6. The committee also notes the ‘Raising the Game’ initiative – a Lambeth Schools Partnership
project looking at alternatives to exclusion and in particular avoiding repeat instances of
exclusion, including through support, training and outreach. The committee would wish to be
informed on the learning and outcomes from the assessment and review of the project.

Page 10
7. There needs to be readily accessible and clear information made available to a parent/carer
whose child has been excluded from school which sets out the alternative educational
provision options available and how they can access advice and support on all options and
next steps.
8. At all stages ensure that the voices of the child/young person and the parent are listened to.
9. The committee noted the input of the Head Teacher Archbishop’s Tenison’s School and
would like further information on school exclusions from Head Teachers’ perspective on the
issues that face them and the solutions they would like to see.
10. The committee notes the work carried out by the local authority to encourage schools to
report children missing education, however it is also clear that the data provided by schools is
less than robust. Noting the confluence between children and young people caught up in
serious youth violence, child sexual exploitation and criminal exploitation and those who go
missing from education, schools must be made accountable for monitoring and reporting
children who miss or are absent from education. This includes a role for the School Governing
Body and involvement of the Safeguarding Governor. As necessary schools should be
reminded of their associated responsibilities by the local authority.
11. It is not clear that Return Home interviews for children who go missing from home or care
always take place. Children’s Services should secure more information on missing children
and ensure there are more independent return to home interviews. This in particular is an
imperative for children who are in placements outside the borough.
12. Anecdotal evidence from parents suggests special needs issues are not being identified early
enough and not enough relevant support given. This may also be confirmed by the number of
young people entering the youth justice system with a special need. Special needs policies to
be reviewed and unmet need to be quantified.
13. Lambeth has the highest number of first time entrants into the youth justice system per
100,000 of the whole country. Whilst there appear to be a range of diversionary activities
commissioned including in high risk areas and some excellent community initiatives, it is not
clear that there is a structured approach to measuring and gathering the learning of what
works; there is also variety in quality of provision. The committee additionally notes that about
a quarter of the children who end up in youth custody are even more vulnerable because they
have a generalised learning disability. There should be more evidence gathered on the
outcomes of the youth justice initiatives that Lambeth is pursuing. There is also a need to
ensure a more joined up approach to reduce the number of FTEs into the criminal justice
system.
14. In conjunction with (13) above, ensure the work to reduce violence on high risk housing
estates is monitored and assessed.
15. It is understood that Lambeth Town Hall was previously designated a ‘safe space’ where
children/young people seeking to escape violence or harm could attend and feel safe.
Consideration should be given to reinstating the Town Hall as ‘a safe space’ facility along with
the requisite training for staff.

Page 11
16. It is noted that the bid to the Young Londoner’s Fund (cited in the agenda report) has been
unsuccessful. Whilst the committee is assured that other funding opportunities exist, in the
context of tight resources and budget pressures the committee would welcome further
information about the funding and evaluation of youth projects going forward. Information
should include projects outside the Young Lambeth Co-operative model to enable a review of
external and internal funding being used, such as lottery funds, independent charities etc.

4.

2018-19 CHILDREN'S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE WORK
PROGRAMME
The Chair discussed the work programme and explained that the 19 December 2018 meeting
would focus on the budget. The meeting would also consider SEND and the early identification of
children with special needs.
The Strategic Director for Children Services stated that SEND had recently been considered at
the Health and Wellbeing Board meeting on 11 October 2018.
The Lead Scrutiny Officer advised that items still needed to be determined for the meeting
scheduled for 19 March 2019.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee working programme as currently drafted
(Appendix 1) be approved.
2. That the Lead Scrutiny Officer to provide further information of the details required for the
SEND report to officers.

CLOSE OF MEETING
The meeting ended at 9.25 pm
CHAIR

Date of Despatch:
Contact for Enquiries: Jacqueline Pennycook
Tel: 020 7926 2167
E-mail: jpennycook@lambeth.gov.uk
Web: www.lambeth.gov.uk
The action column is for officers' use only and does not form a part of the formal record.

Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 13 DECEMBER 2018
CHILDREN’S SERVICE SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 19 DECEMBER 2018

Report title: December Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report 2018-2023
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance: Councillor Andrew Wilson
Report Authorised by: Jackie Belton: Strategic Director for Corporate Resources
Contact for enquiries: Hamant Bharadia, Assistant Director Strategic Finance;
Tele: 0207 926 9153, hbharadia@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report introduces the December Financial Planning and Medium Term Strategy Report for the
period 2018 through 2023, including the funding gap and proposed mitigations. The report also
provides responses to other financial planning matters raised by the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Finance summary
There are no direct financial implications arising as Overview and Scrutiny and Children’s Service
Scrutiny Sub-Committee is not making binding decisions but considering the proposals and providing
comments and recommendations. The Cabinet will then consider the overall budget in the context
of available resources taking into account all comments and recommendations received.

Recommendations
1.

That the Committee considers the Financial Planning and Medium Term Financial Strategy
and the proposals for closing the funding gap, forwarding any formal recommendations to
Cabinet in respect of Children’s Services.

2.

That the Committee notes the updates on other financial matters previously raised by Overview
and Scrutiny Committee.

Page 14

1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Council reported in the July Financial Planning Report an updated position on the MTFS
since the Budget Report in February 2018. This saw a revised funding gap of £43.2m over the
four year planning period 2019/20 to 2022/23.

1.2

We are revising our Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) in a period of unprecedented
uncertainty; setting a four-year plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 when we have one year left of the
Government’s previous four-year Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). The new CSR is
promised for the four years 2020/21 to 2023/24 and is due at the end of 2019. The CSR will
include the outcome from the Local Government Fair Funding Review, due out next summer
as well as the national business rates retention deal. In addition, we still await the Green Paper
on Adult Social Care now promised for this December.

1.3

The Council will continue to be part of the London Business Rates Pilot Pool, albeit with some
changes from the Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), namely
a reduction from 100% retention of growth in the business rates base to 75% and the removal
of the safety net to guarantee no detriment in funding. This brings it closer to the proposed
national scheme.

1.4

In his Budget in October, the Chancellor announced a number of measures, many of them
one-off, which impact on Local Government funding. The announcements regarding adult and
children’s social care in particular, whilst welcome to help the short term budget pressures, are
not long term funding solutions. We expect to receive final confirmation of our 2019/20 funding
in the Local Government Finance Settlement due now after the Brexit vote. This is after this
report is due to be ready for publication and therefore we will make any necessary changes to
our MTFS as a result of the announcement in the Budget Report to Cabinet in February 2019.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

The December Financial Planning and Medium Term Financial Strategy are set out in the
attached report and Committee is asked to consider the strategy and proposals and forward
any formal recommendations to Cabinet.

2.2

This report also updates Committee on their previous recommendations which have not been
addressed within the December Financial Planning Report.

2.3

Update on previous recommendations raised by Committee are set out below in
sections 2.4 through to 2.15;

2.4

SEN Transport - Request for future updates to reassure members that expected savings are
being realised and services levels are being met following the commencement of the new
transport contract.
 Delivery of expected savings is being monitored through the budget monitoring
processes. Expenditure at quarter 1 is £3.472m against a budget of £3.472m. We
recommend that future updates on savings realisation and service levels is provided
by Children Services at the Children Services Scrutiny Sub Committee.

2.5

More focus is need on the pipeline of increasing demand with regard to children with Special
Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND) who will require Education, Health and Care (EHC)

Page 15
plans and that central government be lobbied regarding the need for a funding system which
better responds to the demand.
 The Council is working with partners, London Councils and Local Government
association, and the Society of London treasurers and County Treasurers to lobby
central government.
 This is an item on the Children Services Scrutiny Sub Committee agenda 19 December
2018.
2.6

Strengthening the Council’s balances;
 Following on from the commitment in the July Financial Planning report, the December
2018 Financial Planning report and Medium Term Strategy reaffirms the commitment
to strengthen the General Fund Balances.

2.7

Commercial Strategy
 The Committee will be kept updated with regard to the development of the commercial
strategy and this will be shared with Committee during 2019.

2.8

That the reporting of fees and charges in the budget report be enhanced in future to give more
detail regarding how levels are set, such as benchmarking and criteria used.
 The Council has a Fees and Charges policy which sets the framework for setting and
reviewing fees and charges; and actively promotes regular review of existing fees and
charges as well as exploring new opportunities. In particularly where we offer
discretionary services, the charges are market tested to ensure that we are maximising
our income opportunities.
 The Fees and Charges appendix to the budget report to cabinet in February 2019 will
be revised to incorporate how levels are set and reference any benchmarking used and
budget proposals which recommend new charges or increasing current charges, will
include relevant criteria and benchmarking information.

2.9

That The Council does not make cuts additional to the 26% cut already being made to public
health by central government. Any efficiencies made in public health should be reinvested
directly in public health to prevent illness and treat people with addiction and sexual health
conditions. Preventing and treating illness early saves lives and money.
 The Council reviews its expenditure plans as a whole on an annual basis and seeks to
ensure that resources are used in the most efficient way possible and considers the
impact on the health of residents as part of this.

2.10 Urge the authority to continue to ring fence an appropriate portion of its income to be spent on
Public Health once the dedicated Public Health Grant is rolled into the Business Rates
Retention scheme
 The final position on the ring fenced Public Health Grant being rolled into the Business
Rates retention scheme has not been agreed. However, the Council reviews its
expenditure plans as a whole on an annual basis and seeks to ensure that resources
are used in the most efficient way possible.
2.11 Encourage officers to explore the concept of a voluntary top rate of council tax as a means of
raising extra income and request that financial modelling be carried out in an attempt to
ascertain how much this may contribute to the council’s finances.
 Officers have modelled a number of scenarios, and expect to undertake consultation
shortly on the Council’s plan to introduce a voluntary top rate of council tax.

Page 16
2.12 Request details of the methodology used to benchmark expenditure against other authorities
(such as payroll [per head] and costs per invoice settled)
 The Council uses a number of sources such as CIPFA benchmarking clubs, Grant
Thornton Analytics, LG Futures to benchmark income and expenditure against other
authorities, and has on occasion commissioned subject specific benchmarking.
 Generally available benchmarking information from the above sources tends to be
based on the annual Revenue Outturn returns submitted by all authorities to the
Ministry of Housing, Communities and local Government.
 Detailed benchmarking such as cost per invoice or payroll per head is available through
specific benchmarking clubs or has to be specially commissioned. The Council has
recently subscribed to these benchmarking clubs and is collating the information
required for CIPFA to undertake the analysis and benchmarking. The output from this
exercise is expected to be available in April 2019.
2.13 Urge officers to seek to widen procurement pooling arrangements where these can be shown
to achieve savings and/or social value.
 The Council continues to explore every opportunity for collaboration, information
sharing and undertake joint procurement where appropriate.
2.14 The number of consultants/agency staff in the Council (and associated spend) and what plans
are in place to reduce this (e.g. could savings be achieved by moving people onto fixed term
contracts on standard Lambeth terms and conditions?).
 There are currently 509 agency workers and the cost to end of November is £33.2m.
 The opportunity to convert agency workers to Lambeth workers is considered regularly
on a case by case basis.
2.15 Implications of HRA borrowing cap being lifted.
 Lifting of the HRA Borrowing Cap by Central Government gives the Council the
opportunity to review its capital expenditure funded from the HRA in future
years. However, it should be noted that as any additional borrowing would increase
the capital financing costs within the HRA both now and in the future, the recent
reductions in rent imposed by Central Government have reduced the ability to fund
additional borrowing for expenditure on maintenance of the existing stock from the
rental income. Borrowing from the HRA could be seen as an option for increasing the
level of new build council housing, however the Council will need to evaluate the risks
and rewards of this delivery method compared to the option of using Homes for
Lambeth as currently envisaged.

3.

FINANCE

3.1

There are no direct financial implications of this report. Overview and Scrutiny Committee and
Children’s Service Scrutiny Sub-Committee is asked to consider the proposals including in the
December Financial Planning report and forward and formal recommendations to Cabinet.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no legal comments arising. Legal advice will be provided on specific work streams
as they arise.

4.2

No further comments from Democratic Services.

Page 17
5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

In making decisions and co-producing services, engagement is key. This section enables the
consultation that has been undertaken to be highlighted. Include a summary of the views
received from external consultation.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

There are no risks arising from this report.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

There are no EIA implications arising from the recommendations of this report.

7.2

The December Financial Planning Report includes equalities impact assessment on the
proposals which will be further developed as the proposals progress.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

There are no community safety implications arising from the recommendations.

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental

9.1

There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations contained in this
report.

Staffing and accommodation
9.2

There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations contained in this
report.

Procurement
9.3

There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations contained in this
report.

Health
9.4

There are no environmental implications arising from the recommendations contained in this
report.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 Committee sends any observations and comments to Cabinet for consideration at the
December Meeting of Cabinet.

Page 18
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth directorate
/ department or
partner

Councillor Andrew Wilson
Cabinet Member for Finance

Comments
in
paragraph:

Date Sent

Date
Received

Cabinet Member

06.12.18

06.12.18

Through out

Jackie Belton,
Strategic Director

Corporate Resources

06.12.18

06.12.18

Through out

Christina Thompson,
Director Finance and Property

Corporate Resources
Finance

06.12.18

06.12.18

Through out

Alison Mckane,
Director Legal Services

Corporate Resources
Legal Affairs

06.12.18

06.12.18

Through out

Wayne Chandai
Democratic Services

Corporate Resources
Democratic Services

06.12.18

06.12.18

Through out

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member

06.12.18

Report deadline

07.12.18

Date final report sent

07.12.18

Part
II
Exempt
from
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying No
report?
Key decision report

No

Date first appeared on forward plan

XX.XX.18

Key decision reasons

Not applicable

Background information

July 2018 Financial Planning and Medium Term
Strategy Report

Appendices

Appendix A – December 2018 Financial Planning and
Medium Term Strategy Report

Page 19

Cabinet
17 December 2018
Financial Planning Report 2018/19 to 2022/23
Wards: All
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director Corporate Resources: Jackie Belton
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Finance, Councillor Andrew Wilson
Contact for enquiries: Group Manager – Budgeting and Planning: Rachel Harrison
RHarrison@lambeth.gov.uk Tel: 0207 926 2027

Report summary
This four year financial strategy extends the period of austerity in local government into two decades. Since
2010 cuts in central government funding has reduced Lambeth’s spending power, one of the highest
reductions in the country, and this has led to the need to making savings of £234m. Over the next four years,
rising demand and further government cuts means the council has to find a further £43m.
Despite the scale of the challenge, the council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) focuses on
protecting most front-line services from major cuts and identifies the bulk of savings from back-office
efficiencies, new income and reducing demand. In particular, there is a focus on ensuring additional resources
can be directed towards the council’s key priority of tackling youth violence. And there are ambitious plans to
invest in more housing for homeless families to reduce spending on temporary accommodation, to set up new
preventative teams to work with vulnerable families to prevent children from going into care and to work with
the NHS to integrate local care services which would produce better outcomes at the same time as saving
money.
The future of local government finance has fundamentally shifted away from direct government grant to selfsufficiency. Where previously the majority of Council funding came directly from central Government it is now,
in London at least, generated locally. If we are to continue to care for our most vulnerable residents we need to
continue to identify more efficient service delivery, management of demand and ways of working whilst using
the assets of the Council and the borough to grow income and the tax base.
We are revising our Medium Term Financial Strategy in a period of unprecedented uncertainty; setting a fouryear plan 2019/20 to 2022/23 when we have one year left of the Government’s previous four-year
Comprehensive Spending Review (CSR). The new CSR is promised for the four years 2020/21 to 2023/24 and
is due at the end of 2019. The CSR will include the outcome from the Local Government Fair Funding Review,
due out next summer as well the national business rates retention deal. In addition, we still await the Green
Paper on adult social care now promised for this December. The council reported in the July Finance Planning
Report an updated position on the MTFS since the Budget Report in February 2018. This saw a revised
funding gap of £43.2m over the four year planning period 2019/20 to 2022/23.
1

Page 20
The council will continue to be part of the London Business Rates Pilot Pool for 2019/20, albeit with some
changes from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG), namely a reduction
from 100% retention of growth in the business rates base to 75% and the removal of the safety net to
guarantee no detriment in funding. This brings it closer to the proposed national scheme.
In his Budget in October, the Chancellor announced a number of measures, many of them one-off, which
impacts on Local Government funding. The announcements regarding adult and children’s social care in
particular, whilst welcome to help the short term budget pressures, are not long-term funding solutions, We
expect to receive final confirmation of our 2019/20 funding in the Local Government Finance Settlement due
now after the Brexit vote. This is after this report is due to be ready for publication and therefore we will make
any necessary changes to out MTFS as a result of the announcement in the Budget Report to Cabinet in
February 2019.
Finance summary
This whole report concerns the Council’s financial position.
Recommendations
Medium Term Financial Strategy
(1)

To approve the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy as set out within this report;

(2)

To note the continued uncertainty with regard to elements of government funding, price and demand
pressures and the need to ensure that budgets set each year are sustainable during the settlement
period to 2022/23 and beyond;

(3)

To note the current funding gap of £43.232m for 2019/20 to 2022/23 and how we have reduced this gap
through brought forward savings and new proposed savings, which are detailed within section 2.

(4)

To note the financial position of the Council’s budget in 2018/19 and the actions in place to balance it
over the period;
London Business Rates Pilot Pool
Establishment of Governance Arrangement

(5)

Approve and accept the designation by the Secretary of State as an authority within the London
Business Rates Pilot Pool pursuant to 34(7)(1) of Schedule 7B Local Government Finance Act 1988;

(6)

Participate in the London Business Rates Pilot Pool with effect from 1 April 2019 (to 31 March 2020);

(7)

Delegate the authority’s administrative functions as a billing authority pursuant to the Non-Domestic
Rating (Rates Retention) Regulations 2013 to the City of London Corporation (“COLC”) acting as the
Lead Authority;

(8)

Authorise the Lead Authority to sub-contract certain ancillary administrative functions (regarding the
financial transactions [payment of tariffs and top-ups] within the Pool to the GLA as it considers
expedient);

Entry into the Memorandum of Understanding
(9)

Delegate authority to the Chief Finance Officer in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for Finance to
agree the operational details of the pooling arrangements with the participating authorities;
2

Page 21
(10)

Enter into such Memorandum of Understanding with the participating authorities as may be necessary
to implement and/or regulate the pool and to delegate the authority to the Chief Finance Officer in
consultation with the Director of Legal Services to negotiate, finalise and execute the same on behalf of
the authority;
Operation of the Pool

(11)

To authorise Cllr Lib Peck in her official capacity as Leader to represent the authority in relation to
consultations regarding the London Business Rates Pilot Pool consultative as may be undertaken by
the Lead Authority pursuant to the Memorandum of Understanding.
Capital

(12)

To note the revised total of £313m for the three year Capital Investment Programme 2018/19 to
2020/21 as described in section 4 and summarised in Appendix 3, and with how the programme is
financed within Appendix 4.

3

Page 22
1.

Context
Local Government Funding

1.1

Councils across the country have expressed deep concern to central government about the continued
impact of these cuts in funding. The cross-party Local Government Association has warned that local
government in England faces an overall funding gap of almost £8bn by 2025. Lord Gary Porter, Chair of
the Local Government Association, has said ‘Councils can no longer be expected to run our vital local
services on a shoestring’. Cabinet members, including the Leader of the council, have lobbied the
government to reverse next years planned £1.3bn cut to council budgets, to immediately invest £2bn in
children’s services and £2bn in adult social care to stop these vital emergency services from collapsing
and pledging to use the Spending Review to restore council funding to 2010 levels over the next four
years.

1.2

The broad economic outlook from the Office of Budget Responsibility (OBR) is one of low growth in the
gross domestic product (GDP) to 1.5%, the lowest forecast in history as no previous forecasts have
been below 2%. Between 2010 and 2020 central government funding to local government is due to
reduce by 63% in real terms. Whilst public finance funding is due to grow by 1.6%, the NHS,
International Aid and Defence are protected, and this means that local government can expect no
growth in funding in real terms. Brexit is occupying the full capacity of the government and will continue
to do so leaving little scope for the public sector challenges facing local government. Some short-term
fixes have been announced but the reform required has not been given the attention it deserves.

1.3

The new CSR is promised for the four years 2020/21 to 2023/24 and is due at the end of 2019. The
CSR will include the outcome from the Local Government Fair Funding Review, due out in the summer
as well as the national business rates retention deal which sees increased reliance on local taxation. In
addition we still await the Green Paper on Adult Social Care, now promised for December.

1.4

In his Budget in October, the Chancellor announced a number of measures, many of them one-off,
which impact on Local Government funding. The announcements regarding adult and children’s social
care in particular, whilst welcome to help the short term budget pressures, are not long term funding
solutions. We expect to receive final confirmation of our 2019/20 funding in the Local Government
Finance Settlement due now after the Brexit vote. This is after this report is due to be ready for
publication and therefore we will make any necessary changes to our MTFS as a result of the
announcement in the Budget Report to Cabinet in February 2019.

1.5

There remains uncertainty around our funding position, however, we need a prudent and realistic basis
to work from, so in our current MTFS we have modelled future Government funding on a 7% reduction
over our MTFS period (this is supported by the Institute for Fiscal Studies’ view that Local Government
funding will fall by 7% over the period 2018/19 to 2022/23).

1.6

Therefore it needs to be understood that the funding figures we are currently working to are indicative
only, and likely to change as we get closer to the CSR year. However, we ensure our MTFS is organic
and each year we update the MTFS so as to capture changes in funding and any new pressures which
have arisen.
Chancellor Budget Announcements

1.7

The Chancellor made his Budget announcement on 29 October 2018, where some small one-off
funding measures were confirmed. This included an additional £240m in 2019/20 to support winter
pressures in adult social care. This follows the Adult Social care needs allocation process as in
2018/19, and has been confirmed as £1.5m for Lambeth. This is one-off funding, and will not be built
into 2019/20 budgets, but instead we will ensure this funding is available to adult social care to offset
related expenditure pressures during 2019/20. As growth has been built into the MTFS to manage such
4

Page 23
pressures, this additional funding will enable some of this to be released. The final position on this will
be confirmed in the Budget Report to cabinet in February 2019.
1.8

A further £410m of funding in 2019/20 for adults and children’s social care was also announced. The
only conditions of this funding are that it must be used to ensure that adult social care pressures do not
create additional demand on the NHS, and to be used to improve our social care offer to older people,
people with disabilities and children. We have recently received the indicative allocation and currently
that is £2.6m, with the split being within our remit to decide. Further work is required to decide upon the
allocation between Adult and Children’s social care services, the results of which will be reported in the
budget report to Cabinet in February.

1.9

In addition £420m was announced to help local authorities tackle potholes, and £150m of funding from
the National Productivity Investment Fund will be made available for small improvement projects such
as roundabouts. Lambeth’s allocation of the £420m pot has recently been confirmed as £462k.

1.10

The Chancellor also announced the creation of a Future High Streets Fund to invest £675m in England
to support local areas fund plans to redevelop their high streets and town centres. This will invest in
town centre infrastructure, including to increase access to high streets and support redevelopment and
densification around high streets. Although spread across the whole period up to 2022/23, 90% of this
funding is only to be made available after 2021/22.

1.11

As part of the Chancellors budget a number of announcements relating to Business Rates were made
and local government will be fully compensated for the cost of all new business rates reliefs confirmed.
These include:

1.12



Small Business Rates Relief: all retailers with a rateable value of £51k or less will receive a one
third reduction in their business rates bill in 2019/20 and 2020/21. This measure is expected to
benefit 90% of retail properties from April 2019.



Local newspaper relief: £1.5k discount for office space occupied by local newspapers to
continue in 2019/20

Public lavatories relief: a new 100% mandatory relief will be applied to all public lavatories, but will not
come into effect until 2020/21 due to an amendment in legislation required.
Voluntary Council Tax

1.13

The council is limited in its powers to raise revenue from council tax by central government caps.
Council tax is also not a progressive tax, as valuations are based on 1991 property values. Lambeth
house prices have changed dramatically in recent years but valuations have not risen as a result,
meaning the most expensive properties draw a relatively low level of taxation relative to their value.
One suggestion residents have made in recent years is that the council should increase council tax for
the wealthiest households. While the council does not have the power to make this change, we are
consulting on the option of a voluntary council tax contribution from residents in the highest council tax
bands and what services people think that should be spent on.
Spending Power

1.14

Our spending power consists of a number of items as set out in the Settlement Funding Assessment as
well as Council Tax. The pie chart below demonstrates the change in the funding mix over from this
year to the end of our current MTFS (2022/23):


The Revenue Support Grant (RSG) - this is no longer part of the cash limit in 2018/19.This has
been rolled into 100% Business Rates Retention with Lambeth being part of the London Pilot Pool,
5

Page 24









and in 2022/23 we expect 75% Business Rates Retention to have been implemented nationally. In
the past RSG was a significant part of the cash limit, in 2016/17 RSG presented 25% of the cash
limit, highlighting the funding shift to locally collected taxation.
Council Tax income is 31% (£117.6m) of our 2018/19 core funding but forecast to be 46%
(£135.9m) by 2022/23. It should be noted that within our MTFS we have assumed growth of
Council Tax at 2.99% increase in 2019/20, and 1.99% increase in each year from 2020/21 to
2022/23. Alongside this we have also made some assumptions on the general growth of the
council tax base through this period. This is subject to formal agreement in February 2019.
Business Rates Income - this is made up of our proportion of the business rates we retain, a top-up
from central government and an allocation of section 31 grants for some business rates reliefs
granted by Government- in total these are 53% (£152.8m) of our 2018/19 cash limit and projected
to be 48% (£139.5m) in 2022/23. The reason for the decrease is due to the shift from 100%
retention to 75% retention of growth.
New Homes Bonus (NHB), has started to decrease over this period, in 2018/19 NHB represents
3% of the cash limit (£9.7m), and still 3% in 2022/23, but a lower absolute value of (£7.6m) in
2022/23.
Better Care Funding (BCF) was introduced in the cash limit from 2017/18, and in 2018/19 it is 2%
of the cash limit (£6.4m), but by 2022/23 this is projected to be 3% (£10.2m) 2020/21 it is projected
to be 4% of the cash limit (£10.9m). A general rule here is when BCF increases NHB decreases.
Adult Social Care Support Grant, this was one off in 2017/18, but then a last minute adjustment to
the Local Government 2018/19 Final Settlement re-introduced it, so in 2018/19 this represents 1%
(£0.94m) of the cash limit. We do not see this continuing into 2022/23 as the Social Care Green
Paper is expected to resolve the funding position.
Table 1 Spending Power – Core Funding 2018/19 and 2022/23

1.15

Whilst our spending power is forecast to stay reasonably constant to 2022/23, albeit with proportional
changes, in real terms it is still reducing as the Financial Settlement does not take account of rising
costs. We have to manage and fund a number of pressures, which are directly linked to demographic
growth and demand led pressures within the borough. Current government funding formulas do not
take account of these pressures and are therefore not accounted for within the Financial Settlement.
The demand led pressures within Adult Social Care, Children Services and Temporary Accommodation
continue to grow, and we have built assumptions around these key areas within our Medium Term
6

Page 25
Financial Strategy, however, as we have seen in recent years the demand led pressures continue to
grow beyond assumptions.
2. Proposal and Reasons
Borough Plan
2.1

The council has responded to absence of central government focus on the challenges facing local
government and the financial pressures placed on public services and has coped well. The Borough
Plan published in 2016 focuses on ensuring inclusive growth and tackling inequality within the borough.
The council has recognised that local areas will need to work in partnership to show the creativity and
drive to reform public services and enable places and communities to meet these challenges. Although
difficult decisions will be required, with its capacity for growth and change, its diverse and dynamic
population, and its world-class partnership potential, Lambeth is well–placed to make this a reality.

2.2

Lambeth has summarised what it needs to do into four pillars, growth, resilience, independence and
place, GRIP.

2.3



We will enable growth and development in the borough. This will protect our core revenue streams
and provide opportunities for our residents to improve their life chances.



We will ensure that the benefits of growth increase community resilience, and that we target our
investment in early help and preventative services to where there is the best return.



We will reform the way we commission and deliver services with our partners to provide and
promote care and independence.



We will make sure that Lambeth is a place where people want to live, work and invest.

How we will do it:


By tackling inequality. There are persistent inequalities of opportunity and outcome in the borough
and we will continue to challenge this, including by following the recommendations of the Lambeth
Equalities Commission.



By collaborating. Working with our communities and mobilising our partnerships will enable us to
achieve the best possible outcomes for Lambeth.



By being transparent. We need to promote trust and confidence so that we can work together with
our communities and our partners.



By delivering value for money. We must ensure that our delivery arrangements are robust, and that
we act commercially to make sure that outcomes are achieved and returns on investment
maximised.

Medium Term Financial Strategy
2.4

The MTFS aims to provide relative protection to frontline services, recognising the extent of savings
and efficiencies achieved in previous years. We have worked to ensure that our financial strategy
supports the delivery of the Borough Plan, and supports the four pillars of the council Growth,
Resilience, Independence and Place by ensuring we have a refined focus on our service provision for
both vulnerable children and adults; helping to bridge the inequality gap. In parallel, however, we must
continue to focus on our universal service provision to enable us to manage within the ever decreasing
cash limit.
7

Page 26
2.5

The financial strategy relies on the priorities in the Borough Plan to drive inclusive growth and have
strong and sustainable neighbourhoods. Lambeth must support inward development because this
provides funding for the Capital Investment Programme through Community Infrastructure Levies (CIL)
and S106 income, to further contribute to our Borough Plan aspirations.

2.6

The Council’s Budget report was agreed at Council in February 2018 which set out a total funding gap
of £40.739m 2018/19 to 2020/21. The report included £28.456m of already agreed savings from the
previous financial planning round (reported to Cabinet in February 2017) in addition, £2.5m of identified
mitigations, and a further £6.783m of savings were presented and agreed, resulting in a balanced
budget over 2018/19 to 2020/21.

2.7

The MTFS was updated to capture the changes in funding and expenditure pressures 2019/20 to
2022/23. The new funding gap of £43.232m was reported to Cabinet in the 2018 July Finance Planning
Report. At this point the funding gap was reduced through previously agreed savings over the period
2019/20 to 2020/21, which totalled £16.802m, and as such the residual funding gap was £26.43m.

2.8

Tackling youth violence is an important feature of the council’s priorities. The release of some of the
growth put in pace to manage the pressures in Adult Social care referred to in paragraph 2.38 means
that there will be capacity in the MTFS to provide funding for the new initiative. An indicative figure of
£0.5m for 2019/20 has been identified. The final figure will be confirmed in the Budget report to Cabinet
in February 2019.

2.9

In addition, as new savings have been proposed this has presented an opportunity to review the
brought forward savings to ensure that the full offer and impacts have been considered as a package.
Consequently we have revised some of the brought forward savings including profiling, and as such
this report presents the full suite of savings, which total £43.676m against a target of £43.232m,
resulting in £0.444m surplus over the target. In most instances the savings have now been pushed
back into future years, leaving a gap of £1.878m in 2019/20 still be filled. Table 2 below sets out this
summary position. Work is ongoing to review opportunities for bringing savings forward and to further
reduce pressures in the light of current budget performance.
Table 2

Total Funding Gap as per MTFS
Total Proposed Savings
Revised Funding Gap/(Surplus)

2019/20
£'000

2020/21
£'000

2021/22
£'000

2022/23
£'000

TOTAL 20192023 £'000

23,318

8,525

9,387

2,002

43,232

(21,440)

(7,029)

(7,630)

(7,577)

(43,676)

1,878

1,496

1,757

(5,575)

(444)

2.10

In progressing a set of new saving proposals, we have ensured that they support the Borough Plan
priorities, and align with the four pillars Growth, Resilience, Independence and Place or GRIP; enabling
development and growth in the borough and ensuring the benefits of growth increase community
resilience; targeting early help and prevention; commissioning and delivering services to promote
independence and promoting Lambeth as a place to live, work and invest in. Appendix 6 shows the
council’s priorities set out within the pillars.

2.11

The council’s services contribute to the priorities and the budget savings have been allocated across
the four pillars (Corporate services are shown as supporting all the pillars). The service savings are
shown against the relevant pillar. The reason for a small achievement in the growth pillar reflects that
most of the expenditure in this area is funded from capital rather than the general fund.
8

Page 27
Table 3
GROWTH
SAVING
TARGET
AS % OF
BUDGET

RESILIENCE

17%

SAVING
TARGET AS
% OF
BUDGET

INDEPENDENCE

17%

SAVING
TARGET AS
% OF
BUDGET

17%

PLACE
SAVING
TARGET AS
% OF
BUDGET

CORPORATE

17%

SAVING
TARGET AS
% OF
BUDGET

17%

OVERALL SAVINGS TARGET = 43,232
TOTAL
SAVINGS

258

TOTAL
SAVINGS

4,672

TOTAL
SAVINGS

20,248

TOTAL
SAVINGS

6,035

TOTAL
SAVINGS

12,463

GRAND TOTAL PROPOSED SAVINGS = 43,676
OVERALL (OVER) / UNDER ACHIEVEMENT OF TARGET = (444)
TOTAL
SAVINGS
AS % OF
TOTAL
BUDGET

2.12

4%

TOTAL
SAVINGS
AS % OF
TOTAL
BUDGET

19%

TOTAL
SAVINGS
AS % OF
TOTAL
BUDGET

14%

TOTAL
SAVINGS
AS % OF
TOTAL
BUDGET

16%

TOTAL
SAVINGS
AS % OF
TOTAL
BUDGET

16%

Table 4 below confirms the indicative savings targets that were allocated by directorate over the next
four year planning period, and how new saving proposals have helped to achieve a balanced budget
over the MTFS.

Table 4

9

Page 28

2018/19
Budget
£'000

Net Revenue
Budgets

Savings
Total Total
Savings
Target
Saving
Saving
Saving
Saving
Savings
% of
2019- Proposals Proposals Proposals Proposals Proposed 2018/19
2023
2019/20
2020/21
2021/22
2022/23
2019-23 Budget
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000
£'000

Adults and Public
Health
Children's

81,537
70,855

10,819
12,155

3,038
3,892

2,244
2,933

2,351
2,850

2,986
2,480

10,619
12,155

13%
17%

Neighbourhoods
and Growth

41,402

6,374

3,869

437

1,717

1,260

7,283

18%

No Recourse to
Public Funds

3,347

431

431

0

0

0

431

13%

Corporate
Resources
Corporate Items

56,117
34,270

7,792
5,662

4,483
5,727

1,480
-65

712
0

851
0

7,526
5,662

13%
17%

287,528

43,233

21,440

7,029

7,630

7,577

43,676

TOTAL

Saving Proposals 2019/20 to 2022/23
2.13

This report presents to Cabinet the saving proposals which help to address the £43.232m funding gap,
and the detail around these proposals can be found in Appendix 1, and a brief outline is provided in the
paragraphs below.

2.14

Adults and Public Health Net budget £81.537m, have proposed a total of £10.619m of savings,
which is 13% of their budget. Of the total savings: £8.627m is being proposed from Adult Social Care,
£0.521m from Supporting People and £1.471m from Public Health.

2.15

Income Generation £0.629m proposed savings, through:



2.16

Contract management £0.601m by:





2.17

Reviewing fees and charges in areas including reducing the automatic Disability Related
Expenditure allowance and charging for day care transport
Subcontracting block contracted residential care beds paid for by the council to the NHS

Negotiating lower contact value in 2019/20 with Aspire Wellbeing
Stopping using a care management assessment tool to save subscription costs
Some costs currently met from Supporting people budgets to be charged in rent and services
charged and paid for form Housing Benefit
Commissioning a new weight management contract, review current public mental health promotion
with a view to embedding it within the Lambeth Living Well Alliance and reorganise the
management of the programme support for health improvement

Transformation of services £6.134m of proposed savings through:



Introducing bandings for residential / nursing placements in Learning Disabilities to help negotiate a
favourable price with providers.
Developing employment opportunities for clients with eligible needs to reduce dependency on Adult
Social Care.
10

Page 29














2.18

Staffing restructure £0.85m through:



2.19

Providing accommodation in a new resource centre at Coburg Crescent at lower cost than existing
providers.
Reprocuring advocacy services with the aim of delivering better value for money.
Optimising local Supported Living accommodation to provide new capacity and avoid using higher
cost placements.
Moving a cohort of clients to new placements and access a capital grant to make the placements
suitable.
Negotiating a reduced contract level in 2019/20 for Shared Lives scheme
Redesigning the transitions pathway from children’s to adults care with a view to reducing costs.
Integrating supporting people services for Learning Disabilities with adult care services and align
service provision with level of need.
Creating a more integrated health improvement service.
Sexual Health testing savings resulting from the introduction of a new pricing mechanism; new
specifications for services; the use of e-services.
Savings in substance misuse mainly from the redesign of the Integrated Treatment consortium.
Reducing the management charge for GP Federations to bring it in line with the market rate and
update the pricing and specification for the GP substance misuse service.
Reducing contingency budgets held for detox and rehab.
Local Care Networks - opportunities to reduce costs are realised through the integration of Health
and Social Care services and the use of alliance contracting arrangements.

Reductions in Adult Social Care, Commissioning and Public Health staffing.
Redesigning the careline service by outsourcing care handling and integrating call response with
alternative providers and making alternative arrangements for the installation and maintenance of
equipment.

Change in Service Provision £2.405m proposed savings by:







Supported Living development for Learning Disabilities clients to transfer existing clients to
Supported Living settings and avoid admissions to residential care.
Reviewing home care packages that are for less than 10 hours of care per week; review of home
care packages for people with Physical Disabilities and over 65 years of age that cost more than
£500 per week with the view of promoting longer term independence; confirm the ongoing need to
community meals with existing service users and where appropriate find alternative provision that
meets their nutritional needs and provides better outcomes.
Realigning Deprivation of Liberties pathway once new legislation is in place which is expected to
reduce administration and duplication in the process.
Identifying out of borough placements that are eligible for NHS rather than Council funding.
Closing Brixton step scheme.

2.20

Children’s Services Net budget £70.855m, have proposed a total of £12.155m of savings, which is
17% of their budget. Of the total savings: £9.355m is being proposed from Children Social Care,
£2.275m from Other Children’s Services and £0.525m from Education, Learning and Skills.

2.21

Income Generation £0.1m by a reduced contribution across a range of education services that will be
made up by increased trading of services with schools.

2.22

Contract Management £0.85m of proposed savings through:


Reducing the number of spot purchases in Children’s Domiciliary care through a recommissioning
of the integrated contract framework with Adults Social Care colleagues.
11

Page 30



2.23

Transformation of services £8.18m of proposed savings through:







2.24

Faster rollout out direct payments as a means for parents and families to pay for short breaks
Eliminating the potential for supplication/inefficiency in pathway regarding purchase, maintenance
and recycling of specialist equipment for children with SEND
Recommissioning of Youth and Play contracts and review of premises related spend.

Restructuring children’s social care services in order to create the following specialist teams that will
in turn help to reduce the numbers of children that are in care: intensive family support team, repeat
removals team and reunification team.
Increasing the number of in house carers and developing and training existing in house fosters
carers to provide more specialist placements.
Better commissioning arrangements including: making better use of framework contracts to reduce
spot purchasing and to address insufficiency of in house carers, better negotiation and contracting
with providers, particularly those providing more than two placements, development of standardised
agreements and ceiling rates, roll-out of a dynamic purchasing system and participation in the
South London Commissioning Programme Looked After Children Project.
The introduction of a portal for integrated referral hub
Streamlining of activities in the Lambeth Safeguarding Children Board
Efficiencies and improvements in back-office functions across libraries

Staffing Restructure £2.525m of proposed savings by:







The creation of the new specialist teams in 2019 are expected to result in lower numbers of
children in care thus meaning that over time, we will further reduce reliance on agency workers
through improved career progression offer and potentially we will need fewer social workers in
some parts of the service
Restructure of Early Help Service
Restructure of the Youth Offending Service focusing on reduction of support officers and
integration of some case officer roles
Restructure of the Families Information Service
Reorganisation of the Integrated Children and Young People Commissioning team

2.25

Service Provision £0.5m through a change in delivery model around children’s centres.

2.26

Neighbourhoods and Growth Net Budget £41.402m have proposed a total of £7.283m savings,
which is 18% of their budget. Of the total savings: £1.609m is being proposed from Housing, £5.346m
from Environment, £0.19m from Growth, Planning & Employment and £0.138m from Strategic
Programmes.

2.27

Income Generation £2.576m of proposed savings through:








2.28

The extension of parking CPZ phases 2-4 based on resident demand, plus further CPZ rollout in
the south of the borough.
Reviewing parking permit and suspension fees and charges
On-street parking income
CCTV service improvements
New bulky waste pricing model
Increased income from HMO licensing activity
Increased Planning Performance Agreement income

Contract Management £1.65m of proposed savings through:
12

Page 31




Retendering of waste and cleansing contract
Purchasing replacement cremators
Leisure Estates contract retender

2.29

Transformation of Services £3.057m of proposed savings through:
 Leisure estate- generate additional income from the contract
 Active communities grants- reduce grants to voluntary and community sector
 LED central management system for street lighting
 Increase in food waste recycling
 Reducing the parking bad debt provision top-up
 Frontline service review creating generic service offer in Housing
 Reduction in Temporary Accommodation bad debt provision top-up
 An increase in Housing Needs general fund charge to the Housing Revenue Account
 Savings in Temporary Accommodation costs through continuing service redesign
 Consolidation of support services budgets in Housing that are currently underspending
 Recommissioning of the Financial Resilience Strategy
 Homes for Lambeth- capitalising costs and reduction after Homes for Lambeth established

2.30

No Recourse to Public Funds Net Budget £3.347m have proposed a total of £0.431m savings, which
is 13% of their budget. This saving is in line with current activity in the budget, where a reduction in
client numbers has been seen.

2.31

Corporate Resources Net budget £56.117m and Corporate Items Net Budget £34.27m, have
proposed a total of £13.188m of savings, which is 15% of their budget. Of the total savings: £1.658m is
proposed from Business and Customer Services, £1.1m from Business Transformation, £0.381m from
Policy and Communications, £0.76m proposed from Corporate Affairs, £3.112m proposed from
Finance, £0.515m from Human Resources, and £5.662m in Corporate Items.

2.32

Income Generation £0.747m proposed savings, by:




Review of charges provided externally particularly in relation to Legal Services and Human
Resources support.
Increase income within the Registrars service by promoting the service, enabling more space to
carry out registrations and promoting merchandising.
Rental income associated with telephone rental masts to be moved to the general fund where
these are currently held within the Housing Revenue Account.

2.33

Contract Management £0.57m proposed savings, through: reduced contract costs associated with
Customer Services and ICT arising from reviewing performance metrics within contracts, ensuring
these are fit for purpose and meet the organisations requirements, and negotiating better fees on
existing contracts.

2.34

Transformation of Services £6.769m proposed savings, through:





Reductions in miscellaneous non-staffing budgets across the directorate
A decrease in general fund expenditure within ICT, particularly when some of these costs form
part of the wider capital projects
A reduction in external audit costs and a review of technical budgets such as interest income and
expenditure
Review of the level of provisions for bad debt
13

Page 32
2.35

Staffing Restructure £5.102m proposed savings through a review of staffing across the Directorate
including Finance, Policy & Communications and Corporate Affairs.
Managing the Delivery of Savings

2.36

The delivery of the Council’s savings proposals requires strong programme and project management
and this is provided by the oversight of the Budget and Performance sub-group of Management Board.
The group is chaired by the Chief Executive and has senior directors from each of the departments.
The terms of reference of the sub-group are:


To develop budget strategy and oversee its implementation with reference to, and consideration of,
performance.



To review budget implementation plans where interventions at the services level and the
management board sub-group have not delivered expected progress.



To review performance information relating to corporate outcomes and performance analysis on
outcomes or services where interventions have taken place at the service level, and at the
management board sub-group, and yet improvement has not met expectations.

.Financial Management
Revenue
2018/19 Revenue Q2 Forecast Position
2.37

The current position on the General Fund is a forecast overspend of £0.745m for 2018/19. This
continues to be managed down and progress is monitored by Management Board and Cabinet. The
forecast is shown in Table 5 below and the key pressures on budgets are summarised below. A
number of the forecast pressures are demand-led and are being experienced by other councils across
the country, including SEN, adult social care, and children services.

2.38

Adult Social Care has an underlying pressure of £5.34m, made up of various third party pressures,
most prominently relating to home care provision. However, due to the receipt of additional grant
funding the service is forecasting no variance against budget. Mitigations to reduce expenditure are
being developed to ensure that there is sufficient Government funding still available to meet
expenditure needs next year.

2.39

Children’s Social Care are forecasting an overspend of £2m on placements and £1.4m on children
centres. A £4.2m forecast overspend on Special Education Needs will be funded by the Dedicated
Schools Grant. Mitigating actions to address the forecast overspend on Social Care Placements include
reviewing the highest cost placements; reviewing the purchasing arrangements for emergency
placements and transition arrangements.

2.40

Corporate Resources is forecast to underspend by £0.127m.

2.41

Neighbourhoods & Growth is forecast to underspend by £1.335m; predominately made up of an
underspend of £0.897m on accommodation services, £0.246m surplus on parking income and
underspends arising from vacancies across the service.
Table 5 General Fund Forecast Outturn 2018/19

14

Page 33
Directorate
Adults & Public Health
Children's Services
Neighbourhoods & Growth
Corporate Resources
NRPF
Corporate Items
TOTAL - General Fund

2.42

Full Year
Budget
£m
83.977
71.231
42.921
52.971
3.354
33.074
287.528

FY
Forecast
£m
83.835
72.997
41.586
52.844
2.937
33.074
288.273

FY
FY
Variance
Variance%
£m
(0.142)
0%
2.766
4%
(1.335)
(3%)
(0.127)
0%
(0.417)
(12%)
0
0%
0.745

The current financial performance of the council has been taken into consideration when formulating
the saving proposals, as confirmed in Section 2. We are confident that current in-year pressures are
being managed, and in light of the Chancellor Budget announcements in respect of additional one-off
funding to support Adult Social Care in 2019/20, the underlying pressures reported will be sufficiently
mitigated, to allow time for the new savings to be fully embedded. The savings that are being proposed
have been carefully considered across the council. The in-depth discussions have focussed on
grouping savings together to understand the full package on offer and what the potential impacts and
risk could be, so are able in a position before the savings are implemented to mitigate these as far as
practicably possible.
2018/19 Housing Revenue Account October 2018 Forecast Position

2.43

The Housing Revenue Account is projecting to breakeven
Table 6 Housing Revenue Account Forecast Outturn 2018/19

Housing Services (HRA)
Central HRA Budgets
Strategic Programmes
TOTAL HRA

Full Year
Budget
£m

FY
Forecast
£m

FY
Variance
£m

FY
Variance
%

62.578
(77.378)

59.008
(75.764)

(3.570)
1.614

(6%)
2%

14.800
0

16.756
0

1.956
0

13%

Reserve Position and Forecast
2.44

The Reserves Strategy sets out the Council’s current approach to ensuring that the level, purpose and
planned use of its reserves are appropriate in the current financial climate. Our overall approach is to
use the financial strength of our balance sheet to help the Council through a period of high risk caused
by severe funding reductions and economic stagnation.

2.45

Table 7 below confirms our current reserve forecast position to this financial year-end, whilst also
forecasting to 2023. The MTFS has set a reserve level of 10% of the net general fund budget which will
be built up over the life of the MTFS.
Table 7 2018/19 to 2022/23 Reserve Forecast

15

Page 34
Forecast Y/E
2018/19
£m

Forecast Y/E
2019/20
£m

Forecast Y/E
2020/21
£m

General Fund Balances

23.789

25.228

26.667

28.106

29.545

General Fund Reserves

36.105

35.068

35.334

35.602

35.861

Total GF Balances & Reserves

59.894

60.296

62.001

63.708

65.406

HRA Reserves

44.141

27.268

24.768

22.268

22.268

104.035

87.564

86.769

85.976

87.674

Total

Forecast Y/E Forecast Y/E
2021/22
2022/23
£m
£m

3. London Business Rates Pilot Pool
3.1

In the Spring Budget 2017, the London Devolution Memorandum of Understanding included a
commitment to exploring options for granting London government greater powers and flexibilities over
the administration of business rates, including supporting the voluntary pooling of business rates within
London, subject to appropriate governance structures being agreed.

3.2

Following the establishment of a pan London business rates pool to pilot the previously proposed
principles of 100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/19, the Memorandum of Understanding as
confirmed in Appendix 2 confirms the commitment by the Government, the Mayor of London and
London local government to pilot the principles of 75% business rates retention in 2019/20 through the
continuation of the pan-London business rates pool.

3.3

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) comes into effect from 01 April 2019 and expires on 31
March 2020. This MOU is not intended to be legally binding, and no legal obligations or legal rights
arise between the parties from this MOU.

3.4

Pilot Principles: The pilot pool will be voluntary, but will include all 32 London boroughs, the City of
London Corporate and the Greater London Authority.

3.5

From 01 April 2019 the London Authorities will retain 75% of our non-domestic rating income. We will
also receive section 31 grants in respect of Government changes to the business rates system which
reduce the level of business rates income. Section 31 grant will amount to 75% of the value of the lost
of income. Tariffs and top-ups will be adjusted to ensure cost neutrality.

3.6

In moving to 75% business rates retention, the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local
Government will continue not to pay Revenue Support Grant to the London authorities in 2019/20.

3.7

We will be subject to more onerous rules or constraints under the 75% rates retention pilot, than we
would have been if we had remained subject to the 67% scheme in place in 2017/18, reflecting the
incremental impact of the Greater London Authority’s partial pilot as a result of the ‘rolling in’ of its
Revenue Support Grant and the Transport for London investment grant. No ‘new burden’ will be
transferred to London and participation in the pilot will not affect the development or implementation of
the Fair Funding Review.

3.8

Distribution of Financial Benefit: The 34 London authorities will prepare a framework agreement for
the operation of a pilot pool in which, assuming the pool has ‘growth’ in comparison to its business
rates baseline:
16

Page 35
 Each authority will receive at least as much from the pool as they would have individually under the
existing 67% retention scheme;
 15% of any net financial benefit will continue to be set aside as a ‘Strategic Investment Pot; and
 The resources not top-sliced for the investment pot will be shared between the GLA and the 33
billing authorities (the 32 boroughs and the City of London Corporation) in the ration 36:64, in
accordance with the principle previously agreed by London Councils and the GLA in the joint
business rate devolution proposals to Government in September 2016.
3.9

Strategic Investment: The Mayor of London commits that the GLA’s share of any additional net
financial benefit from the pilot will be spent in strategic investment projects. Decision on the allocation
of the GLA’s share will be made by the Mayor of London.

3.10

For this purpose and for the separate joint Strategic Investment Pot, ‘strategic investment’ will be
defined as projects that will contribute to the sustainable growth of London’s economy or support the
delivery of new infrastructure, housing or employment, which lead directly to or are expected to
facilitate an increase in London’s overall business rates income.

3.11

The joint strategic investment pot will be spent on projects that meet each of the following
requirements:




Contribute to the sustainable growth of London’s economy and an increase in business rates
income either directly or as a result of the wider economic benefits anticipated;
Leverage additional investment funding from private or public sources; and
Have broad support across London government in accordance with the proposed governance
process.

3.12

Governance: Decision regarding the Strategic Investment Pot will be taken formally by the City of
London Corporation, as the lead authority, in consultation with all member authorities, reflecting voting
principles designed to protect Mayoral, borough and sub-regional interest, agreed under the 2018/19
100% pilot and previously endorsed by Leaders and the Mayor in the London Finance Commission
(both 2013 and 2017), and set out in the London Government’s detailed proposition on 100% business
rates in September 2016.

3.13

Evaluation: The Government will undertake a qualitative evaluation on the progress of the pilot with
focus on the governance mechanism and decision making process, and the scale of the resources
dedicated to strategic investment.

4. Capital
Looking Forward: Future Capital Investment
4.1

The Capital Investment Programme (CIP) is an amalgamation of both General Fund and Housing
Revenue Account capital schemes and is analysed to show how capital investment is spread across
the Community Outcomes. It also shows where investment is supporting the entire organisation through
enabling projects.
17

Page 36
4.2

A CIP was set by the Council in February 2018 reflecting the resources that were known to be available
at the time. Since the Budget report in February 2018, the programme has now been re-profiled and
updated with new information including the addition of new projects and finalisation adjustments for
others.

4.3

These amendments have resulted in a revised working CIP for the 3 years 2018/19 to 2020/21 which
totals £313.0m with additional planned investments totalling £54.7m held in the capital pipeline, the
most significant of which relates to the proposed theatre and workspace on Somerleyton Road in
Brixton. The CIP comprises the investment needed to maintain and enhance our existing estate
together with continuing investment in developing our asset base through new build, acquisition or
investment in existing assets. This planned 3 year investment includes £125.6m in relation to the
Housing Revenue Account (HRA).

4.4

Appendix 3 shows the analysis of this working CIP for the 3 years 2018/19 to 2020/21. The planned
spend for the current 2018/19 financial year within the Capital Investment Programme now totals
£187.4m. Forecast spend by the end of the year currently stands at £140.9m. It is expected that capital
funding unspent within 2018-19 will roll forward to 2019-20, subject to confirmation that the relevant
capital project is progressing in a satisfactory manner.

4.5

Appendix 4 demonstrates how this 3 year CIP will be financed. The proposed working CIP rolled
forward for the three years 2018/19 to 2020/21 will be submitted for formal approval in February 2019.
At this point it is to be expected that the capital budget proposed for 2019/20 will exceed the current
figure of £76.02m as projects on the capital pipeline are confirmed and moved into the CIP.

4.6

Capital investment is continuing to take place in a time of considerable uncertainty due to both Brexit
and the lack of clarity around central governments legislative agenda and, so the Council will need to
continue to prioritise its Investment and retain flexibility within the wider capital programme. Areas of
particular concern are around investment in Housing and Commercial Property where Investment is
underpinned by an expected return from rents or sales income which are dependent on the wider state
of the economy. The Council continues to progress a huge range of significant regeneration projects in
areas right across the borough including Waterloo, Vauxhall and Nine Elms, Tulse Hill, Brixton and
West Norwood and thus capital investment in these areas will be subject to continuous review.

4.7

Expenditure continues to take place related to a number of key capital strategies, including Culture
2020, the Parks Investment strategy and the Highways Improvement strategy which are bringing
council owned roads and facilities right across the borough up to the highest standard. It is important
that these plans are updated and required spend is projected into the future to ensure long-term
funding can be identified.

4.8

Capital receipts from rationalisation of the council’s existing asset base are much reduced, current
forecast non-Right To Buy (RTB) disposal receipts for the 2 years 2018/19 to 2019/20 is £13.2m. Due
to this development income in the form of receipts for CIL or S106 is likely to be the main source of
funding to meet capital investment needs in future years, as the level of grants received from central
government is also decreasing. The Council has the option to borrow to finance capital investment and
this may well be appropriate where the capital expenditure generates an income stream or helps the
Council to achieve revenue savings, but in undertaking borrowing the Council needs to be mindful of
the impact of interest costs on the wider revenue budget.

4.9

Lifting of the HRA Borrowing Cap by Central Government gives the Council the opportunity to review its
capital expenditure funded from the HRA in future years. However, it should be noted that as any
additional borrowing would increase the capital financing costs within the HRA both now and in the
future, the recent reductions in rent imposed by Central Government have reduced the ability to fund
additional borrowing for expenditure on maintenance of the existing stock from the rental
income. Borrowing from the HRA could be seen as an option for increasing the level of new build
18

Page 37
council housing, however the Council will need to evaluate the risks and rewards of this delivery
method compared to the option of using Homes for Lambeth as currently envisaged.
5. FINANCE
5.1

This report is all about the Council’s financial position and the implications of this for service planning
and delivery.

6. LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
6.1

The Council has a duty to maintain a balanced budget throughout the year and, accordingly, members
are required to regularly monitor the Council's financial position. In implementing the Council’s financial
strategy for 2019/20 and subsequent years, members will need to balance the proposed level of
expenditure in discretionary areas of service provision against that required to ensure that the Council
complies with its statutory duties.

6.2

Section 28 of the Local Government Act 2003 imposes a duty on the Council to monitor its budgets
throughout the financial year, using the same figures for reserves as were used in the original budget
calculations. The Council must take necessary appropriate action to deal with any deterioration in the
financial position revealed by the review.

6.3

The Housing Revenue Account is a ring-fenced account. Transfers to and from the account are
prescribed.

6.4

In reaching decisions on these matters, members are bound by the general principles of administrative
law. Lawful discretions must not be abused or fettered and all relevant considerations must be taken
into account. No irrelevant considerations may be taken into account, and any decision made must not
be such that no reasonable authority, properly directing itself, could have reached. Members must also
balance the interests of service users against those who contribute to the Council’s finances. Monies
may not be expended thriftlessly and the full resources available to the Council must be deployed to
their best advantage. Members must also act prudently and in a business-like manner at all times.

6.5

In considering the advice of officers, and the weight to be attached to that advice, members should
have regard to the personal duties placed upon the Director of Finance (DoF) as Chief Financial Officer.
The Chief Financial Officer is required by Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 and by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 to ensure that the Council’s budgeting, financial management,
and accounting practices meet relevant statutory and professional requirements. In the event that the
Council’s overall financial position worsens considerably during the remainder of 2018/19, the DoF will
need to have regard to the statutory obligations which are placed on her personally when deciding on
any particular actions to be recommended to Members to address her concerns.

6.6

This proposed key decision was entered in the Forward Plan on 08 June 2018 and the necessary 28
clear days’ notice has been given. The report will be published for five clear days before the decision is
approved by Cabinet. A further period of five clear days, the call-in period, must then elapse before the
decision is enacted. If the decision is called-in during this period, it cannot be enacted until the call-in
has been considered and resolved.

6.7

Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 sets out the public sector equality duty, i.e. that all public bodies
are under an obligation to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality
and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, and
maternity, marriage and civil partnership, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation

6.8

Section 149 (1)(b) of the Act states that: a public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have
due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
19

Page 38
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. Part of the duty to have “due regard” where
there is disproportionate impact will be to take steps to mitigate the impact and the Council must
demonstrate that this has been done, and/or justify the decision, on the basis that it is a proportionate
means of achieving a legitimate aim. Accordingly, there is an expectation that a decision maker will
explore other means which have less of a disproportionate impact.
6.9

The Equality Duty must be complied with before and at the time that a particular policy is under
consideration or decision is taken – that is, in the development of policy options, and in making a final
decision. A public body cannot satisfy the Equality Duty by justifying a decision after it has been taken.

7. CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
7.1

We are committed to working with our communities so that they can help themselves and be more
resilient to the change in local services. Also, we are determined to talk to communities about the tough
choices we have to take so we can make sure we are making the best use of the declining amount of
money we received from Central Government. In order to find the best solutions wherever possible, we
have engaged and consulted stakeholders in recent years on a range of issues and have also
undertaken our annual residents survey (June 2016).

7.2

Between now and 14 January 2019 we will consult residents on proposals that are contained in this
paper. We will do this in a wide range of ways including a newsletter to all residents, posters in libraries,
email, social media and via Lambeth’s vibrant and diverse civic society, including the Lambeth Forum
Network. The decision on the budget will be informed by the results of this consultation.

7.3

For 2019/20 we will develop a programme of community engagement, consultation, co-design and
research around specific changes in services. This will enable us to: better understand the views (and
needs) of local people; target our resources where they are most needed; and achieve our Borough
Plan objectives. This will help our decision making on savings proposals identified for 2019/20 and
beyond.

8. RISK MANAGEMENT
8.1

None for the purposes of this report.

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Our Organisational Approach to Equalities
9.1

Lambeth Council has a firm political and organisation commitment to reducing inequality. ‘Achieving
fairness for all’ is a commitment which is embedded within the current administration’s political
manifesto. The council’s four-year partnership strategy Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan for 2016-21,
also emphasises the council’s ambition to make Lambeth a stronger, fairer and more prosperous
borough through inclusive growth; reducing inequality; and building strong and sustainable
neighbourhoods. It sets out a range of priority outcomes relating to the strategic objective of reducing
inequality.

9.2

The Lambeth Equality Commission, which reported in July 2016, also proposed a set of areas that the
council needs to focus on to reduce inequality in the borough. These were:





Tackling education underachievement
Tackling low pay and poor working conditions
Council workforce leadership and diversity
Reducing the impact of crime on Lambeth’s young people
20

Page 39
9.3

The organisation is in the process of implementing these, with a one year progress report currently
being completed.

9.4

The council’s decisions about where to make savings; where to invest; and how to transform services
are informed by the strategic objectives and priorities set out in the Borough Plan, and by the priorities
recommendations areas set out by the Lambeth Equality Commission . Furthermore, the council has
prioritised those areas and functions that will enable us to encourage economic growth, foster
resilience, deliver care and foster independence and create positive places and spaces for citizens and
residents of Lambeth.
Budget Equality Analysis Approach

9.5

Given the scale of budget cuts being faced by the council it is inevitable that citizens will be impacted.
Understanding what the impact might be, and where possible putting in place mitigation to negate or
reduce any adverse impacts is important. Our cooperative approach means that we will work closely
with citizens to understand possible adverse impacts and put in place mitigations. We will also look to
work with communities to build on the strengths that exist and enhance their resilience. By coproducing activities and building on what already is in place within communities and neighbourhoods
we feel better able to mitigate some of the impacts of the changes outlined in this report.

9.6

The council has taken a risk-based approach to analysis of equalities impacts of budget proposals and
identified proposals where there are perceived to be groups that may be disproportionately impacted
(compared to overall Lambeth population). As the proposals have developed, they have been screened
for potential impacts on those with protected characteristics. It also includes an analysis of nonstatutory equalities considerations; language, socio-economic and health and social wellbeing which
Lambeth includes within its equalities approach.

9.7

Analysis identifying potential risks and mitigations has been shared, discussed and developed with
decision-makers and senior officers. Cabinet members have had the opportunity to see and comment
on the analysis as it has been developed, and to use it to inform their discussions and decision making
as part of the budget development process. Each proposal will have an accompanying Equalities
Impact Analysis (EIAs) to provide analysis of the potential equality impacts of the proposed change and
where relevant suggest or recommend the appropriate mitigations. These will be published prior to the
implementation of any proposed change. Detailed proposals and the analysis will also be reviewed by
the Corporate Equalities Panel.

Our Analysis
9.8

The qualities analysis identifies those groups, by protected characteristic, who may experience
negative impact as a result the changes proposed. Based on the analysis of the savings proposals and
their predicted impacts, the equality groups most affected are: socio-economic; age (children and
young people and older people); disability; sex; race and ethnicity and health and wellbeing.

9.9

Appendix 5 offers a more detailed overview of this analysis, including a summary of those proposals
assessed as having potential impacts on groups sharing protected characteristics. This equalities
analysis also sets out mitigating actions that may need to be considered as decisions are being made
about the savings proposals.
Next Steps

21

Page 40
9.10

It is important to note that the approach for assessing the equalities impact of savings proposals is an
on-going process. At this stage the analysis is indicative and as individual proposals are further
developed and implemented, they will be subject to further assessment.

9.11

A full review of the equality impacts in respect of the proposed savings made within this round of
financial planning will be done once all the savings proposals have been developed, and as such we
will report our findings through the February 2018 Budget Report.

9.12

Full Equalities Impact Assessments will be undertaken for those proposals with identified equalities
risks as part of the development and preparation of the saving proposals implementation.

10. COMMUNITY SAFETY
10.1

None for the purpose of this report.

11. ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental implications
11.1

None for the purpose of this report.
Staffing and accommodation implications:

11.2

None for the purpose of this report.

12. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
12.1

None

Audit trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Jackie Belton, Strategic
Director
Christina Thompson, Director
of Finance and Property
Alison McKane, Legal
Services
Wayne Chandai, Democratic
Services
Councillor Andrew Wilson

Report history
Original discussion
with Cabinet Member

Lambeth
cluster/division or
partner
Corporate Resources

Date Sent

Date
Received

Comments in
para:

27/11/2018

Corporate Resources

23/11/2018

Corporate Resources

03/12/2018

Corporate Resources

03/12/2018

05/12/2018 Section 7

Cabinet Member for
Finance, Councillor
Andrew Wilson

27/11/2018

05/12/2018 throughout

28/05/2018
22

26/11/2018 throughout

Page 41
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Report no.
Part II Exempt from
Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on
forward plan
Key decision reasons

05/12/2018 (Cabinet)
07/12/2018

Background
information

Revenue & Capital Budget 2018/19 – 2020/21
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s93611/Budget%20Report%20%20COUNIL-%20FINAL.pdf

No

Yes
08/06/2018
Financial

July Finance Planning Report 2018/19 – 2022/23
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/documents/s96706/2018%20July%20FPR%20%20FINAL.pdf
Draft Statement of Accounts 2017/18
https://www.lambeth.gov.uk/sites/default/files/ec-draft-statement-of-accounts2017-18.pdf
Appendices

Appendix 1- 2019-2023 Saving Proposals
Appendix 2 - Business Rates Pilot Pool- Memorandum of Understanding
Appendix 3 - Capital Investment Programme (CIP) 2017/18 to 2019/20
Appendix 4 - Financing of CIP 2017/18 to 2019/20
Appendix 5 – Equalities Impact Assessment
Appendix 6 – Council Pillars

23

This page is intentionally left blank

Directorate

Saving Category

Cabinet
Member

2019/20
Saving
£'000
316

2020/21
Saving
£'000
313

2021/22
Saving
£'000

2022/23
Saving
£'000

Adults & Public Health Income generation

Cllr Davie / Cllr
Dyer

Adults & Public Health Procurement /
Contract

Cllr Davie / Cllr
Dyer

491

110

Adults & Public Health Service Change

Cllr Davie / Cllr
Dyer

839

755

525

286

Adults & Public Health Service
Cllr Davie / Cllr
Transformation (non- Dyer
staffing)

1,042

616

1,776

2,700

2019-23 Total
Savings Description
Saving
£'000
629 • Review of fees and charges in areas including reducing the automatic Disability Related Expenditure allowance
and charging for day care transport.
• Subcontract block contracted residential care beds paid for by the Council to the NHS.

Risks

Risk Mitigation

•Advice will be provided to individuals that wish to cease their service; a financial assessment of
service users will take place to ensure that they are able to meet the proposed charges; work will
take place to maximise the benefits of service users.
• A quality improvement programme is in place with the provider; the Council can reduce the beds
subcontracted although this will impact income.

• Risks around the viability of Aspire to maintain current service levels at a lower contract price in
2019/20.
• Risk of contract dispute with provider over the termination clause.
• The proposals rely on the cooperation of the landlord to change charges to rent or service charge
and there is some risk of this not occurring where the support provider and landlord are different
organisations.
• Changes may contribute to a worsening of health indicators which could increase demand across
health and social care; negative impacts on communities where there is evidence of higher
prevalence of mental ill health; capacity constraints could impact the ability of Public Health to
deliver on programmes to deliver improved public health.

• Engagement with service users, carers and Aspire's staff and management.
• Officers are consulting with procurement on the termination.
•Commissioners will liaise with support providers, landlords and the Council's benefit service to
ensure there is a clear pathway and understanding of the proposal to ensure its delivery.
• Various actions including development of web based information, working with partners to ensure
that those with complex needs linked to obesity have access to a more individualised support offer;
build mental health and wellbeing outcomes into all commissioned services; protect key
programmes from capacity constraints.

2,405 • Supported Living development for Learning Disabilities clients to transfer existing clients to Supported Living
settings and avoid admissions to residential care.
• Review of home care packages that are for less than 10 hours of care per week; review of home care packages
for people with Physical Disabilities and over 65 years of age that cost more than £500 per week with the view of
promoting longer term independence; confirm the ongoing need to community meals with existing service users
and where appropriate find alternative provision that meets their nutritional needs and provides better
outcomes.
• Realign Deprivation of Liberties pathway once new legislation is in place which is expected to reduce
administration and duplication in the process.
• Identify out of borough placements that are eligible for NHS rather than Council funding.
• Close Brixton step scheme.
• Loss of tenancy support for private rented sector.
• To de-commission the Family Nurse Partnership service while also looking more holistically at a redesign of
children's public health services (focusing on health visiting) to ensure future sustainability.

• The project is a proof of concept which may not deliver as intended; the complexity of changing
support for service users may result in delays.
• That the majority of packages for less than 10 hours per week are required resulting in a lower
than expected saving; savings on the packages over £500k can only be estimated at this stage and
actual savings may be lower than expected; alternative meals provision cannot be identified and unit
costs of the meals contract increases as demand reduces.
• Risk that the new legislation on Deprivation of Liberties does not provide the expected
opportunities.
• Lack of engagement in review process by out of borough Clinical Commissioning groups causes
delays.
• People with substance misuse will not receive a specialist service.
• More people may lose their private sector tenancy.
• Vulnerable mothers do not receive intensity of current wraparound service provision; safeguarding
risk.

• Robust programme oversight and governance.
• Regular reporting to ensure the project is on target to deliver the anticipated savings; the scope of
the project can be altered if the necessary savings are unlikely to be delivered from the selected
cohort; meal volumes will be monitored.
• Risk mitigation for Deprivation of Liberties to be informed by the legislation.
• The nationally determined Continuing Health Care framework will be robustly applied.
•The impact of the closure of Brixton step will be monitored.
• The impact of the loss of tenancy support will be monitored.
• Reconsider role of Early Intervention Health Visitors to include this cohort in their remit.

6,134 • Introduce bandings for residential / nursing placements in Learning Disabilities to help negotiate a favourable
price with providers.
• Develop employment opportunities for clients with eligible needs to reduce dependency on Adult Social Care.
• Provide accommodation in a new resource centre at Coburg Crescent at lower cost than existing providers.
•Reprocure advocacy services with the aim of delivering better value for money.
• Optimise local Supported Living accommodation to provide new capacity and avoid using higher cost
placements.
• Move a cohort of clients to new placements and access a capital grant to make the placements suitable.
• Negiotiate a reduced contract level in 2019/20 for Shared Lives scheme
• Redesign the transitions pathway from childrens to adults care with a view to reducing costs.
• Integrate supporting people services for Learning Disabilities with adult care services and align service provision
with level of need.
• Create a more integrated health improvement service.
• Sexual Health testing savings resulting from the introduction of a new pricing mechanism; new specifications for
services; the use of e-services.
• Savings in substance misuse mainly from the redesign of the Integrated Treatment consortium.
• Reduce the management charge for GP Federations to bring it in line with the market rate and update the
pricing and specification for the GP substance misuse service.
• Reduce contingency budgets held for detox and rehab.
• Local Care Networks - opportunities to reduce costs are realised through the integration of Health and Social
Care services and the use of alliance contracting arrangements.

• Providers may not engage in negotiations following bandings and agree to new approach in a
limited market.
• Complexity of support required may mean the proposal is not cost effective.
• If clients aren’t identified at the start there will be slippage in savings.
• Risk that the quality of advocacy services will decline.
• The project is dependent on the assumption that there will be unused Supported Living
placements that become available.
• The capital grant is not available and the works take time which delays the savings.
• Risks of reducing the contract value for shared lives will be evaluatedduring negiotiation.
• For transitions, legal challenges may occur relating to assessment decisions; the diagnostic may
reveal a lower savings opportunity than assumed.
• Integrating supporting people funding may result in higher social care packages which negates any
saving.
• Complexity of system redesign of health improvement may result in delays in achieving savings.
• Ability of London wide programme to deliver transformed sexual health services.
• Those with complex needs may not be able to access substance misuse services.
• GP practices may withdraw from the scheme or capacity to deliver may be reduced.
•Reduced contingency budgets for detox and rehab will reduce the ability to respond to increases in
demand or increases in placement costs.
• Various risks around Local Care Networks including the ability of providers to work within the
required financial envelope in the context of an increasing population and an increasing complexity
of people's conditions.

• Transparent negotiations will take place with providers regarding bandings and price negotiations.
• Following employment, a full assessment and support plan will be in place.
• Steering group in place to ensure that risks on Coburg Crescent are managed.
• The tendering exercise will ensure quality and value for money.
• Market opportunities and unused capacity in Supported Living has been identified and a robust
programme governance is in place.
• On transforming care, indications are that the capital grant will be made available.
• On shared lives, consultations with carers and service users will take place.
• For transitions, robust individual assessments will take place with strong oversight.
• For integrating supporting people funding, careful assessments of client needs will take place to
ensure that appropriate packages are provided.
• For health improvement a joint Council and Clinical Commissioning Group design group will be put
in place with the aim on maximising the impact of investment.
• On Sexual Health there will be active engagement with the transformation project.
• For substance misuse, mainstream service providers will be trained to pick up need.
• Working with Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group and GP Federations to streamline
contractual arrangements and assessing the impact of the new pricing.
• Demand for detox and rehab will be monitored and if placement costs increase cheaper providers
will be sought.
• Robust financial modelling and programme management will take place on Local Care Networks in
order to monitor how achievable savings are as the project progresses.

• There is a risk that reductions in staffing will result in increased expenditure on packages of care, a
decrease in performance and difficulties with staff retention.
• The cost of the new service may be higher than expected and reduce the expected savings; call
handling may not be effective and increase response demand.

• Vacant posts will be reviewed to avoid or reduce the number of redundancies from staff
reductions; changes in processes or pathways will be made to reduce the impact on performance;
there will be more senior management scrutiny of package costs.
• Project management is in place to monitor and manage the risks; the specification for call
handling is to be clear to reduce the impact on call response.

601 • Negiotiate lower contract value in 2019/20 with Aspire Wellbeing
• Stop using a care management assessment tool to save subscription costs.
• Some costs currently met from Supporting People budgets to be charged in rent and service charges and paid
for from Housing Benefit.
• Commission a new weight management contract; review current public mental health promotion with a view to
embedding it within the Lambeth Living Well Alliance; and reorganise the management of the programme
support for health improvement.

850 • Reductions in Adult Social Care, Commissioning and Public Health staffing.
• Redesign the careline service by outsourcing care handling and integrating call response with alternative
providers and making alternative arrangements for the installation and maintenance of equipment.

Adults & Public Health Service
Transformation
(staffing)

Cllr Davie / Cllr
Dyer

350

450

50

Children's Services

Income generation

Cllr Brathwaite

0

0

0

100

100 • A reduced council contribution across a range of education services that will be made up by increased trading of As schools budgets become tighter their ability to pay for additional services becomes reduced and
services with schools.
thus they may choose not to buy the services that are being offered or opt for a reduced service.

Schools will be consulted prior to any changes being introduced

Children's Services

Procurement /
Contract

Cllr Brathwaite

500

0

30

320

850 • Reducing the number of spot purchases in Children's Domiciliary care through a recommissioning of the
integrated contract framework with Adults' Social Care colleagues; Faster roll-out of direct payments as a means
for parents and families to pay for short breaks; Eliminating the potential for duplication / inefficiency in pathway
regarding purchase, maintenance, and recycling of specialist equipment for children with SEND.
• Recommissioning of Youth and Play contracts and a review of premises related spend.

• There is a risk that providers only offer one blanket price to individual families and commissioners,
a risk that children and families ‘vote with their feet’ to the extent that LBL is left paying for an
underused contract and also paying for direct payments and there is a risk around the potential for
families to misuse Direct Payments.

• We will seek to structure contracts with providers to agree a ‘commissioned price’ and a ‘public
price’, meaning there is a better value offer for our population to access independently. Financial
case should be demonstrable to ensure that working together across Adults’ and Children’s will
benefit all parties.

Children's Services

Service
Cllr Brathwaite
Transformation (nonstaffing)

2,134

2,121

2,193

1,447

7,895 • Restructuring Children’s Social Care Services in order to create the following specialist teams that will in turn
help to reduce the numbers of children that are in care: intensive family support team, repeat removals team,
reunification team;
• Increasing the number of in house carers and developing and training existing in house foster carers to provide
more specialist placements;
• Better Commissioning arrangements including: making better use of framework contracts to reduce spot
purchasing and to address insufficiency of in house carers, better negotiation and contracting with providers,
particularly those providing more than 2 placements, development of standardised agreements and ceiling rates,
roll-out of dynamic purchasing system and Participation in the South London Commissioning Programme (SLCP)
Looked After Children Project.
• Introduction of a portal for Integrated Referral Hub.
• Streamlining of activities in the Lambeth Safeguarding Children Board.

• A detailed risk log with mitigations is available for this set of proposals including the risk that
looked after children’s stability, education and relationships could damaged by moving from external
to in-borough provision.
• Risk that IFAs will not continue to contract with the council at a lower rate.
• There would be a lead in time when the portal is being introduced when emails with multi agency
referral forms might still be received.
• Changes to Working Together guidance may have an impact on current LSCB arrangements.

• Placement moves would occur over time through planned placement changes, breakdowns and
new entrants into provision. Local placement would enable more children to maintain their family,
community and education links when they become looked after.
• Better procurement and contracting and fewer spot purchases for IFAs will result in more
consistent approach to contracts with IFA’s without any reduction in the quality of care they
provide. The general reduction on the reliance on IFA’s will also result in a higher proportion of
children being looked after by foster carers approved by the London Borough of Lambeth.
• Consultation will be carried out with the staff members affected.

Children's Services

Service
Cllr Winifred
Transformation (nonstaffing)

71

74

77

63

285 • Efficiencies and improvements in back-office functions across libraries including better use of the new
Management Information Service.

Risk to service delivery is minimal

Page 43

• There is a risk that people will not want to contribute towards the cost of transport and will cease
using the service; there may be an increase in Member Enquiries and complaints as a result of these
changes; these changes will impact on the funds available to people with disabilities which could
have a negative impact on their lives.
• The beds may be unavailable due to quality concerns; if the Council sub-contracts too many beds it
may have to place people in to other homes resulting in increased cost.

Service
Transformation
(staffing)

Cllr Brathwaite

687

738

550

550

Children's Services

Service Change

Brathwaite

500

0

0

0

Neighbourhoods &
Growth

Income Generation

•Cllr Holland
• Cllr Gadsby
• Cllr Bennett

1,152

Neighbourhoods &
Growth

Procurement /
Contract

• Cllr Holland
• Cllr Winifred

-

Neighbourhoods &
Growth

Service
• Cllr Winifred
Transformation (non- • Cllr Holland
staffing)
• Cllr Gadsby
• Cllr Hopkins
• Cllr Bennett

No Recourse to Public
Funds

Service
Cllr Brathwaite
Transformation (nonstaffing)
Income generation
Cllr Wilson

Corporate Resources

2,717

397

-

40

2,525 • The creation of the new specialist teams in 2019 are expected to result in lower numbers of children in care thus
meaning that over time, we will further reduce reliance on agency workers through improved career progression
offer and potentially we will need fewer social workers in some parts of the service
• Restructure of the Early Help Service.
• Restructure of the Youth Offending Service focusing on reduction of support officers and integration of some
case officer roles.
• Restructure of the Families Information Service.
• Reorganisation of the Integrated Children and Young People Commissioning team.

500 • Changes to the delivery model around Children’s Centres.

• There is a risk that even if reductions are made the overall demand does not decrease and that
caseloads could thus increase to unsafe levels.
• There is a reduction in funding from the Troubled Families Grant which will also impact on delivery
in this area, there could be an increase in the number of cases going to FSCP because of a reduced
capacity within Early Help and there is a risk that partner expectations of Early Help transformation
programme are not sufficiently met.
• The Lambeth Youth Offending Service (YOS) Caseload is one of the more complex in London, with a
high number of custodial sentences, first time entrants and re-offending rates. The YOS are currently
18 months into an improvement journey and are currently preparing for a HMIP re-Inspection, a YOS
accommodation move, and the review of a core service that has been identified as requiring
significant improvement.
• Risk of loss of continuity of service in transition to new structure.

• Reductions in staffing will only be made once caseloads have begun to decrease.
• Case audits completed by advanced practitioners to look at which cases within Tier 3 early help
can be closed and stepped down. Regular engagement with partners through Early Help steering
group about progress of programme and willingness to respond to feedback.
• Support from Community Safety, Lambeth Co-operative and other community partners and
agencies in the management of risk and safety. Strengthening the internal Risk Management Panel
and ensuring that partner agencies are in attendance at the appropriate decision making level, to
ensure the success of this proposal.
• We have profiled the changes over a longer time period and previous backoffice functions will be
picked up by central business support
• Full consultation will be undertaken with all affected staff as part of the restructure.
• Ensure clear project plans are in place which should be adhered to during transition; Clarity on
what opportunities there are for progression within the service.

• The new model will require extensive engagement and consultation which could affect the
timetable.

• Consultation on the revised model is already underway

427

600

2,576 • Extension of Parking CPZ Phases 2-4 based on resident demand.
• Further CPZ rollout in South of borough.
• Parking Permit fees & charges.
• Parking suspensions fees & charges.
• On-street parking income.
• CCTV service improvements.
• New bulky waste pricing model.
• Increased income from HMO licensing activity.
• Increased Planning Performance Agreement (PPA) income.

• Assumed increase in demand from residents of parking and permit sales and short term parking.
• No appetite from residents for roll out and they are not implemented.
• Capital Programmes team do not secure funding to implement new CPZs. Car ownership
decreases.
• No control over whether customers will contine to use service in linewith existing levels.
• No control over motorists behaviour and whether they comply with parking rules.
• If additional take-up goes over contractors current capacity, there may be elays in service delivery.
Risk of no behaviour change.
• Assumptions around property numbers may prove incoprrect. Licensing feerecovery is cyclical and
varies from year to year. Increasing activity will require more resources.
• Brexit and a fall in the number of 'major' planning applications being submitted. Lack of willingness
to pay additional fees and potential poor performance due to staff shortages.

• Assess demand from residents.
• Limited mitigation ifadditional CPZs not rolled out. Could raise other fees and charges above
inflation to mitigate.
• Develop new permit types and or services to cover the costs of running the service.
• Monitor takeup in line with historic data.
• None identified.
• Continually review areas of non-compliance and relocate cameras as required.
• If take-up is high enought to cause contractor issues, there wouold be enough income to pay for
additional resources. Behaviour change to be reinforced by focussed education and enforcement.
• Work with data team to ensure that information is as accurate as possible. Regular
communication with landlords and marketing of scheme. Savings scheduled for 22/23 to allow for
monitoring and necessary adjustments.
• Analyse date to track economic trends with volume applications. Performance management
policies and procedures.

1,150

500

1,650 • Retendering of Waste and Cleansing contract 2021.
• Purchase replacement cremators.
• Leisure Estates contract retender.

• Limited supply market may limit competition, but conversely, high competitive tension may lead to
bidders pricing too low and under resourcing the service. Regulatory changes may drive up
operational costs (e.g. impact of ULEZ).
• Saving subject to loan approval for capital purchase and availability of cremators for purchase.
• Limited supply market may limit competition, but conversely, high competitive tension may lead to
bidders pricing too low and under resourcing the service. Posiible reduction in concessions given to
residents.

• Explore new delivery models and joint procurement opportunities with other WRWA boroughs
with a view to understanding best value.
• Discussion already underway with Corporate Finance re loan which will almost certainly be
successful. Discussions with suppliers underway to ensure there are no market issues that would
delay installation.
• Explore joint procurement with other boroughs and explore new delivery models to enahnce
market appetite. Effective governance arragnements to be put in place.

140

160

3,057 • Leisure Estate - generate additional income from contract.
• Active Communities grants - reduce grants to voluntary & community sector.
• LED Central Management System for street lighting.
• Increase in food waste recycling.
• Reducing Parking bad debt provision top-up.
• Frontline service review creating generic service offer in Housing
• Reduction in Temporary Accommodation bad debt provision top-up.
• Increase in Housing Needs GF recharge to the HRA.
• Savings in Temporary Accommodation costs thorugh continuing service redesign.
• Consolidation of support services budgets in Housing that are currently underspending.
• Recommissioning of Financial Resilience strategy.
• Homes for Lambeth - capitalising costs and reduction after HfL established.

• Significant additional income already built into budget in 16/17 may impact on achieveing target.
• Reduction in support for voluntary and community sector
• Potential ASB / policing impacts.
• Failure to achieve participation levels required to secure the diversion of food waste from the
residual waste stream.
• Any significant change in adverse payment rates or bailiff performance.
• Workforce unable to 'flex' to meet challenging homelessness/PRS/legislative environment. loss of
specialist skills.
• The implementation of Universal Credit and other Welfare Reforms may hinder the ability to
collect rents.
• No significant risks.
• Significant increase in TA numbers will mean supply of low or nil cost TA will be insufficient to
offset expenditure. Impoact of Homelessness Reduction Act. Uncertainity around grant formula to
be used going forward.
• Little to no risk identified.
• Will reduce the number of people who will be able to access advice and the types of advice
available.
• Delays in the HfL business plan programme and reliance on costs currently being funded from
revenue being capitalised or passported to HfL.

• Review costs over leisure estate and maximise additional income opportunities. May need to
reconsider charging policy.
• Consider 'corporate' budgets for VCS sector more holistically. Savings agreed in previous years to
allow groups to prepare exit strategies.
• Carry out risk assessment as part of project delivery to determine location and appetite for
reduced lighting at certain locations.
• Work closely with Reource London to monitor and analyse interventions over an extended periof
of time to ensure robust analysis.
• Continue to monitor performance for PCN issuance and improve performance of the back office.
Optimise performance reporting.
• Creating a single job role to introduce more efficient ways of working and decrease duplication
• Current forecasts suggest remaining top-up budget will be sufficient. Collections rates to be
monitored closely.
• No significant risks.
• WIll continue to maximise use of nil cost TA and identify opportunities for new lower cost TA.
Lobby Government through AHAS and London Councils to provide realistic funding for increasing TA
costs.
• Little to no risk identified.
• Work with local agencies and other stakeholders to co-design the service offer that would stillbe
available, increasing signposting to national agencies and seek funding from national funding
agencies.
• Part budget remains for HfL or Council use. HfL now established and gives three years to become
self-sufficient.

431 Client numbers have been reducing, which is evident from the current budget monitor

That current trend of reducing numbers of NRPF does not continue (incl. Brexit risk)

Consistent review and reporting of performance throughout the year

Carry out a review of charges to assess impact and ensure consultation with the HRA where any
chagres are being increased.

431

0

0

0

602

85

60

747 Review of charges provided externally particularly in relation to Legal Services and Human Resources support.
Increase income within the Registrars service by promoting the servcie, enabling more space to carry our
registrations and promoting merchandising. Rental income associated with telephone rental masts to be moved
to the general fund where these are currently held within the Housing Revenue Account.

There are risks relating to increases in prices driving away business and therefore not achieving
higher income. Where the charges are to the HRA this will need agreement on the HRA side.

100

570 Reduced contract costs associated with Customer Services and ICT arising from reviewing performance metrics
within contracts, ensuring these are fit for purpose and meet the organisations requirements, and negotiating
better fees on existing contracts.

Contactual savings may be reverses should the Council experience an unexpected increase in call
Recent trends do not support an increase in call volumnes, particularly with increased digitisation,
volumes. Altering contractual metrics in ICT, such as recovery time after a major event, would have a and the risk/benefit of the impact of altering contractual metrics will need to be calculated
service impact if such an event did occur.

Corporate Resources

Procurement /
Contract

Cllr Wilson

470

Corporate Resources

Service
Cllr Wilson
Transformation (nonstaffing)

5,633

645

275

216

6,769 Reductions in miscellaneous non staffing budgets across the directorate, a decrease in general fund expenditure
within ICT, particulalry when some of these costs form part of wider capital projects, a reduction in external audit
costs and a review of technical budgets such as interest income and expenditure and a review of the level of
provisions for bad debt.

Some no staffing budgets depend on the state of the wider economy and reductions in audit fees
may be reversed in significant work is required dealing with public inspection queries by the
auditors. Where costs are to be capitlaised, these will need separate approval from the capital
board.

Risks in this area will need to be continuously monitored together with their impact on the saving
proposals.

Corporate Resources

Service
Transformation
(staffing)

3,505

685

277

635

5,102 Reviews of staffing across the Directorate including within Finance, Policy & Communications and Corporate
Affairs

No particular risks identified

No particular risks identified

21,440

7,029

7,630

7,577

Total Proposed Savings

Cllr Wilson

43,676

Page 44

Children's Services

Page 45

Page 46

Page 47

Page 48

Page 49

Page 50

Page 51

Page 52

Page 53
Appendix 3 - Approved 3 Year Capital Investment Programme 2018/19 to
2020/21 as at 31st October 2018

Strategic
Priority

10 Year Outcome

Creating Inclusive
Growth

Increase Investment and regeneration in Lambeth
Lambeth Town Centres’ Regeneration
Improve transport infrastructure

Reducing Inequality

2020/21
Revised
Budget
£000s

Total CIP
£000s

3,249

0

0

3,249

3,249

0

0

3,249

4,063

1,417

0

5,480

4,063

1,417

0

5,480

A larger business base that makes a greater contribution to London's
economy

2,295

0

0

2,295

Investment in Community Workspace

2,295

0

0

2,295

41,676

5,006

4,863

51,545

Expansion and Enhancement of Primary Schools

13,196

4,006

4,863

22,065

Expansion and Enhancement of Secondary Schools

20,122

0

0

20,122

Investment in Education Projects

6,500

1,000

0

7,500

Expansion and Enhancement of Special Educational Needs Facilities

1,858

0

0

1,858

6,092

5,618

6,027

17,737

Vulnerable adults are supported to maintain their independence, stay
healthy and active
Home Improvements for Vulnerable Residents

4,197

0

0

4,197

Home Improvements for Vulnerable Residents (HRA)

1,100

1,100

1,100

3,300

Improvement of Social Care Provision

795

4,518

4,927

10,240

921

486

486

1,892

921

486

486

1,892

Improved health and wellbeing for all
Community Health Projects
People take pride in the streets of Lambeth

Building Strong & Sustainable Neighbourhoods

2019/20
Revised
Budget
£000s

Strategic Transport Infrastructure

Greater equality in education, training & employment

16,548

0

0

16,548

Enhancement of Streetscapes and Public Spaces

8,621

0

0

8,621

Investment in Waste and Recycling

920

0

0

920

Resurfacing of Footways and Carriageways

7,006

0

0

7,006

138

0

0

138

Lambeth is a safer place
Community Safety Projects

138

0

0

138

All Lambeth Communities enjoy good quality of life, feel valued & can
contribute to their neighbourhood

12,946

5,080

0

18,026

Creation and Enhancement of Community-run Buildings

679

256

0

935

Enhancement of Crematoria & Cemeteries

917

0

0

917

Investment in Culture and Heritage

722

0

0

722

Investment in Leisure Centres

1,073

4,296

0

5,369

Investment in Libraries and Community Hubs

2,697

528

0

3,225

Investment in Parks and Open Spaces

6,858

0

0

6,858

People live more sustainably

2,022

0

0

2,022

Creation of Cycling Infrastructure

580

0

0

580

Enhancement Of Street Lighting

1,442

0

0

1,442

83,866

56,996

38,200

179,062

Investment in Lambeth Housing Standard Boroughwide (HRA)

38,749

39,813

37,200

115,762

Housing Development Projects

40,866

16,184

0

57,049

Housing Development Projects (HRA)

2,251

0

0

2,251

2,000

1,000

1,000

4,000

13,550

1,417

0

14,968

The quality of Lambeth's housing is improved including newly built
homes of all tenures

Investment in Empty Properties (HRA)

Enabling

2018/19
Revised
Budget
£000s

Enabling

Grand Total

Investment in Corporate Office Accommodation

11,345

0

0

11,345

Improvement of Council IT Infrastructure

2,205

1,417

0

3,623

187,365

76,020

49,575

312,960

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix 4 - Financing of the 3 Year Capital Investment Programme 2018/19 to 2020/21 as at 31st October 2018

Funding Source

Creating
Inclusive
Growth
£000's

Reducing
Inequality (GF)

%

£000's

%

Reducing
Inequality
(HRA)
£000's

%

Grants

(3,002)

27%

(50,360)

74%

0

0%

S106

Building Strong
& Sustainable
Neighbourhoods
(GF)

Building Strong
& Sustainable
Neighbourhoods
(HRA)

£000's

£000's

%

(6,902)

7%

%

Enabling

£000's

0

0%

Total 3 Year CIP

%

£000's

%

0

0%

(60,265)

19%

38%

(2,620)

4%

0

0%

(6,231)

7%

0

0%

0

0%

(13,000)

4%

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

(25,698)

27%

(5,494)

5%

(0)

0%

(31,192)

10%

MRR

0

0%

0

0%

(3,300)

100%

0

0%

(91,717)

75%

0

0%

(95,017)

30%

S20 Receipts

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

(24,802)

20%

0

0%

(24,802)

8%

(1,768)

16%

(13,328)

20%

0

0%

(28,957)

31%

0

0%

(4,867)

33%

(48,920)

16%

0

0%

(0)

0%

0

0%

(10,500)

11%

0

0%

(8,431)

56%

(18,931)

6%

(136)

1%

(1,511)

2%

0

0%

(8,085)

9%

0

0%

0

0%

(9,731)

3%

(1,968)

18%

0

0%

0

0%

(6,645)

7%

0

0%

0

0%

(8,614)

3%

Capital Reserve

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

(96)

0%

0

0%

0

0%

(96)

0%

Earmarked Reserve

0

0%

0

0%

0

0%

(151)

0%

0

0%

(1,670)

11%

(1,820)

1%

Revenue Contribution

0

0%

(55)

0%

0

0%

(518)

1%

0

0%

0

0%

(573)

0%

(11,023)

100%

(67,874)

100%

(3,300)

100%

(93,783)

100%

(122,013)

100%

(14,968)

100%

(312,960)

100%

Capital Receipts
Internal Borrowing
Recycled RTB (1-4-1) Receipts
CIL

Total

Page 55

(4,148)

Borrowing

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 57
Appendix 5: Budget equalities analysis 2018 - 2023
Overview
This Appendix constitutes the equalities analysis for the Revenue & Capital Budget 2019/2020 report. It
provides:
 a summary of the council’s legal obligations in relation to equality under the Equality Act 2010;
 an overview of the national and local context in which the council is making these decisions
 an assessment of the potential equalities impact of the 2018/2023 savings proposals on residents
sharing protected characteristics (and those characteristics recognised in Lambeth’s local
equalities policy)
 an explanation of how any impacts associated with these will be mitigated and monitored going
forward
 actions for implementation and next steps.
Public Sector Equality Duty: The council’s legal duties
Section 149 Equality Act 2010 requires public bodies to have due regard to the need to:
 eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct prohibited
by the Act;
 advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it; and
 foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do
not share it.
Protected characteristics defined by law include: race and ethnicity, disability, sex, gender reassignment,
age, sexual orientation, pregnancy and maternity, and religion or belief. Having due regard means that
the council is required to consciously think about the three tenets of the Equality Duty within the council’s
decision-making processes.
Under the duty, decision makers must be able to evidence that they have considered any impact of the
proposals under consideration on people who share the protected characteristics, before decisions are
taken. This also includes any decisions relating to how authorities act as employers; how they develop,
evaluate and review policies; how they design, deliver and evaluate services, and how they commission
and procure services from others.
By law assessments must:



Contain sufficient information to enable a public authority to show it has paid “due regard” to the
equalities duties in its decision-making; and,
Identify methods for mitigating or avoiding any adverse impact

In a financial context where significant savings are required it is essential that these are identified and
delivered in a balanced and sustainable way. The council have endeavoured to ensure the process
followed in assessing the equalities impact of savings proposals, is robust and rigorous in its consideration
of potential impacts on equality groups (protected characteristics), before decisions are made.
National context
Authorities across the country are facing serious challenges. The combined impact of long-term reductions
to public spending alongside increasing service demand means that there is considerable pressure upon
revenue budgets, with councils having to do more with less.

Page 58
At the same time, the council know that there are a range of pre-existing inequalities which affect
Lambeth’s residents, and that wider national trends may be increasing these. These include:
 ongoing changes to tax credits, benefits and indirect austerity taxation, which have been shown to
have a disproportionately negative impact on low income households1;
 the impact of transitioning from legacy benefits towards universal credit and use of sanctioning on
those either unable to work or stuck in low-paid/ precarious work. The EHRC has suggested that
this has weakened the safety net for these groups, leaving people at increased risk of poverty,
hunger, incurring debt and rent arrears and experiencing ill-health and homelessness2. Disabled
people, women and some BME groups are at particular risk.
 the increased incidence of in-work poverty. In Lambeth, most households living in poverty now
having at least one person in employment.
 a national housing shortage, with the issue of a lack of affordable housing being particularly
pronounced in London.

Lambeth’s Equalities Commitment
Lambeth Council has a firm political and organisation commitment to reducing inequality. ‘Achieving
fairness for all’ is a commitment which is embedded within the current administration’s political manifesto.
The council’s four-year partnership strategy Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan for 2016-21, also
emphasises the council’s ambition to make Lambeth a stronger, fairer and more prosperous borough
through inclusive growth; reducing inequality; and building strong and sustainable neighbourhoods. It sets
out a range of priority outcomes relating to the strategic objective of reducing inequality.
The Lambeth Equality Commission, which reported in July 2016, also proposed a set of areas that the
council needs to focus on to reduce inequality in the borough. These were:
 Tackling education underachievement
 Tackling low pay and poor working conditions
 Council workforce leadership and diversity
 Reducing the impact of crime on Lambeth’s young people
The organisation is in the process of implementing these, with a one-year progress report currently being
completed.
The delivery of these aims will also be informed and supported by other key strategies including the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy and Lambeth’s Workforce Strategy.
Budget prioritisation
The council’s decisions about where to make savings; where to invest; and how to transform services are
informed by the strategic objectives and priorities set out in the Borough Plan, and by the priority
recommendations areas set out by the Lambeth Equality Commission3. Furthermore, the council has
prioritised those areas and functions that will enable us to encourage economic growth, foster resilience,
deliver care and foster independence and create positive places and spaces for citizens and residents of
Lambeth.

1

EHRC (2015) Cumulative Impact Assessment: A research report by Landman Economics and the National
Institute of Economic and Social Research (NIESR) for the Equality and Human Rights Commission
2 EHRC (2018) The cumulative impact of tax and welfare reforms: A research report by Landman Economics and
Aubergine Analysis.
3 Lambeth Equality Commission Cabinet Report
Inequality in Lambeth

Page 59
Economic growth
The council recognises that economic growth can help to create opportunities for residents, and investment
in Lambeth, and that it is becoming an increasingly important source of revenue for the council. The council
has maintained investment in those functions that help to generate economic growth in the borough and
will work to maximise the return from its assets and investments. The council are focusing on increasing
its own organisational capacity around skills, low pay and progression so the council can identify
opportunities for local people, make sure they benefit from rapid economic growth in the borough, and
reduce key inequalities relating to low pay.
Resilience
Lambeth has also made substantial investment in those areas that help to foster greater resilience
amongst more vulnerable resident groups. It is ensuring there is an adequate financial advice and support
offer available to Lambeth residents who may be struggling financially. The council have also maintained
existing levels of support (£16 mil) to assist the most vulnerable with their Council tax and exclude many
people from any Council tax liability at all. The council has minimised reductions in early years and early
help to build families' resilience. This alongside building the specialist capabilities of early help function,
should improve value for money as the organisation’s capacity to act earlier in response to need improves.
The council has not taken any further savings from adult mental health and the budget is protected for the
next 7 years, recognising the importance of this service transformation in an area of priority need.
Significant reform of children’s services has focused on managing demand. Changes to the commissioning
of residential placements combined with greater investment in campaigns to increase numbers of local
foster carers and adopters should see better outcomes for looked after children and young people and
achieve greater value for money overall.
In youth and play services for children, the council has taken the decision to reduce spend on physical
assets and facilities management to ensure there is sustained funding for frontline youth provision. The
council is undertaking significant investment in specialist and targeted projects which will support positive
emotional development within young people and divert them away from crime and risky behaviours. The
council are also investing in localised interventions which should make a real difference to the lives of
vulnerable young people. It continues to build on the progress achieved in tackling violence against women
and girls and are making efforts to find alternative sources of funding to help us tackle youth violence in
the borough. Lambeth’s voluntary and community sector (VCS) play a key role in connecting and building
resilient and cohesive communities. The council is currently commissioning a VCS infrastructure contract
to help to build the capacity of the sector. It has also provided a crowd funding platform to support the
sustainability of local groups and build their capacity to find their own alternative sources of funding.
Care and independence
Where savings are being made in the area of health, this is largely through the integration of health and
social care and through working more closely with the local VCS. The council are strengthening this
relationship between the VCS and public sector through Lambeth Together and activities like social
prescribing. These alliances have brought significant benefits and the council are able to build on the
positive work of initiatives such as Living Well Network Alliance which is delivering positive mental health
outcomes from residents. The council has protected spend on respite care and short breaks for disabled
children and their families and sustained funding of mental health services for vulnerable children and
adolescents CAMHS. The council has also maintained services for vulnerable adults with complex needs
to ensure they have access to specialist multi-agency support.
Quality of Place
In relation to its responsibilities to maintain the quality of place the council is looking to make these services
financially sustainable by finding opportunities to raise income, re-contract and improve efficiency.
Investing in infrastructure and housing through the Capital Programme schemes allow the council to
Inequality in Lambeth

Page 60
address some of the symptoms of inequality by ensuring that residents live in decent homes and are
surrounded by improved public realm and accessible transport links. The council have also reduced
savings from libraries in recognition of the value of these assets as social hubs, community resources and
shapers of place.
Achieving Savings: Methodology
Making savings is a difficult task and the council has have sought to do this in a fair and balanced ways
using evidence and insight, and by applying sound judgement. It is delivering these savings targets in a
range of different ways including:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•

Transforming services: decommissioning services, reconfiguring service/teams and building
capacity to deliver/commission in-house and reduce the costs of external provision.
Using diagnostics/intelligence: using data and insight to review, rationalise and redesign
services, with a focus meeting priority needs, manage demand and reducing wastage.
Introducing fees and charges: increasing cost for certain services functions. In some cases,
charges reflect updated assessment of the cost of delivering specific functions and seek to cover
the cost of these.
Reducing service offer and targeting need: identifying those with the highest degree of need
and tailoring interventions to meet these.
Changing assessments and eligibility criteria: using more stringent criteria to ensure that those
in greatest need continue to get the support they are entitled to.
Reducing budgets: identifying efficiencies and economies of scale.
Staffing: reducing staff numbers and combining teams.

Budget equality analysis – risk-based approach
The council has taken a risk-based approach to analysis of equalities impacts of budget proposals and
identified proposals where there are perceived to be groups that may be disproportionately impacted
(compared to overall Lambeth population). As the proposals have developed, they have been screened
for potential impacts on those with protected characteristics. It also includes an analysis of non-statutory
equalities considerations; language, socio-economic and health and social wellbeing which Lambeth
includes within its equalities approach.
Analysis identifying potential risks and mitigations has been shared, discussed and developed with
decision-makers and senior officers. Cabinet members have had the opportunity to see and comment on
the analysis as it has been developed, and to use it to inform their discussions and decision making as
part of the budget development process. Each proposal will have an accompanying Equalities Impact
Analysis (EIAs) to provide analysis of the potential equality impacts of the proposed change and where
relevant suggest or recommend the appropriate mitigations. These will be published prior to the
implementation of any proposed change. Detailed proposals and the analysis will also be reviewed by the
Corporate Equalities Panel.
Potential equalities impact of departmental budget proposals: Methodology
The proposals analysed in this report have been taken from Consolidated Savings Proposals templates
2017/18-2019/20 and conversations with lead officers to explore potential equalities impacts in more detail
where necessary. The table below summarises those proposals assessed as having potential impacts on
groups sharing protected characteristics. This equalities analysis also sets out mitigating actions that may
need to be considered as decisions are being made about the savings proposals. It is important to note
that the approach for assessing the equalities impact of savings proposals is an on-going process. At this
stage the analysis is indicative and as individual proposals are further developed and implemented, they
will be subject to further assessment.
Inequality in Lambeth

Budget equalities analysis:
2019 -2020

APH
19.20
007

OP and PD
Domiciliary
and
Associated
Care
Services
Review

Service
change
(reduction
provision)

500

Detailed review of the
way
in
which
domiciliary
care,
reablement
services
and Community Meals
(meals on wheels)
provision
is
commissioned,
prescribed
and
delivered to disabled
and older adults.
Adopt
a
holistic
approach to consider
these
as

Who
affected?

is Potential equalities impact

Older people
(age),
disability;
health
and
wellbeing;
Socioeconomic

Older people,
disabled
adults
(and
their children)
with physical
and learning
disabilities,
carers, wider
familial
networks

Envisioned the needs of service users
will still be met but potentially in a
different setting. There may be negative
impact on users who may find a change
of provider disrupting especially if the
alternatives
are
further
away.
Mitigations include a review of any
service redesign specifications to
ensure they continue to meet the needs
of all those who are eligible to receive
this service.
It is intended that the review/diagnostics
will better enable Adult Social Care to
manage demand by identifying clients
who are currently in receipt of small
packages of care (1-10 hours). The
analysis and subsequent reviews will
establish whether these packages
continue to reflect/meet the needs of
older people and people with physical
disabilities. Where low-level care
packages have been used as a means
of ‘preventative’ care or support, there is
a risk these residents will be assessed
as ineligible in the future. There is

EIA status

EIA
planned
once
service
redesign
is
complete
and
changes
are
understood

Page 61

Adults and Public Health Saving Proposals 2019 2020
Ref
Proposal
Type
of Savin Proposed change
change
gs
000
19.20 Aspire Day Procurement/ 47
Review day service
A&P
Centre
contract
provision at Aspire
HWellbeing and develop
006
a preferred option for
the future delivery of
the
service.
The
chosen option will aim
to deliver savings on
the current cost of
provision.

EIA
will
be
undertaken
in
the project and
will consider any
change
to
current policy or
practise
in
designing
or
providing
packages
of
care.
EIAs
should only be
required should
a change of

interdependent social
care
services and
determine
requirements
for
current levels; identify
cost
effective
alternatives to maintain
health and wellbeing
and improve expected
outcomes.

Fees
and Income
charges

150

Mitigations: All reviews will be on a
case-by-case basis. Service users and
carers will be consulted prior to any
changes to packages of care. Workers
undertaking any reviews/assessments
will be trained in ‘strength –based’
approaches. This will underpin the
review process with service users and
carers and help to determine an
appropriate level of care package as
well as identify any potential alternative
sources of support available to address
assessed need. Where possible service
users will also be signposted to relevant
voluntary organisation e.g. Age UK
befriending services, etc. Reviews will
be robust and where a person’s needs
have decreased, workers will evidence
where required the availability of
alternative support to maintain the
client’s levels of resilience and capacity
for self-care. All this work will be
compliant with Care Act Legislation

policy or service
provision
be
needed. Each
work stream will
identify should
this occur and
an
EIA
conducted.

Page 62

APH
19.20

potential for any changes in the nature
and level of care received to be
unsettling for clients, and to have short
term negative impacts on the quality of
outcomes e.g. health and wellbeing and
social outcomes.

A proposal to review Disabled
Potential negative impacts on users with A
full
the charging policy people, older people ceasing to use services (i.e. to consultation as

6

009

Lambeth
Tenancy
Support
Private
Sector

Service
change
(reduction
provision

200
in

Decommissioning
Wide range of
Single
Homeless residents
Project service
across
the
equalities
spectrum
including but
not limited to

attend day service or college) due to
either an inability or unwillingness to
contribute towards the cost of transport.
It is possible that any new payment
process could result in disabled people
having less money available to carry out
their normal functions which could have
a negative impact on their day-to-day
living.

part
of
developing the
proposals
is
planned
circa
2019/2020

Mitigations: ‘Reviews of circumstances’
will be conducted for any individuals that
cease a service and financial advice
provided for them. Additional support
could include a financial Assessment
with Every Pound Counts teams, this
would involve working with affected
service users to help them maximise
benefits available them to enable
payment of any charges as far as
possible. As a precaution, a rigorous
financial assessment will be worked
through with those residents most likely
to be affected to establish their capacity
to meet the proposed charges before any
changes are enacted.
The proposal seeks to decommission
the advice and advocacy service
currently delivered by SHP and replace
with a more sustainable and costeffective solution. Going forward, private
sector tenants will receive assistance
from Lambeth’s Tenancy Support

Page 63

APH
19.20
018

within Social Care to people, sociorecover a proportion of economic
costs for chargeable
provided
commissioned
services.
Savings
yielded via a) service
users being charged a
‘flat
charge’
for
transport b) reduction
of Disability Related
Expenditure Allowance
to eligible service users
& c) limiting 6 weeks
free domiciliary care to
Reablement

EIA
will
accompany
consultation with
organisations
affected
including Single
Homeless

7

Other health Service
improvemen Transformatio
t
n
(non-staffing)

343

Reduction
in
size/spend
and
retender/redesign
of
existing
weight
management service
(225,000)

Ending subscription to
Good Thinking portal

Team/Service. Residents may benefit
from improved communication and
closer working relationships with
different aspects of housing services
which are able to help residents avoid
tenancy
loss,
eviction
and
homelessness. Those in need of this
service may present complex needs and
require intensive support. There is risk
that housing officers may not have the
expertise, knowledge or capacity to
manage this effectively. Mitigations: It is
intended that the new service will have
enough capacity to manage demand,
where needed, there is also the scope to
signpost residents to VCS organisations
for advice on benefits and assistance. In
circumstances where specialist support
is required (i.e. due to acute vulnerability
or high risk) there is scope to retain a
working relationship with Single
Homeless Project to meet their needs.

Disability and
health (Obese
adults),
low
income
individuals

This service change should see the
service being much more targeted
towards people with long term
conditions and other risk factors rather
than being a more universal service.
Whilst a more targeted offer will have a
positive
impact
for
those
disproportionately at risk, mainly BME
people and those with long term
conditions, there is a possibility that

Project
National provider
of services once
the decision to
close the service
has
been
ratified.
The
service
should provide
assurances that
there will be no
drop
in
the
standard
of
advice
offered
and that officers
will assume the
independent
advocacy
in
respect of other
agencies to seek
the best possible
outcome
for
tenants
Each aspect of
the
service
transformation
will have an EIA
completed. This
has
already
completed
occurred for the
Weight
Management

Page 64

19.20
A&P
H022

socially
excluded, low
income
families on inwork benefits,
unemployed
men on low
incomes,
BAME, ESOL,
mental health

8

Sexual
health

Service
552
Transformatio
n
(nonstaffing)

fewer people will be able to access the Service but will
service overall.
need
to
be
updated
Mitigations: There will be signposting to
alternatives including fee paying weight
management programmes, recognising
however, this may not suit all especially
where finances may be an issue. It is
expected the remaining programmes
including the Good Thinking portal will
have a minimal impact given the
coverage of the service. In the absence
of this resources, potential users of the
app will be signposted to either other
online resources about good mental
health and wellbeing or advice where
greater support may be required. Where
health improvement programme have
previously benefitted from programme
management support, this will now be
delivered by existing staff with
knowledge of the programmes.

1.Repricing/recontracting
sexual
health services in clinic
and online so as to
achieve pricing savings
(no
reduction
in
access) - £578k

It is anticipated these savings proposals
will have limited impacts. Of the four
elements, two are focused around
procurement and data management.
For the remaining, the success of these
proposal
is
reliant
upon
the
effectiveness of signposting with
potential impacts identified in relation to
channel- shift i.e. movement away from
GP-based testing towards new e-testing
services. Effective signposting will be

2.Ending funding given
to
GPs
for
HIV
testing/condoms

Young
people,
Ethnicity;
BME, Sexual
orientation
(men
who
have sex with
men)

Page 65

19.20
A&P
H024

and reduction of nonrecurrent budget to
support (£63,000)
Disability
(People with
3.Removal
of mental health
programme
issues)
management support
around
health
improvement (£55,000)

The service is
progressing with
EIAs for both the
HIV testing and
Sexual
health
proposals. EIA
are not required
for the pricing
change
and
analytics work

9

service and ending
subscription to national
HIV testing service in
favour of signposting
into London STI testing
e-service - £30k

important to mitigate the risk of people
not being aware of where to go to
access testing. However, the potential
re-focusing the GP service towards
contraception activity may assist in
reducing that risk.

3.Bringing the sexual
health analysis inhouse and reducing
spend on analytics £21k

Children and Young People Savings 2019 - 2020
Ref
Proposal
Type
of Saving Proposed change
change
000
17.18 Independent
Service
390
To reduce the cost of
CHN- Fostering
change
Independent
002
Agency
(non-staff)
Fostering
Agency
(IFA)
placements

Page 66

4.Reducing spend on
GP-based
sexual
health
enhanced
service from £143k to
£100k through focusing
the
service
on
contraception activity
rather than testing and
signposting
people
needing testing into eservice - £43k

Who
is
affected?
Children and
Young people,
disabled, BME,

Potential equalities impact

EIA status

The proposal should yield positive
outcome for children and young people.
Annual increases in the number of
Lambeth-based foster carers should

An EIA is not
planned. It is
anticipated the
impact
of

10

and increase the socionumber of Lambeth economic
Foster Carers. This
proposal is to reduce
costs as follows:
Best
value
commissioning and
contracting
arrangements
to
achieve best value
for the local authority
in
purchasing
placements
from
independent
providers.

enable those CYP for whom it is proposed
appropriate to maintains local links changes will be
(family,
friends,
education,
and positive.
amenities) and offer greater stability.
This could be of especial benefit to
vulnerable children with challenging
behaviours who should benefit from
access to local provision and social care
(see CHN 19.20 001) as well as a highly
trained cohort of foster carers able to
provide more specialist placement
offering locally.

Page 67

Increasing
the
proportion as well as
the total number of
children placed in with
Lambeth
foster
families.

CHN
18.19
004

Early Years
and Targeted
Support:
Early Years
Commissioni
ng

Service
change
(reduction in
provision)

500

To achieve savings to
the
early
years
commissioning budget
it
is
proposed
commissioning
priorities are reviewed
and reduced, and that
some services are
decommissioned, and
other
contracts

Early
years
commissioning
is
aimed at children
under five and their
families, with support
targeted to vulnerable
groups and those at
greatest risk of not
achieving
their
potential.

These proposals would reduce EIA
to
the range and volume of targeted commence 2018
services available to support
young children and their families.
The council would aim to mitigate
this impact as far as possible by
ensuring that:

11

extended for a further
year with at a reduced
cost and scope to be
negotiated
with
providers.
The council proposed
to undertake a recommissioning
process and issue new
contracts from April
2020.

Page 68

Current
commissioning
priorities for this
budget line are:
Support for young
parents
Support for perinatal
mental health
Community
based
parenting support
Support for digital
access and inclusion
Financial resilience –
advice and guidance
Support for families
speaking English as
an
Additional
Language
Training
and
employment advice for
parents
Support for children’s
emotional
and

A coordinated and integrated
Groups who will be early years pathway identifies
affected by these children and families with
changes include:
additional needs in the ante and
post-natal period and as any
Young parents under needs emerge, and that there are
twenty four and their clear processes for referral to the
children
services available at an early
stage.
Parents
requiring
support
for
their There is an increase in the
mental health and amount
of
adult
learning
wellbeing
in
the provision (including that targeted
perinatal period and towards parents with low levels of
their children
educational attainment, those
who are workless or in low paid
Parents
with
low work; and those speaking English
levels of educational as an Additional Language)
attainment
which is commissioned by the
Lambeth Adult Learning Service
Parents
who
are and delivered in children’s
workless or in low paid centres with crèche support. This
work
will include support for parents to
develop their digital skills and to
Parents and children learn English and Maths.
speaking English as
an
Additional The commissioning and range of
Language
support for perinatal mental
health in Lambeth is reviewed in
Parents and children partnership with the LEAP
in BAME groups
programme, and any gaps in
support are identified and action
Parents and children taken to address these.
living in poverty

12

physical health and
well being

The workforce development
programme developed as part of
the LEAP into Healthy Lifestyles
Project is made available to all
children’s centre and early years
staff borough wide, so that all
staff are equipped to provide
consistent advice and guidance
around healthy eating and
nutrition in the early years.

Page 69

Future
commissioning
priorities
with
a
reduced budget are
proposed as:
Support for young
parents
Community
based
parenting support
Financial resilience –
advice and guidance
Support for families
speaking English as
an
Additional
Language

The Alexandra Rose voucher
project
which
is
currently
delivered by a limited number of
children’s centres in Lambeth will
be rolled out across the borough
and targeted to families in
greatest need to ensure access
to free fruit and vegetables and
support around healthy eating
and cooking.

13

CHN
19.20
001

Children
Service
Social Care transformati
Placements
on
(staffing)

303

Reducing the number BME, disabled young
of children in the care people, LGBT, young
system and the cost of males and females
those in care via

Black
African
and
Black
Caribbean children are over
represented in Lambeth’s looked
after
and
leaving
care
populations. It is aim of these
proposals to support children
then to remain within their
family/community network or
where this isn’t possible, for them
to be cared for locally by carers
who are representative of the
diversity
within
Lambeth’s

Consultation and
EIA pending. As
understood that
impact is intended
to be positive.
It is suggested
that the service
could as part of its
monitoring/
evaluation
process includes
some
benefits
realisation
analysis to assess
nature of positive
impact achieved.

Page 70

(a)
Commissioning
and block purchase
options – Children
Looked After (LAC)
b)
Establish
an
intensive
family
support team
(c) Establish a repeat
removals team
(d)
Establish
a
reunification team
(e)
Corporate
Parenting approach to
growing
in-house
Fostering Service

This proposal is intended to have
a positive impact on looked after
children and care leavers as it is
underpinned by the principle that
children have better outcomes
when they are close to and/or
within their families and local
communities if looked after. The
service transformation entails
several changes including a new
commissioning and purchase
model for care. It is envisioned
the new infrastructure will
improve and increase capability
to monitor and manage risk and
safeguard.
Whereas
the
intensive
therapeutic
methodologies are designed to
enable professionals to support
children and families more
effectively and achieve to
positive outcomes.

Children’s
Services has a
statutory duty to
consider a child’s
ethnicity,
disability, religion
and sex in all
assessments,
decisions
and
planning.

14

community. The development of
the in-house fostering service,
alongside the establishment,
recruitment and training for the
specialist teams should reflect
evidence-based
interventions/best practice for
successful engagement with
foster carers, families, children
and young people from black and
ethnic minority backgrounds.

Page 71

As boys are overrepresented
within looked after and care
leaving
populations
it
is
proposed that the specialist
Edge-of-Care and Reunification
Team support a ratio of girls and
boys consistent with reducing the
proportion of boys who become
or remain looked after. The
‘repeat pregnancy’ aspect of the
proposal targets females with
focus of on reducing the number
of new babies entering the care
system where it is already known
they will be unable to remain
within their family network. This
aims to improve the mental
health and reduce the retraumatisation of very vulnerable
females who are often adult
victims of abuse and exploitation.

15

The Fostering Service intends to
build on its recruitment work to
encourage same sex individuals
and
couples
to
consider
fostering. In addition to providing
for direct work with and/ or the
recruitment of additional foster
carers who can meet the needs
of looked after children or care
leavers with disabilities.
19.20
CHN
005

Early Help

100

Transformation
of
early help services to
include a reduction in
posts, a move from
direct
delivery
to
capacity
building
services and improved
partnership
working
with
universal
services.

Low income families,
race and ethnicity
and age, health and
wellbeing.

The function currently provides
whole family intervention to
support families with multiple
needs around parenting, mental
health and family conflict. The
redesign of Early Help is
intended enable the service to
sustain itself in the longer-term
once central government grant
funding ceases to support
residents identified as Troubled
Families.
The impact of this change is
expected to be positive. The
service will build on the approach
being tested through the Early
Help Streatham Pilot which aims
to increase the ability of universal
services to deliver effective,
whole family interventions for
families with emerging needs.
Where families are identified as

Significant partner
engagement took
place
between
January-June
2018
(196
partners
completed
the
early help survey)
Consultation
between
November 2018January
2019.
Equalities impact
assessment
will
be developed in
conjunction with
the business case
circa
November
2019.

Page 72

Service
Change
(Reduction
in Provision)
Service
Trans
(Staffing)
Service
Transformat
ion
(non
Staffing)

16

having complex needs, they will
receive support from skilled early
help practitioners. The increased
capacity and remodelling of
service will also deliver positive
outcomes for children and
families in need of mid-level (Tier
2) support as they will be able to
access the appropriate level of
assistance to prevent their
escalation into statutory social
care services.

Page 73

There is a risk that the early help
service could place too great a
burden on universal services that
may
lack
the
specialist
knowledge or experience to meet
the need of these complex
families. There is also the
potential to overestimate the
capacity to replicate the success
of the Streatham Pilot and
reliance upon this success could
possibly lead to early help
service being unable to meet
demand. In addition, potential
changes to the team structure
and roles may be unsettling for
staff which may have a knock-on
effect for clients.
The success of this localised
model and outcomes for families
will be monitored on an ongoing
17

19.20
CHN0
06

Youth
Offending
Service

Service
62
Change
(Reduction
in Provision)
Service
Transformat
ion
(Staffing)

Decommissioning of
intervention projects
including St Giles;
Intervention
Programme and the
Wells Centre health
worker

Young BME, SEN
young male and
females, sex, socioeconomic,
health
and wellbeing,
Young
Offenders
and Children and
Young people at risk
of or involved in risky
behaviour

basis
with
practitioners,
professionals and programme
coordinators.
The decommissioning of these EIA pending.
diversionary programmes in their
current form (i.e. commissioned
by YOS). The new approach
should enable closer working
relationships and allow for better
economies of scale and more
efficient use of resources
amongst
partners
including
CCG, Community Safety and
Early Help.

Page 74

Under the proposal the Youth
Offending Service will have the
ability access specialist support
provided by these services from
elsewhere within council e.g.
community safety. This will allow
officers to draw on resources
needed to develop and deliver
targeted interventions based on
their understanding of their
clients and families. The current
model of health provision for
YOS will be improved as it will be
embedded within a broader
health offer provided as part of
Lambeth Clinical Commissioning
Group.

18

There may be a risk that case
workers may not be able to
access the advice service as
quickly as they might if the
contract remained in service.
Where gaps are found to exist,
the service will identify more
innovative ways of developing
staff drawing on expertise within
organisation, the borough and
across partnership.

Who
is
affected?
May
present
challenges for
older
people,
ESOL, disabled
(visual
impairment)
socioeconomic
(assumption of
ICT capability)

Potential equalities impact

EIA status

Page 75

Corporate Resources Savings 2019 – 2020
Ref
Proposal
Type
of Savings
Proposed
change
000
change
18.19.C Capita Call Service
50
Moving to an effortR
Centre
Transforma
based model which
(ORD)Volume
tion
(non
will release savings
001
Reduction
staffing)
every
6
months
commensurate
with
reduction
in
call
volumes. There are no
thresholds to be met,
therefore
all
reductions in effort will
deliver
price
reductions for the
Council.

The proposal seeks to encourage EIA pending
service users to use online
platforms to contact the council. It is
understood that most users 90%
can use online platforms. The
website
is
becoming
more
accessible and intuitive and easing
customer journeys easier thus
reducing the need to call. Where
clients
have
demonstrated
consistent challenge or shown they
are unable to access the online
service, they will have access to a
tailored or in-depth telephone
advocacy service and/or face-toface service within the customer
centre.

19

Neighbourhoods and Growth Savings 2019 – 2020
Ref
Proposal
Type
of Saving Proposed change
change
s
N&G
Recommissionin Service
40
Re-commissioning
17.18.- g the Financial change
advice
services,
037
Resilience
(non-staff)
focussing solely on
Strategy
welfare
benefit
advice (rather than
debt advice).

Who is affected? Potential equalities impact

The council currently funds advice Both an EIA and
on benefits, debt and housing from consultation are
the Lambeth Advice Network and required.
specialist benefit advice services
from in-house service Every
Pounds Counts. If implemented
the proposal will see a reduction in
service capacity, or may lead to
the service only being accessible
to certain groups of residents (e.g.
those on means-tested benefits)
and/or for certain types of advice
(e.g. appealing benefit decisions
made by Department for Work and
Pensions). Changes to residents’
ability to access these financial
resilience-based services which
offer advice on welfare benefits
and debt management, may have
a negative impact upon some
vulnerable residents (complex
needs, low income, private
renters, precarious employment).
This could extend beyond financial
impact to include health, wellbeing
and social impacts. Limited access
might increase the risk of these
households either getting into
debt/arrears
or
worsening
debt/arrears (i.e. rent, utilities,
etc), which in the worst cases

Page 76

BAME residents,
ESOL/new
arrived, disabled,
households
struggling
financially,
communities,
The council currently disabled, health
funds advice on and wellbeing
benefits, debt and
housing from the
Lambeth
Advice
Network
and
specialist
benefit
advice services from
Every
Pounds
Counts

EIA status

20

could lead to homelessness or
financial hardship. This may also
have impacts upon any young
and/or older dependants.

Page 77

In order to mitigate impacts, the
proposal will see a gradual
reduction in funding to enable less
established organisations to find
alternative sources of core funding
agencies from other local or
national funders (e.g. Money
Advice Service). There is the
potential for Lambeth to approach
Housing Associations to see if
they can contribute to the upkeep
of this service in the longer term
given their tenants may use or
benefit from these services. The
council will work with local advice
agencies and other stakeholders
over the coming years to codesign the advice offer that would
still
be
available.
The
implementation of an open
procurement for external advice
should enable providers (that do
not have a contract) to offer
solutions, new ideas, more
competitive management costs
and better value for money so the
sector can be sustained. Officers
and existing providers will where
their capacity is limited may also
be encouraged to signpost
21

residents to national
wherever possible.

advice

Extensions to Income
Parking CPZ
Phases
2-4
based
on
demand from
residents

1000

Further
CPZ
implementation
subject
to
need/demand and
consultation.
Additional
income
from Parking will go
towards Highways
expenditure

Low
income
households,
people
with
disabilities, older
people.

Low income houses will potentially
be negatively affected, those living
in houses of multiple occupancy
who may have more than one
vehicle and subject to higher tariffs
for additional vehicles. Disabled
residents may also be potentially
impacted as they may be limited to
dual parking zones on CPZ roads.
Whilst the council is trying to
promote active travel and use of
public transport, it may also be that
families using cars to travel to local
schools will be negatively affected.

A
statutory
consultation
is
required and will
need
to
be
included in the
timeline.

N&G
17.18
033

LED
Central Service
Management
change
System
(non-staff)

50

To reduce energy Age,
sex,
costs
for
street disability, race
lighting by 10%. The
savings
will
be
achieved through a
combination
of
reducing the light in
the early hours of the
morning where less
lighting is required

More lighting can lend to a greater
sense of security. In this regard, a
reduction in lighting may have a
negative impact on residents with
concerns about community safety
and the effects/rates of crime and
anti-social behaviour locally. This
may also have an impact on shift
workers (socioeconomic) who
may travel to work during early
hours.

To be carried out
in 2018/19 as part
of project delivery,
recommend HIA
as well to shape
proposals.

Page 78

N&G
17.18
031

Mitigation will be developed based
on a risk assessment carried out
as part of the project delivery to

22

New
Waste
Model

Bulky Income
Pricing

N&G
19.20
011

Permit
fees Income
and charges

30

100

Carry out an annual
review of fees &
charges, taking into
consideration
the
focus to reduce
vehicle emissions as
well as inflation.
Introduce permits in
new CPZ

Low
income
households,
people
with
disabilities, older
people.

Page 79

N&G
19.20
007

where lighting might be reduced
and the appetite for reduced
lighting at particular locations.
Reduction in number Potentially lower There is potential financial impact EIA
planned
of items collected for income
for those on lower incomes who 2018/19
an initial charge with households.
will now have to pay more in the
overall increase in
event of an increased need for the
price per item.
service which exceeds the
threshold. However more effective
promotion of availability of
recycling charities for reusable
items may mitigate the impact and
alleviate cost for some.

Low income households will Statutory
potentially be negatively affected, consultation
particularly those of multiple required
occupancy who may have more
than one vehicle and subject to
higher tariffs for additional
vehicles. Disabled residents may
also be potentially impacted as
they may be limited to dual parking
zones on CPZ roads. Whilst the
council is trying to promote active
travel and use of public transport,
it may also be that families using
cars to travel to local schools will
be negatively affected.

23

Page 80
Equalities analysis

Previous cumulative impacts analysis4 undertaken by the council assessed the cumulative impact of local
and national budget and policy changes 2011-2016. It looked at which population groups sharing protected
characteristics were negatively impacted by these changes, but also how people with multiple
characteristics might be impacted. This information was then used to help develop the equality priorities
in the Borough Plan.
This information provides useful context for the equality analysis presented here, in that, the budget
changes set may have impacts that contribute or exacerbate impacts that have taken place in the past.
This analysis identified that there are four population groups who have been negatively affected by
austerity, welfare reform, changes in the national economy and local service changes. These are as
follows:


Children in poverty with a focus on those who are homeless or living in temporary
accommodation, families living in poverty where children are subject to some sort of social care
intervention, families where there is a young person who has been convicted of a criminal offence,
families living in poverty where there is a disabled adult or child and young people from these
families not in education, employment or training.



Long-term low pay, with a focus on those living in the private rented sector (who have been more
exposed to rising housing costs and the impact of welfare reform), and on those groups who are
most likely to be low paid.



Long-term unemployed, with a focus on families with children, people from ethnic minority
backgrounds, have disabilities including mental health issues and be older working age.



Residents with multiple-complex needs. This group is made up of residents with the most
significant multiple and complex health and social care needs, and includes not just those who are
already in receipt of support from adult social care services, but also those who for various reasons
are not, but who have significant need nonetheless. This group will also include the carers of those
with multiple-complex needs.

It is important that the council takes into account the impact of previous decisions on these groups, when
assessing the impact this new set of decisions.
The equalities analysis identifies those groups, by protected characteristic, who may experience negative
impact as a result the changes proposed. Based on the analysis of the savings proposals and their
predicted impacts, the equality groups most affected are: socio-economic; age (children and young
people and older people); disability; sex; race and ethnicity and health and wellbeing.
These potential impacts are outlined below:
Children and young people (Age): Changes to the availability of, and/or the way in which targeted YOS
interventions and diversionary activities are accessed, may have a disproportionate impact upon BME,
children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND), young males, females (including families)
at risk of involvement in criminal activity, gang affiliation and other risky behaviour. Focusing funding on
4

Insert hyperlink

Page 81
higher-level (i.e. 2nd tier) targeted youth and play provision may lead to reduced service capacity and
potentially fewer positive impacts on the wider children and young people population.
Older residents (Age): Proposals to review and domiciliary spend could see older residents who are
currently in receipt of low-level care provision have this service amended or potentially reduced (or
increased) based upon their circumstances. Any changes to day service provision (e.g. location) could be
disruptive or disincentivise older people (including those with disabilities) from making use of essential day
services; increasing their risk of social isolation and potentially reducing monies available for day-to-day
living costs.
Women and pregnancy (Sex and Maternity) Reductions to early years commissioning offer, combined
with reduced access to children centres, may affect parents and carers (including grandparents, carers
and wider kinship carers). It is likely to have a disproportionate impact on mothers, especially those with
varied health needs including emotional and psychological. Women on lower incomes may be impacted
in instances where they must travel further to access the service. It is important to note that this may have
an impact on the children themselves in terms of their social development and emotional and physical
welfare. Any risks to children are increased particularly where parent/s are considered vulnerable; in need
of support, interventions and or access to health practitioners.
Disabled residents (Disability): Disabled residents may be impacted by planned extensions to controlled
parking areas, or changes to welfare or advice services. Proposals to review and domiciliary spend could
see disabled who are currently in receipt of small care packages have this service amended or potentially
reduced (or increased) based upon their circumstances. This could result in them being signposted to
alternative provision which could be unsettling initially or considered inappropriate for their personal needs.
Where there is a possible cost implication attached to the use of a service, this might act as a disincentive
to using a service that might benefit them.
Low income households (socioeconomic): The introduction or increase in fees/charges for council
services will have a greater impact upon those a range of groups characterised as having limited incomes
i.e. receipt of in-works benefits, low paid workers, and the unemployed. This could also include families
with disabled children and/or special educational needs, and disabled adults (i.e. learning and physical)
and older people in receipt of care packages and may disproportionately affect BAME and certain ESOL
populations who are more likely to be on low incomes. Real concerns exist for children in low income
households as they are according to research at greatest and increasing risk of destitution, with
measurable impacts on health and wellbeing, social, educational outcomes. The combined impact of
charges, welfare changes and any reduction (though minimal) to debt advice service offer has potential to
limit the level of support available to these groups
Council staff: In cases where changes may result in a staff reduction this could result in decreased morale
as well as a potential loss of specialisms, skills and service capacity. This in some cases result in an
increased burden upon universal services and remaining staff which could have a cumulative impact on
service performance and customer experience.
Non-targeted service user and Men (Sex): Transition from universal provision towards targeted
intervention could act as a ‘tipping point’ resulting in those on fringes of need becoming high-need/heavy
users of services in the future or having less positive experience trying accessing council services. There
is potential that men may be affected by service changes and targeted approaches ‘falling through
the gaps of provision’. This might be based upon service assumptions around their perceived needs which
may contribute to increased patterns of vulnerability amongst this group (i.e. mental and physical health
issues stress, isolation, suicide)

25

Page 82
These findings broadly replicate the findings of previous years and the longstanding trend of widening
inequality amongst particular groups.
Potential limitations
These impacts may not be evenly distributed, and some equalities groups are more likely to use local
public services than others, and so cuts to public services will disproportionately affect them. Further,
although officers have attempted to provide an understanding of discrete impacts on protected
characteristics they also acknowledge its limitations in reflecting intersectional disadvantage. This pattern
of impact can occur where individual changes may impact certain residents differently yet which when
combined may have a disproportionate effect on account of them ‘belonging’ multiple protected
characteristics populations each of which may be affected differently or multiply impacted.
It is also important to note that whilst the analysis has not shown certain groups (e.g. married/civil
partnerships, LGBTG+ and faith communities) as being disproportionately impacted by the proposals, it is
important to recognise that this may merely reflect the fact that data on these communities is currently
limited and as such makes determining the impact on these groups problematic. The council is currently
developing its equality monitoring policy which is intended to improve the quality of profiling and
segmentation data in 2019 and beyond.

Mitigating impact
In accordance with its statutory duty the council has sought to develop mitigations for any expected
negative impacts. Officers have set out a series of planned actions that will help to reduce the potential
impact of these proposals. The types mitigations identified across the range the savings proposals include:


Ongoing monitoring of profile and case data to assess impact of changes on user customer
experience or service take-up and risk.



Conducting ‘reviews of circumstances' where hardship or change in patterns of use, has
resulted from either a change to thresholds, reduced allowances, levied charges or increased fees.
Services will work in partnership with the residents to develop a package of care or support which
takes account of their personal circumstances (financial, social, etc.).



Employing preventative approaches working with partners with e.g. children centres and
midwives to identify those in need of support and intervention earlier.



Transferring costs for services and functions where possible to other agencies or seeking
alternative funding sources.



Changing savings targets taking decisions to reduce proposed targets based on an analysis of
collective impact of proposed savings on various service users



Building capacity in other service areas and/or partner agencies to respond to needs e.g.
Streatham Early Help Pilot, children public health delivery in schools.



In-house delivery where an external provider has been decommissioned, officers will be up skilled
to enable service retention and maintain positive outcomes for residents.



Reconfiguring teams, introducing new specialisms to support residents with complex needs and
building-in career development opportunities
26

Page 83


Income generation identifying alternative sources of income to mitigate against the need to make
further savings proposals



Staffing EIAs analysing staff impact through staffing Equality Impact Assessment process, as
these proposals are developed in more detail and monitoring any capacity or service issues as part
of normal performance management processes.

Next steps
There will be ongoing development of a budget equalities tracker to monitor development of proposals,
risk and mitigations. Completion of EIAs will enable further equalities analysis later, and this analysis will
be shared with the Corporate EIA panel for comment. More detailed analysis of potential risks and
identified mitigations, will incorporate information from EIAs as it becomes available. This approach will
give more opportunities for members to input into the recommendations which will be implemented
alongside the savings proposals. It is important to note that the approach for assessing the equalities
impact of savings proposals is an on-going process which underpins commissioning. At this stage the
analysis is indicative and as individual proposals are further developed and implemented, they will be
subject to further assessment.
Summary and conclusion
The approach undertaken by officers involves building equality considerations into budgetary allocations
at strategic and at programme level. In these challenging times this is more not less important, as the
council looks to support the most vulnerable and reduce inequality. In the face of reducing financial
resources, the council knows that it need to cooperate closely with Lambeth’s citizens to prioritise
resources and find new and creative solutions to long standing challenges. It is developing a programme
to consult with citizens, including equality groups, on the budget proposals as they are developed in more
detail. This will help the organisation to take account of the potential impact of the proposals on these
groups, and to mitigate these impacts where possible.
Proposed actions for implementation
The officers responsible for this analysis would like to propose the following actions as part of the
implementation of this budget:
The council’s strategic priorities
 In response to the fast pace of change in the borough, and the significant pressures being placed
on public services, the council plans to ‘re-set’ its strategic priorities so that it is focusing on what
is most important. It is suggested that this process should be informed by this equalities analysis
so it is ensured the issues identified here are adequately reflected in it.
Service transformation
 Large scale service transformation, particularly in relation to adult social care and health services,
forms a significant plank of these budget savings. These programmes aim to deliver better
outcomes for residents, including: increased independence and resilience; and better health
outcomes. It is important that as these programmes are delivered, we continue to involve residents,
partners, in designing programmes that reflect what is important to Lambeth’s communities.
 As the council continue to move towards greater digitisation, there is a need to continue to focus
on promoting digital inclusion, and understanding the barriers to access affecting particular groups,
such as disabled residents. The council’s new Digital Strategy should reflect these aspirations.

27

Page 84
Monitoring and feedback
 As these savings are implemented, officers need to track and understand the impacts of decisions
taken and how they affect residents’ day to day lives, particularly in light of the known impacts of
ongoing austerity policies, welfare reform and economic change. The council propose putting in
place clear systems for monitoring and sharing impact across high priority areas, including via the
refreshed Voluntary and Community Sector Partnership Group.
Health in all policies (HiAP)
 Whilst officers have considered the impact of budget proposals on residents with pre-existing health
issues and long-term conditions, it is proposed that there should also be a broader focus on
assessing the health impacts of decisions and on looking for opportunities to further protect or
improve health and wellbeing, in line with guidance on HIAP. Officers recommend that HiAP should
be an explicit focus all future equalities analysis attached to individual budget proposals and as
part of cumulative equalities impact analysis.

28

Resilience

Commissioning

Place

• Increase the proportion of residents
paid the LLW or above
• Build new homes available at below
market rent for low income families,
homes at secure market rent for those
who can’t afford to buy, and affordable
housing for those who can. New homes
for market sale and rent to help fund
more affordable housing.
• Attracted more businesses into the
borough from the creative and digital,
professional and financial services,
healthcare and life sciences, and
tourism and hospitality sectors, making
Lambeth a hub for those specialisms
• Worked with the Mayor to identify
those areas within the borough,
particularly in the south, with growth
potential and which would benefit from
increased investment in transport,
housing and jobs

• Increased the proportion of children
achieving good levels of social,
emotional, communication, and
language development by the end of
EYFS
• Reduced inequalities between key
groups and the general population at
KS2 & KS5
• More (young) people with the skills
they need to succeed in London’s
growing economic sectors
• Narrow the gap in employment rates for
key groups and the general population
• Made sure families experiencing
problems are consistently identified,
assessed and quickly provided with the
support and help that they need
• Made the borough safer and reduce the
gap between Lambeth and other
boroughs by reducing violence in all its
forms

• Support families to be strong and
resilient, providing effective support to
enable children to achieve their
potential and be safe and secure
• When it is not possible to keep families
together, timely and decisive action is
taken so that children are afforded
permanency, secure attachments and
opportunities to grow and thrive
• Reduced the rate of mental health
issues across the borough, with the
greatest reductions for those groups
with the highest rates of mental ill
health
• Supported more disabled, vulnerable
and older adults to maintain their
independence, stay healthy, active and
engaged for longer, and remain in their
homes. Should their health deteriorate,
we will aim to treat and support them
close to home. If hospital treatment is
required, we will support them to go
home more quickly.

• Improved peoples’ pride by maintaining
our streets on a regular basis to ensure
they are clean and tidy
• Worked with people and businesses to
increase the % of waste that is sent for
reuse, recycling or composting in order
to reduce the amount of residual waste
generated per household
• Brought all council homes up to LHS and
ensured they are maintained at this
level
• Made sure private tenants are aware of
their rights
• Maintained HA properties to a decent
standard
• Kept our parks and public spaces clean
& well maintained
• Ensured that residents live within a 20m
walk of affordable cultural activities and
that 85% residents are engaged

Page 85

Growth

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 87

Agenda Item 4

CHILDREN’S SERVICE SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 19 DECEMBER 2018
Report title: Special Educational Needs and Disability
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for Children and Schools: Councillor Jenny Brathwaite
Report Authorised by: Annie Hudson: Strategic Director for Children’s Services
Contact for enquiries: Claire Kirwan, Transformation Officer, SEN Service, Education Learning
and Skills 0207 926 6678, CKirwan@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report provides an update to the Scrutiny on Lambeth’s Special Educational Needs and Disability
(SEND)
The ‘Children and Families’ Act 2014 brought in a range of changes for assessment, provision and support
for children and young people with SEND and their families including increasing the age range eligible for
Education, Health and Care Plans from 3-19 to 0-25 and including health and care provision where
appropriate. Lambeth created their Local Area Strategy 2017-2020 in the Autumn of 2017 in consultation
with partners, providers, parent and carers and children and young people. This strategy out the Local
Area’s vision for children and young people with Special Education Needs and Disabilities (SEND). Ofsted
and the Care Quality Commission (CQC) are now inspecting local areas on how well the partnership of
the Council, schools and the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) work together to commission and
provide services for children and families.
Lambeth has a SEND Strategic Board which has overseen a comprehensive implementation of the
‘Children and Families Act’ and has completed a self-evaluation allowing the Board to oversee the
strengths and areas for improvement in the area, so that they can ensure the best outcomes for children
and young people. The Board continues to monitor the Local Area’s outcomes for children and young
people with SEND.

Finance summary
Support for children with Special Educational needs and Disabilities is funded through the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG) for education; from the NHS Lambeth CCG budget for heath and from Council
revenue grant for social care elements. The DSG from its High Needs Block is the greatest contributor to
these costs.
SEN costs have been increasing both in Lambeth and nationally since the introduction of the Children and
Families Act 2014 without a corresponding increase in the amount of funding that the council receives and
this means that reductions in spend in some areas will be required in the future.

Page 88
Recommendations
1.

To note the progress of implementation of Children and Families Act 2014 and the ongoing
improvements and activities.

2.

To note the progress with implementation of Local Area Strategy for Children and young people
with SEND.

3.

To make the Committee aware of budget constraints within Special Educational Needs Service
and proposals to reduce overspend.

Page 89
1.

CONTEXT

1.1

The Children and Families Act 2014 brought in a range of changes for assessment, provision and
support for Children and Young People with SEND and their families. The age range went from
3-19 to 0-25 for those children and young people supported by Statements/Education Health Care
Plans (EHCPs) and included health and care provision where appropriate within Education Health
and Care Plans. It put the children and young people and their parent and carers voice at the
heart of the Education Health Care Planning process.

1.2

Lambeth has a SEND Strategic Board which has overseen the implementation of the Children
and Families Act and developed a Local Area Strategy 2017-2020 alongside the Children and
Young Peoples Plan. The Board has representation from all its partners in the Local Area.

1.3

The Board oversees the Local Area process which enables them to have a clear understanding
of strengths and areas for development in relation to the Children and Families Act. This has then
informed the Local Area Strategy. The self-evaluation process is monitored via the Board which
has representation from elected members, Education, SEND, Social Care, Health providers,
integrated Commissioners and parents and carers.

1.4

This report, alongside our Local Area Strategy, sets out our shared vision, principles and priorities
to ensure partners are working together to effectively identify and meet the needs of Lambeth’s
children and young people with special educational needs and / or disabilities. This directly
supports the three priorities within our Borough Plan 2016-2021: partners working together;
increasing provision within Lambeth so that children and young people remain part of their
communities, and reducing inequality for children and young people with SEN or disabilities.

2.

PROPOSAL AND REASONS

2.1

We have been preparing for a Local Area Inspection which will be conducted jointly of Ofsted and
CQC. The Local Area inspection will focus on three key questions. These are the way we selfevaluate our provision;
a) How effectively does the local area identify children and young people who have SEN and/or
disabilities?
b) How effectively does the local area assess and meet the needs of children and young people
who have SEN and/or disabilities?
c) How effectively does the local area improve outcomes for children and young people who
have SEN and/or disabilities?

2.2

Key strengths: Identifying Needs
These have been identified as follows:


The Joint Strategic Needs Analysis (JSNA), which looks at a range of need in the local
population, was refreshed in 2018 and is informing commissioning priorities across education,
health and care. There is also a specific Children with Disabilities (CWD) JSNA, which has
helped fine tune commissioning for children with disabilities.

Page 90

2.3



All health visitors receive regular training in the early identification of additional needs and
disabilities while our new integrated Early Years pathway brings health visiting into to
children’s centres and other early year’s provision.



An Early Years panel has been established, aiming to work with those young children who
may require a ‘step-down’ from Social Care / Early Help. This works with young children who
have potential SEND.



There is proactive promotion of a local ‘Disability Register’ (Lambeth Liberty Card). Since it
was taken in-house in 2016 numbers registered have greatly increased and positive feedback
from parents and carers about the Liberty card has been received.



School census data is carefully analysed to identify any anomalies in the way schools may be
identifying needs and appropriate support, advice and challenge is provided by school
improvement advisors.



Our commissioning for ‘short breaks’ for children with disabilities is fine-tuned and gives us a
wealth of data relating to children’s needs in the borough.



Our engagement and co-production work has improved over the past year, with some best
practice examples in our short breaks programme and the formation of the Children Young
Peoples Plan

Key Strengths: Assessing and Meeting Needs
These have been identified as follows:


All children with complex developmental needs identified at birth or emerging in the first five
years of life are assessed as soon as they are identified and the Disabilities Team around the
Child (DTAC) ensures that relevant health, education and care support and provision is
actioned.



New EHCPs are co-produced with the whole range of relevant practitioners, families and
children themselves. EHCP co-ordinators organise ‘outcomes’ meetings with parents and
children and young people to identify aspirations.



Managers from the Children with Disabilities Service attend the weekly SEN panel so that
children with additional social care needs can also be picked up early.



The vast majority of Education and Health provision in the Lambeth local area are judged
‘good’ or ‘outstanding’ by Ofsted or CQC.



We have reviewed our outreach services for children with sensory needs and bought these
back in-house, to ensure schools can easily access the assessment support they need from
professionals.



Schools are also commissioning some services directly which allows for greater flexibility for
schools to obtain the assessments they need in a timely way.



Training and support for SENCOs is comprehensive, effective and valued. It is run through
the Lambeth ‘Senco Network’.



The Early Years SEND Team is effectively supporting parents of children with complex needs
evidenced by overwhelmingly positive feedback from parents.

Page 91

2.4

2.5



A ‘SEND Support’ plan template is offered to all Early Years providers and schools to
encourage a consistent approach across all settings. ‘SEN Support’ refers to any additional
support that is not covered by an Education Health Care Plan.



Parents are positive about the Lambeth Independent Advice and Support Service (LIASS).



There is successful, ongoing implementation of Independent Travel Training for young
people, to encourage young people to travel independently wherever possible.

Key Strengths: Improving Outcomes
These have been identified as follows:


SEND Leaders and the SEND Strategic Partnership Board consider all SEND data regularly
and undertake ‘deep dives’ into any data anomalies e.g. a closer look at the identification of
Speech Language and Communication Needs (SLCN).



The Children and Young Peoples Plan and Local Area Strategy 2017-2020 are outcomes
focused and informed by data and feedback from parents and young people



All new Service Level Agreements and Contracts with providers are outcomes focused.



Lambeth pupils with SEN and SEN Support generally achieve above or in line with the
statistical neighbour and national averages.



There is a jointly-commissioned split Designated Medical Officer role in place, which drives
both the strategic agenda but also plays a key part in operational decision making and EHC
plan evaluations.



There are strong relationships with clinical colleagues in health, which will continue to
improve with the newly-formed quarterly meetings with all clinical leads.

Our Challenges and areas for improvement
These have been identified as follows:


The demand for new EHCPs has been high with a 25% increase since 2014. This is
replicated across the country but Lambeth has a higher number of pupils with SEND than the
national average. This rise has put great pressures on the service which has meant that some
statutory timescales have been difficult to meet. However, more recently we are performing
highly in this area.



CCG commissioned services do not go up to the age of 25 but we are working closely with
health and clearer pathways between children’s and adults’ disability services are being
developed, alongside a greater focus on supporting young adults with disabilities into work.
These initiatives aim to reduce the number of transitions for children.



Support for children with Social Emotional Mental Health (SEMH) needs is still overly
fragmented. Our Children and Young People’s Plan and new co-ordinated commissioning
arrangements are helping to address this along with new Resource Bases in schools. It is
worth noting that this also sits within a context of unprecedented demand for CAMHs services
across the country.



‘SEN support’ offered to pupils who may not qualify for an EHCP in schools is not always
consistent and there are variations in what each school offers. School improvement advisors
and SENCOs re working to address this, although all schools have the right to use their own
resources in the most appropriate way for their specific cohorts.

Page 92

2.6



Parents are not always clear on the support available prior to an EHCP being put in place.
We are currently agreeing a borough moderation process to address this and agreeing more
consistency in early help services.



There is a good relationship with Parents Forum and forums overall are well attended by both
professionals and parents and carers. We are working on a commissioning and engagement
plan so parents are clearer about the commissioning cycle and when they can get involved.



Engagement with children and young people with SEND and their families at a strategic level
is not yet fully established, though parent representatives are on our Board, and every EHCP
has the child’s voice contained within it. Children and Young People consulted as part of the
development of the Children and Young Peoples Plan.



Lambeth Council needs to find £43m savings over the three year period 2017/18 to 2019/20.
This will affect the funding available to support SEND pupils’ social care and health needs.



Lambeth is allocated a lower % of Dedicated Schools Grant than the London average for
High Needs (14.8% compared to 16.3%). We have agreed with Schools Forum to transfer
some additional funding to the High Needs block. However the increasing numbers of pupils
and complexity of needs means that we, like most areas nationally are overspending on our
High Needs budget.

Next Steps


We will continue to further refresh our Self Evaluation Form (SEF) and ‘position statement’
making changes and modifications to services to ensure they are as efficient as possible.



We have rebranded the Lambeth Local Offer which tells parents, carers and families all that
is available locally for children and young people with SEND. We have implemented an
advertising timetable around the borough, so that we can raise awareness of the Local Offer
website.



Within Children’s and Adults Social Care work is underway to look at different pathways into
adulthood. There is currently a transitions project which is being undertaken by external
consultants. The aim is that children and young people with disabilities have fewer transitions
within their lives.



We are opening and commissioning a range of new education provision for those with
profound Social Emotional Mental Health (SEMH) needs which will reduce costs and improve
outcomes for those children and young people.



We are expanding our independent travel training programme after a successful first year to
encourage more young people with SEND to travel independently. Our SEN Transport policy
contains an ambition to independence as far as is possible.



Lambeth has contracted an organisation called SEND 4 Change who have independently
reviewed our SEF and set out areas for improvement. We will continuously act on feedback.



CCG colleagues are also leading on a therapies review across the patch, which brings into
scope Speech and Language, Occupational and Physio Therapies. This is at the information
gathering stage but will have a beneficial impact on children and young people with SEND as
well as local schools.



We are also continuing with our short breaks re-tender, and have undertaken considerable
engagement and co-production to ensure we are able to really hear the voice of children and
young people in the service redesign.

Page 93


2.7

We are working with colleagues across South East London to look at an integrated
Neurodevelopmental conditions pathway (therefore including ASD and ADHD), to ensure that
children and young people in this cohort receive an improved level of support from health
services.

Identification of those with SEND:
Identification of those children and young people with SEND is increasing in Lambeth. Since 2014
the increase in EHCPs has risen 25% and it continues to rise.
We aim to identify needs as early as possible and work with our nursery providers and schools to
develop capacity to do this. This reduces the need for pupils to go to school outside the borough
including expensive independent provision. Lambeth’s educational psychology service has links
within the Virtual School, Early Years and Youth Offending Service offering advice and support
for the early identification of special educational needs.

2.8

SEND Support
Within Lambeth Schools 17.6% of pupils overall were identified as having a Special Educational
Need, either informally by their teacher as requiring SEN Support (formerly School Action and
School Action Plus), or formally by the local authority as having an Education, Health and Care
Plan (formerly Statement).The school census shows the number of children and young people in
Lambeth Schools who have a special educational need. The information below is from the pupil
survey January 2018.

* Lambeth schools only ** SEN2 data all EHCPs managed by Lambeth
2.9

Early Years:
Very young children who have additional needs are supported through their nursery schools and
settings. Funding is provided through the ‘Early Years Inclusion fund’. Schools and settings work
with a range of services including LEAP and Early Help. Educational Psychology support is
available and schools can access a range of health and therapies such as speech and language
therapy.
The Early Years SEN team also run the Early Years SENCO network. This is open to all nurseries
and early years settings, staff receive information and advice on SEN support and how to support
children with SEN.
We have a good number of Children’s Centres, including three Better Start Workers across the
borough, who work closely with the Early Years SEND Team to engage children with SEND and
their families with Children’s Centres and wider service provision.
All Children’s Centres provide localised support for children with SEND through outreach worker
caseloads by signposting support or through non-specialist support groups for parents/carers and
their children. Some Children’s Centres offer higher levels of service working in conjunction with
Speech & Language Therapy services called “Chattertime sessions”. These sessions cover a

Page 94
wide range of communication & language concerns from parents / carers with signposting to
support in the children’s centre or health service. In addition, two specialist groups for children
with complex needs are offered on a weekly basis.
2.10

Primary Age:
The Lambeth Educational Psychology service works in most Lambeth primary schools. Schools
have access to the Lambeth Autism Advisory Service who support autism diagnosed children.
The Autism Service also offers advice on non-diagnosed ASD, and can be commissioned for
more support by Primary Schools. Social emotional and mental health needs are increasing as a
need within Lambeth and a Primary Resource base has already been is set up. Work is underway
to develop further resource bases, nurture groups in schools to help with increasing demand.
Through our SENCO network schools receive regular training on SEN support and early
identification and is well attended by the majority of the schools.
All schools have an attached School Improvement Advisor who regularly supports and challenges
school leadership teams regarding the identification and meeting of children’s special educational
needs.

2.11

Secondary Age:
The Educational Psychology Service works in most Lambeth secondary schools. The Autism
Advisory service have expanded their services and now offer a commissioned role to secondary
schools to support them. Social emotional and mental health needs are increasing as a special
education need in Lambeth and as a result a secondary age Resource Base is being developed.

2.12

Preparing for Adulthood
96% of young people with an EHCP are engaged in employment, education or training after KS4,
significantly higher than that nationally (91%), or statistical neighbours (92%). The trend is
positive, with an 11% increase in 4 years.
The percentage of young people with ‘SEN Support’ engaged in employment, education or
training after KS4 is 87%, 1 percentage point lower than nationally. These are young people with
additional needs who do not qualify for an Education, Health and Care Plan.
Lambeth have been successful in applying for European Social Funding (ESF) to support a
‘Careers Cluster’ which works with all schools, including special schools and colleges, to develop
career pathways for young people. These include supported internships, apprenticeships and
routes to employment, for pupils with additional needs. The project (2016-2018) is led by the
Education Department working closely with partners.

2.13

Lambeth’s Career Clusters Project
The overarching aim of Lambeth Career Clusters project involving 17 schools within the borough
is ‘to improve the labour market relevance of learning by supporting school and college leaders
in their development and implementation of a whole-school approach to delivering high quality
careers guidance and a careers curriculum’. The project is funded by the European Social Fund
(ESF) and contract managed by the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).
Crucially, employers have contributed to the project meeting its overarching by emphasising the
importance of their studies.

Page 95
2.14

Supported Internships
These are available for young people from the age of 16 (up to 25) with an EHC Plan. They are
designed for young people with higher support needs who want to work. They are aimed at young
people who feel they have completed their formal education and seek a work placement. The
aim is to get young people into paid employment after 1 year.
This year (2018/19) Supported Internships are being delivered as follows:





Through Roots and Shoots - a training provider in Kennington – with EHC plan funding via
Lambeth SEND
Lambeth College in collaboration with MENCAP - as the supported employment provider
At The Michael Tippett College Post 19 – for those with more complex needs
Lambeth SEND in collaboration with MENCAP – young people have been placed on the
MENCAP Interns and Outcomes national programme

In the last year, Lambeth SEND has funded training for staff in Special Schools, Colleges and FE
Colleges to ensure they have the relevant skills and knowledge to deliver Supported Internships.
10 members of staff have been trained in Systematic Instruction so that they can support young
people to learn specific skills ‘on the job’.
2.15

Traineeships and Apprenticeships
These are available for all young people who wish to follow a workplace training approach to
further qualifications. Young people with an EHC Plan can apply for these in the usual manner
(FE colleges / other Traineeship / Apprenticeship Providers). They are entitled to retain their EHC
Plan and request any additional funding needed to complete their training. This request would be
considered by the SEND Panel.
Traineeships are unpaid – but can lead on to an apprenticeship once the young person has gained
the skills needed to commence the Apprenticeship.
We have held a number of SEND / Careers events at Lambeth College (as part of the Careers
Cluster) to try to make sure that Schools and young people are aware of Post 16 pathways to
employment and this work is ongoing.
There are opportunities to apply for Apprenticeships within the council. The Economic Inclusion
team work with the Apprenticeship Leads to ensure that a number of opportunities are available
to people with barriers to employment (including learning disability).
We currently have an employment project running in Lambeth (in collaboration with MENCAP and
CAPITA) called LIFE (Lambeth Inclusive Future Employment). This is designed to place 10 young
people in Traineeships (minimum age 19) and Apprenticeships within the council. This project is
making good headway – and to date, referrals have been made from families directly and from
our schools / colleges.
There are also opportunities for work experience within the council – the scheme is known as
Industrial Cadets – and can be a good first step towards a Traineeship or Apprenticeship –
particularly if young people are a little unsure of the vocational route they are interested in
pursuing.

Page 96
2.16

Education, Health and Care Plans
All children and young people assessed as needing additional support used to be assessed by
means of a ‘Statement of Special Educational Needs’. Following the Children and Families Act
2014 a new assessment process was bought in involving Education, Health and Care needs with
all being considered together where necessary and putting parents/carers and children at the
centre of the process.
The EHC Assessment process began on 1st September 2014. EHC Co-ordinators in the SEND
team follow the 20 week process to assess children and have been successful in getting requests
for EHC assessments well within the 6 week deadline as set out in the SEND Code of Practice,
and in facilitating a better experience for Lambeth parent/carers and children and young people
going through this process. The demand for EHC Plans has been unprecedented in the years
since the reforms and this has put huge pressures on the service to reach its statutory timescales
as set out in the SEND code of practice. There has been a 25% increase in Lambeth in numbers
of pupils assessed as requiring EHC Plans since 2014. Some of the increase is due to the
expansion in age profile of those eligible. The EHC process now covers ages 0-25 but was
previously ages 3-19.
Lambeth is ranked 6th highest in England for the number of EHCPs at primary age, 2.5%
compared to 1.8% nationally, and has the second highest levels in its statistical neighbour group.
This reflects the very considerable needs of our population and is putting real pressure on the
budget available.
In 2018 to date Lambeth SEN has had 402 requests for EHC assessment. Approximately 70% of
these go through and receive an assessment which brings overall numbers up to close to 2,500.
The table below shows the placement of children and young people as recorded in the SEN2
return for the calendar year 2017.

2.17

Resource Bases
Lambeth has focused on ensuring that there are additional places for children with SEND in
mainstream schools and recognises that Social Emotional and Mental Health need is increasing
as a special education need in Lambeth. A primary Resource Base opened in 2017 and in 2019
two secondary Resource Bases are being developed.

Page 97
2.18

Special Schools:
All Lambeth Secondary special schools now offer post 16 provision for students.
The Michael Tippet College supports young people from age 19-25 and offers individualised
programmes to meet the young people’s aspirations for work, supported living and study
programmes. Most courses are up to 3 years based on a ‘preparing for adulthood’ curriculum.
The National Autistic Society’s Vanguard School is set to launch in the academic year 2019/20
for secondary pupils on the autism spectrum.
The Vanguard School will help reduce out of borough and independent placements, which will
reduce education costs for Lambeth.
The School will cater for students on the autism spectrum aged 11 to 19 who require an education
that is tailored to their individual needs.

2.19

SEN Travel Assistance
Our retendered 5 year bus contract with London Hire commenced in Jan 2018, at an approximate
annual cost of £1.2million. This covers 19 buses for three Lambeth Special Schools.
Our previous bus contract cost in excess of £2.8 million and travelled to 3 additional Lambeth
special schools. The transport to these schools remains in place but is served by our taxi
framework contract. This provides increased flexibility in the service to these schools.
Our 3 year Independent Travel Training pilot commenced in Jan 2017. The Travel Assistance
Policy encourages all children and young people to travel as independently as possible. We have
worked with 45 young people and successfully signed off 32 as independent travellers. We
currently have 7 young people in training, due to be signed off shortly.
Wherever possible, we offer parents a travel allowance to make their own arrangements i.e. bus,
rail travel, petrol reimbursements and in some cases taxi reimbursements.
Whilst the above efforts have realised efficiency savings, there have been additional pupils joining
needing travel assistance.
We have seen a large increase in the number of pupils with an EHCP and an increase in the
number of families applying for and being eligible for support with travel. We currently support
550 pupils, which is an increase of around 60 pupils compared to a similar time last year.

2.20

SEND Budget
Special Educational Needs provision includes Special schools, the funding for education plans
for individual pupils and specialist school placements. They are funded though the Dedicated
Schools Grant (DSG) ‘High Needs Budget’. The Children and Families Act 2014 put significant
additional burdens on the DSG High Needs budget for SEN. In Lambeth EHCPs have increased
by 25. The High Needs Budget has only increased by 2% in real terms since 2014.
The High Needs budget is projected to overspend for 2018/19 by £4.5 million. Costs of EHCPs
are increasing nationally and out of borough placements are also increasing. There are a number
of reasons that the numbers of EHCPs have risen:


Introduction of the extended age range (0-25) in the Children and Families Act 2014. This
has led to a sharp rise in the number of requests for assessment for an EHCP (particularly

Page 98
19-25 year olds), and the increased expectation that an EHCP will remain in place until age
25.

2.21



The 2014 reforms have positively raised parental awareness and expectations, making
some parents more proactive in pursuing an EHCP for their child.



The financial pressures faced by schools are meaning that they encourage parents or young
people to apply for EHCPs more readily than previously.



Reduction in early prevention services (in local authorities, schools,) due to funding
pressures mean that to receive support schools and families are keener to seek
assessment.



There has been an increase in the number of young people presenting with Autism
Spectrum Disorders (ASD) and Social Emotional Mental Health (SEMH) needs in particular.
This is a similar pattern as that across the country and are due in part to increasing and
more sophisticated diagnosis.



There has been an increase in the overall accuracy of diagnosis for SEND and at an earlier
age.



Advances in paediatric care for babies and children with complex conditions means more
children are presenting with needs.

Reducing the overspend in the High Needs budget
Reducing the overspend has been a key component of our planning over recent years. In
2017/2018 we were able to reduce the overspend 1.9m by retendering of our SEN transport
contract; reviewing and re-commissioning part of our outreach services and freezing recruitment
in central teams.
We have also worked with special schools to agree a new funding arrangement for their pupils
based more precisely on pupil need.
For 2019/2020 we will be looking to reduce the overspend further






Further outreach service restructuring;
Allocating some funding to schools in a different way to avoid over dependence on EHCPs
to get support;
Reducing the amount of funding that is paid to schools that have a disproportionately high
number of children with EHCP’s;
Reducing numbers of out of borough placements by increasing capacity in borough;
Reducing the amount that is spent on post-16 provision.

Schools Forum agreed to move 0.5% of the Schools Block funding to the high needs block in
2018/19 and has agreed that a similar level of funding be transferred in 2019/20.
Each of these areas of possible savings is currently being explored in detail and are the subject
of discussion and consultation and risk mitigation planning.

Page 99
3.

FINANCE

3.1

The SEN education costs are funded from the High Needs Block of the Dedicated Schools
Grant. In 2018/19 this funding amounted to £41.7m.

3.2

The expected spend on High Needs in 2018/19 exceeds the expected DSG income by £4.5m
which will be met largely from balances that have been carried forward and also by carrying
forward a negative balance into next year.

3.3

The current proposed savings (set out in para 2.17) will not be sufficient to bring the High Needs
Block back to an affordable position in 2019/20 and thus further work will be done over the coming
months to identify other areas in which costs can be reduced.

4.

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY

4.1

There are no specific legal comments arising from this report.

4.2

There are no comments Democratic Services.

5.

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION

5.1

None.

6.

RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1

None.

7.

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT

7.1

None.

8.

COMMUNITY SAFETY

8.1

Needs to be considered by law (Crime & Disorder Act 1998, Section 17).

9.

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
Environmental

9.1

None.

9.2

Staffing and accommodation
None.

9.3

Procurement
None.

9.4

Health
None.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 None.

Page 100
AUDIT TRAIL
Consultation
Name/Position
Councillor Jenny
Braithwaite
Annie Hudson
Tim Gibson, Finance
Andrew Pavlou, Legal
Services
Elaine Carter Democratic
Services
Dan Stoten

Lambeth directorate /
department or partner
Cabinet Member for Children

and Schools
Children’s Services
Corporate Resources

Date Sent

04.12.18

Corporate Resources
Children’s Commissioning

Comments in
paragraph:

03.12.18
04/12/18

Throughout
2/3

03.12.18

4

06/12/18
28.11.18
28.11.18
28.11.18

Corporate Resources

Date
Received

03.12.18

10.12.18
04.12.18

throughout

REPORT HISTORY
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
Report deadline
Date final report sent
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential
accompanying report?
Key decision report
Date first appeared on forward plan

Key decision reasons

Background information

Appendices

EITHER 1. Will amend Community Plan Outcomes
Framework or Budget and Policy Framework
OR 2. Expenditure, income or savings in excess of
£500,000
OR 3. Meets community impact test
OR 4. Not applicable
Policy doc ABC
Govt advice DEF
Cabinet report GHI
Appendix A – Appendix SEND
Appendix B – Lambeth Local Area Strategy

Page 101

APPENDIX A

Appendix SEND

ASD – Autism Spectrum Disorder
ADHD – Attention Deficit Hyperactivity Disorder
CAMHS – Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
CCG – Clinical Commissioning Group
CQC – Care Quality Commission
CWD – Children with Disabilities
DFE – Department of Education
EHCP – Education Health Care Plan
EP – Educational Psychologist
JSNA – Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
PMLD – Profound and Multiples Learning Difficulties
SALT – Speech and Language Therapists
SEMH – Social Emotional and Mental Health
SEN – Special Educational needs
SENCO – Special Educational needs Co-ordinator
SLD - Severe Learning Difficulties

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 103

Lambeth Local Area Strategy
Addressing the needs of all children and young people
with special educational needs and/or disabilities
2017-2020

Page 104

Page 105

Foreword
The purpose of this strategy is to set out our shared vision, principles and
priorities to ensure partners are working together effectively to identify
and meet the needs of Lambeth’s children and young people with Special
Educational Needs and / or Disabilities (SEND) from birth to the age of 25.
The strategy aims to meet the requirements of the Children and Families
Act in a way that is ambitious, inclusive and realistic in the challenging
financial context.
Our strategy sits firmly within:
Lambeth Borough’s inclusive corporate vision: ‘working together to
tackle inequality’.
Lambeth Clinical Commissioning Group’s (CCG) vision:
‘To improve the health of and reduce inequalities for Lambeth people
and to commission high quality health services on their behalf’.
And Lambeth’s Children and Young People’s Plan vision:
‘Lambeth should be one of the best places for children and young people
to grow up, providing a rich mix of relationships, experiences, opportunities
and services that enable children and young people from all backgrounds
and communities to thrive’.
We recognise the wide range of services that play a part in delivering our
vision. Elected Members, leaders and managers from education, health and
social care services are driving our ambition forward through the Lambeth
SEND Strategic Partnership Board, the Children and Families Strategic
Partnership Board and the Health and Wellbeing Board. We have listened
to what children and young people with SEND and their families have told
us about their experiences, and developed this strategy as part of our
commitment to working together to improve the lives of children and young
people with SEND across the Lambeth local area.
As someone who went through school with dyslexia and whose brother has
special educational needs, I know how frustrating it can be to struggle with
some things your friends seem to find easy. We need to make sure our young
people know that we are here to help them overcome any barriers and give
them the skills to meet their aspirations – and those aspirations should have
no limitations. We have high expectations of all our young people and want to
ensure they have the right support, to thrive and be the best they can be.
Cllr Jane Edbrooke,
Cabinet Member for children and schools, Lambeth Borough Council
1

Page 106

Introduction
Lambeth council, the CCG and our partner
organisations view SEND as a high priority.
Our plans and strategies demonstrate that
partners are committed to working together
to improve the lives of disadvantaged and
vulnerable children and young people and
their families in Lambeth.

/ or Disabilities are welcomed by their local
mainstream schools neighbourhood schools
and are supported to learn, contribute and
participate in all aspects of the life of the school
alongside their peers. This strategy recognises
the roles that all partners have in supporting
that goal.

We want to be aspirational and ambitious for all
our children and young people, including those
with SEND. Lambeth’s Education and Learning
Strategy 2015-18 defines Lambeth’s local
authority champion roles as:

- a champion of educational excellence

The Health and Well Being Board oversees the
work of the Lambeth Children’s Partnership
Board (LCPB), of which the SEND Strategic
Partnership Board is a sub-group. Governance
and oversight of implementation of the SEND
reforms is provided through these key strategic
boards. Members of these boards are fully
signed up to inclusivity for all children and young
people and have contributed to the development
of this strategy.

This strategy for children and young people with
SEND, reflects those themes and extends the
champion roles beyond the local authority and
education, to all partners working together in
the Lambeth local area. Achieving fully inclusive
education means that the majority of children
and young people with Special Education and

Lambeth has recently published a new Children
and Young People’s Plan, ‘Our Children, Our
Future’ which focuses on SEND as one of its
programmes of work. An extensive consultation
exercise took place during the spring and
summer 2017 with children, young people,
(including those with SEND) and their families.

- a champion of vulnerable children and
young people
- a champion of parents and families

2

Page 107

and learning for all children. Most children
with SEND attend mainstream schools, so our
strategy has been developed on the principle of
evidence based, targeted interventions delivered
by trained staff as part of the universal offer
of a differentiated curriculum. The success
of the strategy is reliant on a whole school
approach rather than a stand-alone and therefore
fragmented ‘silo’ approach to children/young
people with SEND.

Our priorities and draft SEND Strategy, were
informed by that consultation. Our subsequent
engagement during the autumn with parents,
carers and partners on the draft strategy, showed
that while parents welcomed a new SEND
Strategy, we still have further to go to ensure
children and young people and their families
have full confidence in the SEND system.
Since 2014 we have been aligning support from
education, health and care services to achieve
our shared ambition of tackling inequality and
providing local services and inclusive education
provision for Lambeth’s children and young
people with SEND. This SEND Strategy will help
us to continue that journey.

It is important to remember that the term ‘special
educational needs’ does not mean the child
and young person’s needs are only educational.
Whilst education progress is the core of the
SEND reforms, ensuring that children and young
people with SEND make progress educationally,
can require a broader approach which includes
family and health needs.

We continue to invest in local specialist provision
with the aim of offering a mixed economy of
inclusive mainstream schools, specialist resource
bases, special schools and specialist colleges
within the boundaries of Lambeth so that, as far
as possible, all our children and young people
can be educated within their local community.

We are developing a shared understanding of
need between the Local Authority and Health
Services of the holistic packages of support
required by individual children and young
people and are focusing on improving joint
commissioning to put the right support in place
and make the best use of resources.

This strategy requires a robust system of
identification of children and young people’s
needs, in the context of high quality teaching
3

Page 108
Our SEND strategy is based on six core design principles:
1. A person-centred approach to
service delivery:

5. Building alliances with the voluntary
and community sector:

Central to our strategy is thinking about and
working with the whole family in an integrated
and joined up way, drawing on family strengths
and supporting family members to help each
other. This means co-producing plans and
ensuring we take account of the parents’, carers’
and child’s feelings, aspirations, needs and
strengths. By adopting this principle across the
system, we will transform services to embed an
integrated, person-centred approach to early
intervention and support into adulthood.

Our community has a wealth of experiences,
skills, knowledge and relationships. We intend
to build on our existing strengths and increase
collaboration across sectors.
6. Using digital solutions to build capacity
and community connections:
We need to exploit the potential of technological
advances to use new, more efficient and
potentially more effective ways of providing
information and changing attitudes and
behaviours. This could include new online
portals, promotion of self-help apps or videos
and group forums that support peer-to-peer
relationships in the community.

2. Systematic and proactive identification
of SEND:
We need to ensure all children’s practitioners
are consistently identifying children and young
people with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities. This includes those working in the
Health services such as Health Visitors as well
as Early Years settings and schools. We want
all children with SEND to have their needs
assessed and met as early as possible so that
they are ready for transition from one setting to
the next, are fully included and benefit from an
appropriately differentiated curriculum that helps
build their skills and resilience.
3. Developing capacity in mainstream
schools:
We must share our knowledge and expertise,
through training, coordination and advice, so that
mainstream schools can support the majority of
children and young people themselves without
having to refer on. This will help to ensure
that needs can be met at the earliest possible
opportunity.
4. Integrated, evidence-based services,
interventions and approaches:
Support for SEND must be built around children
and families, not institutional or professional
boundaries. This means closer integration
between health, education and social care,
including better information sharing. Interventions
should be evidence-based to ensure maximum
impact on outcomes for children, young people
and families through cost-effective solutions.
4

Page 109

1. Who this strategy is for
Other groups of children who generally do not
achieve as well as their peers, include those
from low income families and some ethnic
groups. When these children also have SEND,
their needs can be more complex.

This strategy is for the all the children and young
people aged 0 to 25 in Lambeth with SEND,
and their families. There are approximately 1800
children and young people with Education Health
and Care plans (EHC) and at least 5640 receiving
support for special educational needs being
educated in Lambeth schools. These numbers
do not include all the pre-school children with
additional needs, and those aged 18-25.

SEND is everybody’s business, and we know
that if we get things right for these children
and young people, our strategy will benefit all
children and young people, because it is about
the importance of promoting inclusion and a
person-centred approach amongst professionals,
which leads to greater understanding of, and
empathy with, children, young people and their
families.

The population of children and young people
with SEND includes those who have other
factors in their lives that add to their complexity
of needs, such as those children known to social
care, including those in the care of the council.

2. The national context
Families Act and the Care Act. Details of these
are outlined in appendix one, see pages 11-12.

This strategy sits within and complements the
national developments in SEND support such
as the SEND Code of Practice, the Children and

5

Page 110

3. The local context
on average Lambeth pupils with SEND make
better academic progress than their peers in
other London Boroughs.

At least 318,000 people live in Lambeth,
including approximately 67,900 children and
young people under the age of 20. A further
22,139 (7%) are aged 20-25.
A higher percentage of pupils in Lambeth
schools are identified as having Special
Educational Needs (SEND) than the national,
or London averages. In January 2017, 18.6%
of pupils were identified as having SEND.
We are always working to ensure that schools
are not labelling children as having a long
term special educational need unnecessarily.
For instance Speech Language and
Communication Needs (SLCN) is the most
prevalent primary need, at 24.6% of all children
with SEND attending Lambeth schools, so we
intend to moderate schools’ identification
of need to ensure this is never just because
English is not their first language.

However, this is not a wholly consistent picture,
so we need to reduce the variation between
schools and ensure all schools are inclusive
and support all pupils to reach their full potential.
In particular we need to find ways to improve
the progress made by Lambeth children in the
Early Years, who do not do as well as those in
other London Boroughs.

Most children and
young people with
SEND attend a
mainstream Early
Years, school or
college setting.
However, some
children with more
complex needs benefit from specialist provision.

The gap between the progress made by
young children with SEND and their non-SEND
peers has been getting wider, so we need to
understand why that is and quickly reverse that
trend. We want to ensure that every young child
is ready to attend school, which means getting
better at identifying any additional needs as
early as possible. By providing appropriate
support in the early years, we can better enable
preschool children with SEND to enjoy a smooth
transition to formal education.

Within Lambeth we have 7 enhanced nurseries
provisions; 12 resource bases attached to
mainstream schools and 5 special schools.
Three of Lambeth’s secondary special schools
also offer post 16 provision.

We know that nationally and locally pupils with
SEND are more likely to be excluded because
some children with SEND may find it difficult to

An exciting development in 2016 was the
opening of the Michael Tippett College,
a 19-25 specialist college for students with
Severe Learning Difficulties and Profound and
Multiple Learning Difficulties. Students attending
this college would not normally be able to access
mainstream college provision. The college’s
aim is to equip students for adult life, having
developed the confidence and skills needed
and to have clear next steps for adulthood.
Lambeth has a higher than average proportion
of ‘good’ and ‘outstanding’ schools and average
pupil attainment is high. We are also proud that
6

Page 111
improve the
CCG and council’s
ability to assess
the impact of
interventions on
children and young
people’s outcomes,
so that we better understand what makes the
biggest difference. We are also looking at how
we commission services across the whole
0-25 age range, as we know that the transition
between children’s and adult services is often
a very challenging time for young people and
their families.

adhere to their school’s behaviour policy.
We are also aware that some settings are better
than others at identifying children with SEND
earlier, and putting in place effective support
that enables the child to thrive in a mainstream
setting. We need to share good practice,
and try to ensure that all mainstream schools
are fully inclusive and proactive in assessing
and meeting needs.
We are aware that the waiting lists for children’s
mental health and other therapeutic services are
often too long. We are trying to address this and
ensure that, those who need them can access
the right therapeutic services at the right time.

Demand for our services is growing year on year.
For instance, we have received over 600 new
requests for Education Health and Care Plans
(EHCP) since 2014, but the council and Lambeth
Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) are not
yet able to accurately predict future demand for
services due to rapidly changing demographics.
This is an area we need to improve upon so that
we can ensure the partnership has sufficient
resources dedicated to SEND.

However, we need to be realistic. The council
and its partners, including schools are all facing
budget deficits in a period of increasing demand
and growing complexity of needs, so we need
to work ever more closely together to find
innovative ways of achieving more with less. We
want to ensure that we are targeting resources
effectively, and one way of doing that is to

We have invested heavily in local specialist
provision, but there are approximately 170
children and young people placed in independent
and out of Borough provision at an annual cost
of £6 million. This is something we are trying to
address as the cost is unsustainable and it is
usually better for the children and their families
for education to take place closer to
their communities.
Another area of high spend is SEND travel
assistance. We also recognise the impact that
a child or young person’s journey to school can
have on the rest of their day. So balancing the
need to find savings whilst minimising the time
that individuals spend travelling is something
we are working on with parents, young people
and providers. We are also supporting increasing
numbers of young people to be more confident
in travelling alone, so that they can become more
independent as they become young adults.
This strategy and our Children and Young
People’s Plan will help us to build on our
strengths and address our challenges, so that
Lambeth becomes a truly inclusive place,
where children and young people with special
educational needs and disabilities can feel
safe, and happy, and achieve their full potential.
7

Page 112

4. Our vision and priority areas
for improvement
Our vision

We believe that all children with special educational needs and/or disabilities
have the right to a fulfilling life, with equality of access to opportunities that
improve their life chances and empower them to be the best they can be.
• Support to help improve behaviour:
“My goal is to get the trophy at school
once a week. To achieve this goal I need
to behave in class. I need help doing this’

Parents of Lambeth children with SEND
have told us that they want:
• The information they need to support their
child and help them to “be a happy family”

• Help with controlling anger:
“Spaces to let off steam.”
“Sometimes I can’t control my anger”

• Inclusive communities:
- “We need supportive and inclusive
communities that treat every child as an
independent person”
- “Understanding and awareness” of SEND,
and others being “non-judgemental”
- “Access to sport and leisure activities in
the community”

• Help with social skills: “I want to feel confident
speaking to other people”
• Opportunities to exercise, do sport, go to
adventure playgrounds, parks, and youth clubs
• To be “Connected with other young people
who are vulnerable for whatever health or
disabilities, so together they feel more resilient
to the outside world”

• Everyone to share high aspirations for children
with SEND: “Not being defined by disabilities,
unlocking potential”
• Mental health support for young people with
higher needs

• After college activities for young adults
• Better support to help plan for the future.
Teaching life skills at school.

• Less uncertainty about the future:
“Children need to know that there is a future
mapped out for them”.

Our priorities
Lambeth Children and Young People with
SEND have told us that they want:

Having looked at what our performance
information is telling us, and listened to what
children, young people and their families are
telling us, partners in the Local Area have
identified the following priority actions grouped
under four key areas.

• “Respect, equality, safety and opportunity”
• Help with overcoming fears, coping, moving
on from difficulties
• To feel “believed and listened to”, especially
when they are “sad or being bullied”

Actions to support this strategy are part of a
broader partnership action plan that is being
overseen and monitored by the SEND Strategic
Partnership Board.

• To feel included: “don’t put me in a corner”
• More support with mental health issues
• To be more independent “I want to be able
to travel on the tube on my own”

Measurable targets will be developed for each
priority, and progress will be reported to the
Children and Families Strategic Partnership
Board and the Health and Wellbeing Board.

• To have someone who can help me out of
the house with travel practice
8

Page 113
5.1 Promoting independence
for children, young people and
their families

- further developing pathways to adult services
to ensure a smooth transition from children’s
social care and health services, through to
adult’s services.

Promoting independence for children
and young people with SEND and their
families, is a central theme to the Lambeth
SEND strategy. The more independent
an individual, the greater their ability to
visualise their life aspirations and develop
and implement plans to realise them.
There are four ways this strategy aims
to promote independence:
• Providing information, advice and support
to parents and carers to help them navigate
the SEND system, make informed choices and
access the right support when they need it.
• Co-production: We will involve children and
young people and their families in shaping
the services they receive. We will take into
account the child or young person’s abilities,
wishes and aspirations and fully involve
them and their families in decision making.

5.2 Early years, schools and
education providers working in
partnership to support inclusion
and reduce inequality between
children with SEND and their peers

• Personalisation: We want to increase
people’s control over some of the specific
services they receive, so they are better
designed to their individual needs and
preferences. This will be achieved in part
through more families and young people
having personal budgets, and direct payments
enabling them to direct some of the provision
they receive. Linked to this, more young
people will be supported to achieve
independent travel training, raising confidence
and giving them more freedom to pursue
interests.

Whilst we recognise that some children will
benefit from specialist provision, we aim,
wherever possible, to include children and young
people with SEND in local mainstream education
settings. Lambeth expects all children and young
people to be included and supported to make
the best possible progress from the Early Years
onwards. To achieve this, we are committed
to securing all children and young people
with SEND a place in a good or outstanding
educational setting.

• Preparing for Adulthood: Partners working
together in the Lambeth area will support
young people to achieve the best possible
outcomes in adulthood. This will include

Through Lambeth Schools Partnership we will
further develop school to school support and
strengthen partnership working between schools
and education providers.

- teaching life skills to those most
in need of support

We will support Early Years providers to identify
children with SEND and moderate schools’
identification of pupils’ needs to ensure all
children requiring SEND support have their needs
assessed and are appropriately supported to
access education and make good progress.

- providing specialist careers guidance
backed up by quality work experience
placements and a better range of
apprenticeships, maximising young
people’s ability to enter the world of work.
- improving the range of housing for
young adults with SEND who want to
live independently

We will also look at ways to allocate additional
support to meet less complex special
9

Page 114
to joint-commissioning that is well-planned,
evidentially based, and consistently applied
to deliver improved outcomes at demonstrable
value for money. Initially, work is focused
upon the establishment of a robust population
baseline, and the modelling of future demand.
This will be augmented with a financial model
and the outline of our current range of
provision, leading to an understanding of
where gaps in provision – both current and
future – may exist.

educational needs, so that more children can
have their needs met quickly.
To further promote inclusion, we will support
mainstream teachers to develop specialist
teaching skills to meet the needs of a wide
range of children and young people. We will
also provide a range of support, outreach
and training packages directly to local
mainstream educational settings. We will also
support and encourage schools to identify
children at risk of exclusion, and put in place
effective interventions much earlier, so that
no child with SEND is excluded temporarily
or permanently.

Our Local Offer, published in September
2014, is a comprehensive directory of services
available within the borough – whether directly
commissioned or otherwise. We are aware
that the Local Offer does not yet include all
the special educational, health and social
care provision for children and young people
with SEN or disabilities.

To maximise the effectiveness of interventions
and support packages, early intervention
pathways will be further developed. We will work
more closely with health partners to develop
more robust processes so that young children
with needs are identified and referred to the
appropriate agencies in a timely manner.

We are also aware that although every effort
has been made to include information for those
who do not have an EHCP, this is not yet as
comprehensive as we want it to be, nor is
our information relating to preparation for
adulthood. This is being addressed as a priority
during the development of the refreshed
Local Offer website.

5.3 Working together effectively
to maximise the value and impact
of services and resources
We know that parents often have to deal
with lots of different organisations to
access support for their child. Lambeth
has recognised that it needs to develop a
more holistic approach to sharing information
and commissioning; enhancing the way we
work together, not just across education,
health and care, but also across children’s
and adults’ services.

5.4 Securing the right local
specialist provision
We recognise that mainstream school
is not always able to meet the needs
of those children with profound and
very complex needs, so will continue
our specialist provision capital programme,
using population forecast data to
keep this under review, ensuring that,
wherever possible we can meet children’s
needs locally.

The Joint Commissioning and the Local Offer
strand of work will seek to establish an approach

We are aiming to decrease the number
and cost of independent non-maintained
placements and reduce the number of
out-of-borough placements.
The Vanguard secondary School for ASD
students is due to open in September 2019
and will reduce the need for independent
placements for secondary age pupils
with ASD.
10

Page 115

Appendix 1
The national context
The Children and Families Act 2014 introduced a set of significant reforms across education,
care and health services.
The overall purpose of the reforms is to bring about better outcomes for children and young
people with SEND by:
• implementing a new approach to joining up support across education, health and care
from birth to 25
• ensuring help is offered at the earliest possible point
• ensuring children and young people, parents and carers are fully involved in determining
their own aspirations and participate in the decisions about the type of support they need
to achieve these
• establishing more efficient ways of working.
The specific requirements of the reforms are outlined in The Children and Families Act 2014 and
the guidance on implementation is detailed in the revised SEND Code of Practice 2014.

Summary of the main requirements of the legislation on local authorities
n to involve young people and children

n to produce a ‘Local Offer’ which details

with SEND and their parents, carers
and families, in shaping the provision
of services for those with SEND.

all the services to support children
and young people with SEND and their
families in a clear and transparent way
so they can understand what is available.

n to develop closer co-operation with

partners, including early years providers,
all types of schools and colleges; health
providers; children’s and adult social
care services and introduce a duty for
joint commissioning to ensure joint
responsibility for providing services.

n to provide an entitlement for parents,

carers and young people to have a
personal budget to extend their choice
and control over the education, health
and social care services they receive.
n to ensure positive transitions at all key

stages from birth to age 25, especially
in preparing for adulthood. Providing
greater powers for the Local Authority
to continue services beyond 18 and
introducing new protections for young
people aged 16-25.

n to undertake joint assessment, planning

and commissioning of services between
education, health and social care to
ensure more streamlined and integrated
support through a single assessment
process and single plan (EHC Plan)
covering a child and young person from
birth to age 25.

11

Page 116
Appendix 1 – continued
These requirements became statutory obligations
from September 2014. Some additional
requirements related to supporting children and
young people with SEND who are detained in
custody became applicable from April 2015.
Transitional arrangements apply up to April
2018 while children and young people with
Statements of Special Educational Needs or
Learning Disability Assessments are transferred
to Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs).

From 1 April 2013 the Health and Social Care
Act 2012 gave General Practitioner (GP) led
Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGs) statutory
responsibility for commissioning health services
for children and adults. This legislation also
transferred responsibility for public health from
health to local authorities. The relationships
developed between local authorities and CCGs
are therefore vital in establishing effective joint
commissioning for SEND – something which
both organisations are under a duty to deliver.
Under the same legislation local authorities were
also required to establish Health and Wellbeing
Boards. The role of these boards is to provide
leadership to the development of local health
and social care services and to ensure service
provision becomes more integrated.

In addition to local authorities, a range of other
public bodies are required to have due regard
to the Children and Families Act and Code of
Practice 2014. These include: schools, further
education colleges, early years providers, NHS
commissioners and provider organisations,
local Health and Wellbeing Boards and Youth
Offending Teams. An underlying tenet of the
legislation and associated guidance is ensuring
that all these bodies work more effectively
together in the provision of support for children
and young people with SEND, including ensuring
that they experience better transitions, especially
from children’s to adults’ services.
The specific responsibilities of other public
bodies are underpinned by a variety of legislation
and guidance, for example, the NHS Mandate.
Through the Mandate, the Department of
Health have provided a duty for the NHS
Commissioning Board to ensure children and
young people with SEND can access the
services identified within their agreed plans
and have the option of a personal budget.

12

Page 117

Appendix 2
High level priority actions
(References to actions in the Strategic Action Plan in brackets)
1. Promoting independence for children, young people and their families
Further increase the participation of young people with SEND and their families in the
design, delivery and monitoring of the services they receive.

(C.3)

Increase the personalisation of the individual service packages through more personal
budgets, direct payments and independent travel training.

(B.7)

Maximising people’s opportunity to enter the world of work through appropriate educational
placements, careers advice, apprenticeships and work experience opportunities.

(C.3)

Improve young peoples’ experience of transitioning to adult services, through implementing
the transitions element of the Care Act and the Children and Families Act.

(B.11)

2. Early years, schools and education providers working in partnership to support
achievement and progress
Further improve early identification of children and young people with SEND.

(A.2), (A.3)

Develop the expertise of mainstream teaching staff who support children and young people
with SEND, so that more students can be included within a mainstream environment or
additional resource provision.

(A.2), (C.6)

Improve achievement; where children and young people need more than quality first teaching
make sure the right levels of expertise and interventions are in place to support progress.

(C.5), (C.6)
(C.8), (C.9)

Improve the allocation of resources to children requiring SEN support, but not requiring an
Education, Health and Care Plan.

(B.1)

Make effective use of the Education and Health Care plan processes and in-school working
to improve effective multi-agency working.

(B.2), (B.4)
(B.5)

3. Working together effectively to maximise the impact of services and resources:
joint commisioning and the Local Offer
Publish all services and provision on the Local Offer and improve navigation.

(B.13)

Ensure rigorous governance and oversight of spend, to manage resources within budget
and allow flexibility to respond to need and improve services.

(C.1), (C.2)

Improve quality of high need placements contracts and contract monitoring to challenge
and seek redress from schools failing to honour essential elements of delivery.

(C.4)

Improve the shared data, over and above the detail held in the Joint Strategic Needs
Assessment, between agencies to enhance the accuracy of baseline data and statistical
forecasting.

(A.1), (C.3)

Develop a three-year SEND Commissioning Strategy (to complement the overarching
SEND Strategy).

(B.6), (C.1),
(C.2)

4. Securing the right local specialist provision
Use the baseline data, projections of need, the gap analysis, and commissioning priorities
produced by the Joint Commissioning Team to ensure Lambeth has the right provisions to
meet need.

(A.1), (B.9),
(C.2)

Ensure enough high need placements are available in borough to meet demand and
decrease the number and cost of independent non-maintained placements and reduce
the number of Out-of-Borough placements.

(B.8)

13

Page 118

101085 (1.18)

Page 119

Agenda Item 5

CHILDREN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB COMMITTEE 19 DECEMBER 2018
Report title: 2018-19 Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee Work Programme
Wards: All
Portfolio: Cabinet Member for the Voluntary Sector, Partnership and Community Safety (job
share) Cllr Jim Dickson/Cllr Mohammed Seedat
Report Authorised by: Strategic Director for Corporate Resources: Jackie Belton
Contact for enquiries: Elaine Carter, Lead Scrutiny Officer, Corporate Resources;
020 7926 0027; ecarter@lambeth.gov.uk

Report summary
This report sets out the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee’s work programme as currently
drafted and provides a record of recommendations and actions arising from previous meetings (appendix
1).
Finance summary
There are no financial implications beyond the existing Scrutiny budget.
Recommendations
1.

That the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee consider the work programme as currently
drafted (Appendix 1) and identify and prioritise matters for future scrutiny.

2.

To note the following recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny (Crime and Disorder) Committee,
1/11/18.
 To recommend that the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee considers whether the
educational/training programmes offered by the Youth Offending Services are sufficiently
targeted, up to date and meeting clients’ needs.

Page 120
1.
1.1

CONTEXT
This is the third meeting of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee during the 2018/19
municipal year. Members should determine issues for inclusion in the work programme going
forward. Although some flexibility needs to be retained to enable items to be added at short notice,
planning the committee’s work programme facilities scrutiny of those matters the committee
considers to be a priority, assists in the commissioning of reports and helps ensure that matters are
considered in a timely manner.

2.
2.1

PROPOSAL AND REASONS
One further meeting of the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee is due to be held during
2018/19. This scheduled for 19 March 2019.

2.2

Terms of Reference
The Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub Committee may set its own agenda within the scope of its
terms of reference. Along with general functions that apply to both the ‘parent’ Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub, the following are specific to this committee:



2.3

When considering which items to include in the work programme the following questions can usefully
be asked of each proposed topic:









2.4

2.5

The provision, planning and management of children and young people’s services – including
children’s social care; safeguarding children; children in care; troubled families; the Youth
Offending Service (YOS); education, learning and schools; Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) and education inclusion; early years; education capital estate; and youth &
play services.

Are statutory requirements being met effectively?
Are quality services being delivered?
Are any audits or external inspections due?
Are the specific needs of user groups being met?
Does the service compare well with neighbouring/other comparable authorities and against
national performance indicators?
Is the service an improving one?
Does the service know what changes are imminent or likely and are preparations being made?
Is this a priority for the council?

Borough Plan Outcomes
Lambeth’s Borough Plan (Future Lambeth) 2016 – 21 set out the outcomes and objectives that the
council is trying to achieve; these can be a useful tool for scrutiny councillors in their holding to
account role and to support the identification and prioritisation of work programme items. The
Borough Plan is based around three driving priorities – Inclusive Growth; Reducing Inequality; Strong
and Sustainable Neighbourhoods - which are equally important in fulfilling the council’s commitment
to make Lambeth a place of ‘ambition and fairness for all’. Under one of these headline priorities ‘Reducing Inequality’ - the Plan sets out a number of goals and ambitions which align with the remit
of the sub-committee. The committee may therefore want to scrutinise progress towards delivery of
these outcomes (bullets below).
Ten year outcome: Make sure that all children in Lambeth get the best start in their education and
working lives, and that their transitions between different life stages are as successful as possible.
We will do this by ensuring that all of our children’s centres, nurseries, schools and colleges deliver

Page 121
good or outstanding education for all, with diverse and high quality academic and vocational
pathways. By 2021 we will have:
 Increased the proportion children achieving good levels of social, emotional, communication, and
language development by the end of Early Years Foundation Stage
 Reduced inequalities in school readiness between children living in poverty, from black
Caribbean and Portuguese backgrounds, boys, children in care, children at risk; and the general
population
 Ensured that children living in the most deprived wards have the same level of access to good
or outstanding primary schools as the general population
 Reduced inequalities in achievement between children in receipt of Pupil Premium, black
Caribbean and Portuguese pupils, looked after children and those at risk, boys; and, the general
population at key stage 2
 Increased the proportion of children with SEN identified early
 Ensure that more childcare settings in the borough are rated good or outstanding, and more
children aged 2 and 3 take up their free early years entitlement.
2.6

10 year outcome: Reduce inequality of education, training and employment outcomes for children,
young people and adults from different backgrounds. By 2021 we will have:
 Narrowed the achievement gap at key stages 3 and 4 between children eligible for Pupil
Premium, Looked After Children, children from black Caribbean and Portuguese backgrounds,
boys children with SEN; and the general population their peers
 Improved the identification of, and support for young people at risk of disengagement from
education and training
 Increased the numbers of students in Lambeth schools and colleges at KS5 achieving at least
3 A Levels A*- E or equivalent
 Narrowed the achievement gap at Key Stage 5 between: young people on Pupil Premium,
black Caribbean and Portuguese young people, looked after young people/those at risk, young
people with SEN, disabled young people, boys; and the general population
 Reduced the numbers of young people (16-19) whose status is unknown or who are not in
education, employment and training, particularly looked after children, and children with SEN
and/or disabilities
 Reduced inequalities in employment rates between young people (aged 25 and under), Looked
After Children, people with health issues and disabilities, from black African and black
Caribbean and Portuguese groups, residents aged 50+, and, ex-offenders; and the general
population
 Reduce the rate of Lambeth young people entering the youth justice system, particularly from
those ethnic groups who are currently overrepresented.
2.7 10 year outcome: All children receive the support that they need for happy and secure childhoods
which give them the best start in life. By 2021 we will have:
 High quality universal services in place so that families in Lambeth have the resources and
opportunities to give their child the best start in life
 Made sure families experiencing problems are consistently identified, assessed and quickly
provided with the support and help that they need
 Support families to be strong and resilient, providing effective support to enable children to
achieve their potential and to be safe and secure
 When it is not possible to keep families together, timely and decisive action is taken so that
children are afforded permanency, secure attachments and opportunities to grow and thrive.

Page 122
External Inspections

2.8

2.9

(i) Ofsted Inspection Lambeth Children’s Services
The findings from the Ofsted inspection of Lambeth’s Children’s Services (Inspection of services for
children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers) was published on 9
May 2018. Ofsted’s overall conclusion was that Children’s Services in Lambeth ‘requires
improvement to be good’ and are therefore no longer ‘inadequate’. However the adoption
performance sub-judgement was that this service remains ‘inadequate’.
Ofsted made 12 recommendations for further progress, including:
 Recruit enough adopters to meets the need of children in Lambeth.
 Consider how to better engage young people who are gang affiliated, leaving custody, and
those who have more entrenched criminal behaviours, so that they achieve better outcomes.
 Improve the frequency, quality and consistency of management oversight and supervision in
all teams.
 Ensure that supervision is regular, reflective and challenging, and that managers record the
rationale for their case decisions.
 Improve the quality of assessments so that the lived experiences of children are fully
understood and inform plans.
 Develop an approach for assessing and responding to children detained in custody.
 Improve oversight of children in care with substance misuse difficulties and ensure that services
and interventions are sufficient for them to receive the right help at the right time.
 Offer more practical and timely help to ensure that young people leaving care gain the skills
and attitudes they need to better engage in education, employment or training.

2.10 The full report can be found at
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/local_authority_reports/lambeth/070_%2
0Lambeth_Single%20inspection%20of%20LA%20children%27s%20services.pdf
(ii) Youth Offending Service Inspection
2.11 The Youth Offending Service (YOS) has been subject to progress reporting to scrutiny on securing
improvement and responding to the findings of the full joint inspection of the service conducted by
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Probation published in January 2015. A re-inspection of the service is
expected during 2018.
2.12 Arising from the annual Overview and Scrutiny Crime and Disorder Committee and the focus on
serious youth violence, OSC made the following recommendation:
 To recommend that the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee considers whether the
educational/training programmes offered by the Youth Offending Services are sufficiently
targeted, up to date and meeting clients’ needs.
2.13 This has been added to the list of issues for follow up/potential future scrutiny as identified by the
committee and set out in appendix 1.
(iii) SEND Inspection
2.14 SEND inspection of local area services for children and young people with special educational needs
and/or disabilities is expected during 2018.
Performance Information
2.15 Information on performance across all matters within Lambeth’s Children’s Services is contained in
the Quarterly Budget and Performance report. This information may support development of the

Page 123
committee’s annual work plan and identify priority issues for future scrutiny. The most recent report
Quarter 1 (2018/19) was presented to Cabinet on 17 September – the link to the report is below. It
is expected that Quarter 2 will be reported to Cabinet in January 2019.
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=225&MId=10506
Forward Plan
2.16 The Forward Plan lists all key decisions that the Council (including the Health and Wellbeing Board)
will take over the coming months. A key decision is defined as an executive decision which will:
1) Require an amendment to the Community Plan Outcomes Framework or require a
recommendation to Council to amend the Budget and Policy Framework; and/or
2) Result in the local authority incurring expenditure, raising income or making savings in excess
of £500,000; and/or
3) Have a significant impact on:
a) communities living or working in an area comprising two or more wards in Lambeth;
or
b) wellbeing of the community or the quality of service provided to a significant number
of people living or working in an area; or
c) communities of interest
2.17 The plan is therefore a useful tool for identifying forthcoming decisions where the committee could
add value. The Forward Plan can be found at:
http://moderngov.lambeth.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RD=0&RPId=137&bcr=1
3.
3.1

FINANCE
There are no additional capital or revenue implications arising as a direct result of this report. The
work programme will be undertaken within the existing budget provision for Scrutiny within the
Corporate Affairs Division of Corporate Resources.

4.
4.1

LEGAL AND DEMOCRACY
There are no legal implications, but advice on specific work programme items may be provided in
the future.
There are no further democratic implications arising from this report.

4.2
5.
5.1

CONSULTATION AND CO-PRODUCTION
All members of the council are entitled to suggest items for scrutiny work programmes in accordance
with the council’s scrutiny procedure rules (Constitution Part 3, Section 6). Suggestions are also
invited specifically from scrutiny members as part of their community leadership role and from
members of the public. The council’s website includes a form for the submission of suggestions and
for public notice questions.

6.
6.1

RISK MANAGEMENT
None.

7.
7.1

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT
An equalities impact assessment of the work programme has not been undertaken. Reports
commissioned by the committee will be expected to address any equalities issues. Any
recommendations arising from commissions will have equalities implications considered at the
drafting stage.

8.
8.1

Community safety
None.

Page 124
9.
9.1

ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS
None.

10. TIMETABLE FOR IMPLEMENTATION
10.1 See Appendix 1.

Audit Trail
Consultation
Name/Position

Lambeth
directorate/ Date Sent
department or partner
Alison McKane, Director of On behalf of Strategic Director, 28.11.18
Legal Services & HR
Corporate Resources
Nisar Visram
Corporate Resources
28.11.18
AD Corporate Finance
Fateha
Salim,
Legal Corporate Resources
28.11.18
Services
Democratic
Services Corporate Resources
28.11.18
(Jackie Pennycook)
Councillor Liz Atkins
Chair,
Children’s
Services 28.11.18
Scrutiny Sub Committee

Date
Received
06.12.18

Comments
in para:

29.11.18

3

28.11.18

4

Report History
Original discussion with Cabinet Member
N/A
Report deadline
7.12.18
Date final report sent
6.12.18
Part II Exempt from Disclosure/confidential No
accompanying report?
Key decision report
No
Date first appeared on forward plan
N/A
Key decision reasons
N/A
Background information
Future Lambeth: Our Borough Plan 2016-2021
Forward Plan of Key Decisions
Appendices

Appendix 1 – Children’s Services Scrutiny Committee
Work Programme 2018/19

Page 125

Appendix 1
CHILDEN’S SERVICES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE
2018-19 WORK PROGRAMME
Date

Meeting
type

Items/Topics

1. Children’s Services: Introductory overview
2. Ofsted inspection of Lambeth’s Children’s Services Outcome and future plans for improvement delivery
4 July 2018

Scheduled

3. School Inspection 2016/17
4. Education Achievement
5. CSSC annual work programme
Children & Young People at Risk:

23 October 2018

-

Children at Risk Strategy (LSCB): Overview update and
Action Plan implementation

-

At risk of disengagement from education or on the edge
of the school system/ school exclusions; at risk early
identification; engagement with parents; young people
excluded from further education

-

YOS – reducing the rate of young people entering the
youth justice system

-

Whole system approach

Scheduled

 Feed into OSC Crime & Disorder Scrutiny (1/11/18)
19 December 2018

Scheduled

1. Budget: Children’s Services
2. SEND: Overview and Update
To be agreed. Provisionally:

19 March 2019



Children & Young People Health and Wellbeing, including
MH/CAMHS



Progress update on Children’s Social Care & improvement
journey

Scheduled

Issues for potential future scrutiny
The following matters have been identified by members:
1. Early Years Services, including the LEAP;
2. Closing the educational attainment gap – (Black Caribbean and Portuguese pupils), including the
reasons for attainment by some groups at primary level but who then fall at secondary level;
3. Children and accommodation; homelessness and young people;
4. Employment outcomes and employability;
5. Health of children and young people in Lambeth (social and mental health as well as physical);
6. Supporting the trauma associated with youth violence;
7. Reducing adverse children’s experiences and neglect;
8. Feeling safe and supported - children and young people in care/those needing support -

Page 126

Date

Meeting
type

Items/Topics

continuity issues, not repeating their story
9. Prevention and how services – council/services/stakeholders – work together
10. 10 year outcomes and delivery on priorities to be a framework for scrutiny activity
11. Children’s Social Care/Ofsted follow up: momentum on sustaining improvement; Recruitment &
Retention issues (i) social workers and (ii) senior management
Inspections2018/19: pending/for further follow up
1. SEND: Joint Ofsted and Care Quality Commission inspection on support and services to children
with special education needs/who are disabled [SEND]: expected during 2018
2. YOS [Youth Offending Service]: inspection expected during 2018 (new framework for inspection
to be published in May 2018).
3. Children’s Services: Ofsted inspection reported May 2018: Overall - Requires Improvement
(Adoption: Inadequate)
Recommendation from Overview and Scrutiny (Crime and Disorder) Committee (1/11/18)
 To recommend that the Children’s Services Scrutiny Sub-Committee considers whether the
educational/training programmes offered by the Youth Offending Services are sufficiently
targeted, up to date and meeting clients’ needs.

4 July 2018
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

POST MEETING ACTIONS

Report Title & Key Points

Outcome & Actions Arising


AH

CT

Ofsted Re-inspection:
Outcomes and plans going
forward

School Inspection 2016/17






CT

Education Achievement

CT



Note the overall significant level of attainment at
KS2 and GCSE in 2017.
Future follow up on early years/LEAP and
improving literacy and speech in early years
How address adverse experiences (i) in early and
pre-school years and (ii) of (random) violence and
trauma
Committee members to be invited to screening of
‘Resilience’ on 12/7 – focus on adverse experience

CT




CSSC Annual Work Plan

AH

Noted



LA/EC


AH







Agreed that the next meeting focus on children and
young people at risk
The committee hears/incorporates the voice, views
and experience of children and young people on all
issues it considers – should co-opt Youth Mayor or
youth council representative

Action status

LA/
EC



Workforce/
management
stability to be
programmed

Ofsted follow up to
be programmed

Deadline

RAG
Status
A

A

G


Follow up on early
years to be
programmed



Invite sent 6/7/18



Timetabled for
23/10/18
Co-optee invite
issued to Young
Lambeth Co-op
Further items to be
programmed




A

G

Page 127

AH/MS

Lambeth Children’s Services –
Introduction & Overview

Noted key developments in Lambeth’s Children’s
Services
Workforce
stability:
concerns
about
losing
momentum of improvement arising from senior
officer changes/management stability in children’s
social care (future follow up)
Noted Inspection outcome (Overall Requires
Improvement; Adoption Inadequate) and progress
made since 2015.
That the committee regularly reviews the progress in
delivering the next steps Plan.

Lead

23 October 2018
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

Report Title & Key Points

POST MEETING ACTIONS
Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Action status

Deadline

RAG
Status

Children and Young People at Risk
AH/NS

Edited recommendations set out below; for full text & recommendations submitted to Overview and Scrutiny (Crime and Disorder) Committee see
minutes of CSSC 23/10/18

2. Ensure better tracking of excluded children and more support to prevent children who have been
excluded from falling through the cracks. It was clear from evidence to the committee that there are
incidences where processes have not worked and excluded children have become absent from
education. Data on internal exclusions and managed moves also needs to be collected to look at
trends, and associated research commissioned including the voice of the child.
3. Noting the challenges for schools in accessing external support, in particular for higher level mental
health (Tier3), undertake review on the level of support available including waiting times for CAMHS.
4. Secure more data on exclusions particularly on the educational and other outcomes of all excluded
pupils including those attending the PRUs. It is important that outcomes on excluded pupils are
tracked to contribute to an understanding of what is working and improve life chances.
5. Review the learning, success and opportunities of a zero exclusions policy and alternative provision
within a mainstream school such as the Dunraven model.

Page 128

1. Focus on better, early identification of children at risk of exclusion and a joined up approach. Many
children who are excluded from school often already face a host of challenges including experiences
happening outside the school environment. Schools and agencies need to liaise and engage much
earlier including with parents/carers to understand what is happening in a young person’s life and in
their community.

6. Noting the Raising the Game initiative, the committee would wish to be informed on the learning and
outcomes from the assessment and review of the project.
7. There needs to be readily accessible and clear information available to parents/carers whose child
has been excluded which sets out the alternative educational provision available and how they can
access advice on support and options/next steps.
8. At all stages ensure the voice of the child/young person is listened to.
9. The committee wish to hear more on the Head Teacher perspective of exclusions, the issues they
face and the solutions.
10. Ensure schools are made accountable for monitoring and reporting children who go missing, or are
absent, from education. This includes a role for the School Governing Body & Safeguarding
Governor.

12. To determine whether special needs are being picked up early enough and sufficiently supported
(noting high numbers with special needs entering youth justice system), policies to be reviewed and
unmet need quantified.
13. Lambeth has the highest number of first time entrants to the youth justice system in the UK. Whilst
there are a range of diversionary activities it is not clear there is a structured approach to gathering
learning. There needs to be more evidence gathered on the outcomes of the youth justice initiatives
Lambeth is pursuing and learning on what works, and ensure a more joined up approach to reduce
FTEs.
14. Ensure the work to reduce youth violence on high risk estates is monitored and assessed.
15. Consideration given to reinstating the Town Hall as a ‘safe space’ facility, along with training for staff.
16. In the context of tight resources and budget pressures, the committee would welcome receiving
information about the funding and evaluation of youth projects going forward. Information should
include projects outside the Young Lambeth Co-operative model to enable a review of external and
internal funding being used such as lottery funds, independent charities etc.

Page 129

11. Return home interviews for children who go missing from care do not always take place. There
should be robust follow up/associated information and more independent return home interviews.

19 December 2018
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

Report Title & Key Points

POST MEETING ACTIONS
Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

Action status

Deadline

RAG
Status

Action status

Deadline

RAG
Status

Children’s Services – budget
and savings proposals

Page 130

Special Education Needs and
Disability – overview and
update

19 March 2018
PRE MEETING PLANNING
Lead
Officer/
Author

Report Title & Key Points

POST MEETING ACTIONS
Outcome & Actions Arising

Lead

